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Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on ForrK 18at are not purely historical are forward-loakin
statements within the meaning of applicable sdesrlaws. Forward-looking statements include statem

regarding our “expectations,

projections of revenue and other financial itemeskased on our beliefs as well as assumptions madad
information currently available to us. Actual raswould differ materially from those currently izitated as a
result of a number of factors, including those désed in Item 1A. Risk Factol

Page

23
34
34
38
38

39
40

41
48
49

49
49
50

51
51

51

51
51

52
54
F-1

" “anticipation,” “imtons,” “beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding thetfire. Forward-
looking statements relating to our future econop@idformance, plans and objectives for future openat and
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PART |

Item 1. Business

Introduction

Our Company

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itJtited States. Through 90 retail locations in Alaba Arizona,
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Flarieorgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevadew Jersey, New
York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode IslaBduth Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah, Wweeseland used
recreational boats, including pleasure and fishioats, with a focus on premium brands in each sagriée also sell related
marine products, including engines, trailers, pamt&l accessories. In addition, we arrange reladatifinancing, insurance,
and extended service contracts; provide repaima@idtenance services; offer boat and yacht brokesagvices; and, where
available, offer slip and storage accommodations.

We are the natios’largest retailer of Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, ManidCabo, and Hatteras recreational boats andsy
all of which are manufactured by Brunswick Corpummat Sales of new Brunswick boats accounted for@pmately 57% of
our revenue in fiscal 2007. Brunswick is the wasltiirgest manufacturer of marine products and reaigines. We believe
our sales represented in excess of 12% of all Bvishksmarine sales, including approximately 46%tsf$ea Ray boat sales,
during our 2007 fiscal year. Through operating &libges, we are a party to dealer agreements Biitimswick covering
these products and are the exclusive dealer ofieamlr geographic market. We also have the riglsiell Hatteras Yachts
throughout the state of Florida (excluding the ielapanhandle). We have distribution rights for Mi&n Yachts in most of
our geographic markets, excluding Arizona, Califay©olorado, Nevada, and Utah. We are the exausdaler for Italy-
based Ferretti Group for Ferretti Yachts, Pershitiga, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft mega-yachts, tm&nd other
recreational boats for the United States, Canadiitee Bahamas. We also are the exclusive deal&eidram in the United
States (excluding the Florida peninsula and Texaahada, and the Bahamas. We are the exclusiverdenltaly-based
Azimut-Benetti Group for Azimut and Atlantis megaehts, yachts, and other recreational boats foNtréheast United
States from Maryland to Maine and the exclusivdatdar Cabo Yachts throughout the state of Flarida

We commenced operations as a result of the MartB98 acquisition of five previously independemreational boat
dealers. Since that time, we have acquired 20iadditpreviously independent recreational boatesakwo boat brokerage
operations, and two full-service yacht repair opers. We capitalize on the experience and suauiethe acquired
companies in order to establish a new nationabstahof customer service and responsiveness ihigidy fragmented retail
boating industry. As a result of our emphasis @mpum brand boats, our average selling price fogva boat in fiscal 2007
was approximately $115,000, a decrease of appraglyna% from fiscal 2006, compared with the indystverage calendar
2006 selling price of approximately $33,000 basedhdustry data published by the National MarinenMacturers
Association. Our stores, which operated at leash@Bths, averaged approximately $15.2 million inwl sales in fiscal
2007. We consider a store to be one or more fetztions that are adjacent or operate as ong/eRtt the fiscal year end:
September 30, 2007, we had revenue in excess 2% $illion, income from operations of $54.5 millicend net income of
$20.1 million. Our same-store sales decreasedhess1% in fiscal 2007 and has averaged an incifageproximately 11%
for the last five years.

We adopt the best practices developed by us andaguired companies as appropriate to enhancebdity o attract
more customers, foster an overall enjoyable boakmgrience, and offer boat manufacturers staliepasfessional retail
distribution and a broad geographic presence. Wewveethat our full range of services, no hagglesapproach, prime ret;
locations, premium product offerings, extensivélitées, strong management and team members, apth&sis on customer
service and satisfaction before and after a bdatssa competitive advantages that enable us todye responsive to the
needs of existing and prospective customers.

The U.S. recreational boating industry generatgd@apmately $39.5 billion in retail sales in calem®006, including
sales of new and used boats; marine products,asiehgines, trailers, equipment, and accessondgetated expenditures,
such as fuel, insurance, docking, storage, andreefiRetail sales of new boats, engines, traikemsl, accessories accounted
approximately $30.7 billion of these sales in 286@8ed on industry data
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from the National Marine Manufacturers Associatidbhe highly fragmented retail boating industry gailg consists of
small dealers that operate in a single market aodqbe varying degrees of merchandising, profesdiaranagement, and
customer service. We believe that many small dealer finding it increasingly difficult to make theanagerial and capital
commitments necessary to achieve higher custoneicedevels and upgrade systems and facilitiegqsired by boat
manufacturers and demanded by customers. We diswdthat many dealers lack an exit strategylieirtowners. We
believe these factors contribute to our opportunity

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natitmading recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuofoperating and
growth strategy include the following:

« emphasizing customer satisfaction and loyalty ®ating an overall enjoyable boating experienceinmgg with a
hassl-free purchase process, superior customer servidepremier facilities

« achieving efficiencies and synergies among ouratjmars to enhance internal growth and profitahi
« emphasizing employee training and developm
- offering additional products and services, inclgdihose involving higher profit margin

e pursuing strategic acquisitions to capitalize ugfenconsolidation opportunities in the highly fragmted recreational
boat dealer industry by acquiring additional desabend related operations and improving their peréorce and
profitability through the implementation of our epéng strategies

« opening additional retail facilities in our exigfiand new territories

< promoting national brand name recognition and ttagiMeMax connectior

« expanding our Internet retail operations and mange

« emphasizing th”best practice’ developed by us and our acquired dealers as apgt@finroughout our dealershij

 operating with a decentralized approach to theaijmral management of our dealerships;

« utilizing technology throughout operations, whieltifitates the interchange of information and emearcross-selling
opportunities throughout our compal

Development of the Company; Expansion of Business

MarineMax was founded in January 1998. MarineMaglft however, conducted no operations until theuasition of
five independent recreational boat dealers on Mard®998, and we completed our initial public offgrin June 1998. Since
the initial acquisitions in March 1998, we have wiogd 20 additional recreational boat dealers, Invat brokerage
operations, and two full-service yacht repair opers. Each of our acquired dealers is continuiagperations under the
MarineMax name as a wholly owned operating subsidd&our company.

We continually attempt to expand our business lyiding a full range of services, offering exteresand high-quality
product lines, maintaining prime retail locatioparsuing the MarineMax Value Price sales approant,emphasizing the
highest level of customer service and customesfsation.

We also evaluate opportunities to expand our ojpeErsby acquiring recreational boat dealers to edpaur geographic
scope; expanding our product lines; opening neaildeications within our existing territories; apdoviding new products
and services for our customers.




Table of Contents

Acquisitions of additional recreational boat deslepresent an important strategy in our goal tmeoe our
position as the nation’s leading retailer of reticzaal boats. The following table sets forth infation regarding the
businesses that we have acquired and their gedgraggions.

Acquired Corporation

Bassett Boat Company of Flori

Louis Del[Homme Marin

Gulfwind USA, Inc.

Gulfwind South, Inc.

Harrison’s Boat Center, Inc. and
Harrison's Marine Centers of Arizona,
Inc.

Stovall Marine, Inc.

Cochran’s Marine, Inc. and C & N
Marine Corporatior

Sea Ray of North Carolina, In

Brevard Boat Compan

Sea Ray of Las Veg:

Treasure Cove Marina, Inc

Woods & Oviatt, Inc.

Boating World

Merit Marine, Inc.

Suburban Boatworks, Inc

Hansen Marine, Inc

Duce Marine, Inc.

Clark’s Landing, Inc. (selected New
Jersey locations and operatio

Associated Marine Technologies, Ir

Gulfwind Marine Partners, Inc

Seaside Marine, Inc

Sundance Marine, Inc

Killinger Marine Center, Inc. and
Killinger Marine Center of Alabama,
Inc.

Emarine International, Inc. and Steven
Myers, Inc.

Imperial Marine

Port Jacksonville Marin

Port Arrowhead Marina, Inc

Great American Marina(1

Surfside— 3 Marina, Inc.

(1) Joint venture

Acquisition Date

March 199!
March 199!
March 199!
March 199!

March 199!
April 1998

July 199¢

July 199¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
October 199
February 199
March 199
April 199¢
August 199
December 19¢

April 200C
January 20C
April 2002
July 200:
June 200

September 20(

October 200
June 200
June 200

January 20C

February 200

March 200!

Geographic Regiot

Southeast Florid

Dallas and Houston, Tex.
West Central, Florid
Southwest Florid:

Northern California and Arizon
Georgia

Minnesots

North and South Carolir
East Central Florid
Nevada

Northern Ohic
Southeast Florid
Dallas, Texa:
Southern New Jerse
Central New Jerse
Northeast Florid:
Utah

Northern New Jerse
Southeast Florid
West Florids
Southern Californii
Colorado

Northwest Florida and Alaban

Southeast Florid

Baltimore, Marylanc

Northeast Florid:

Missouri, Oklahom:

West Floridz

Connecticut, Maryland, New York, Rhode
Island

Apart from acquisitions, we have opened 22 newilrizations in existing territories, excluding g®opened
on a temporary basis for a specific purpose. We mlsnitor the performance of our retail locations &lose retail
locations that do not meet our expectations. Baseithese factors, we have closed nine retail lonatsince March
1998, excluding those opened on a temporary base $pecific purpose.
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As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequeptigage in discussions with various recreationat bealers
regarding their potential acquisition by us. Ingeation with these discussions, we and each pategquisition
candidate exchange confidential operational arehfifal information; conduct due diligence inquiriaed consider
the structure, terms, and conditions of the poséatiquisition. In certain cases, the prospectogpissition candidat
agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition aith other party for a specific period of time, gsams an option to
purchase the prospective dealer for a designated guring a specific time, and agrees to takerabBons
designed to enhance the possibility of the acdaisisuch as preparing audited financial informatmd converting
its accounting system to the system specified byPatential acquisition discussions frequently taleee over a
long period of time and involve difficult busingésgegration and other issues, including in somesafanagement
succession and related matters. As a result oé thed other factors, a number of potential acqorstthat from
time to time appear likely to occur do not resnlbinding legal agreements and are not consummated.

In addition to acquiring recreational boat deaberd opening new retail locations, we also add nendyxt
lines to expand our operations. The following tad#és forth various product lines that we have dddeur existin

locations:

Product Line Fiscal Year Geographic Region

Boston Whale 1997 West Central Florida; Stuart, Florida; Dallas, T&

Hatteras Yacht 199¢  Florida (excluding the Florida panhand

Boston Whale 200C  North Palm Beach, Floric

Baja 2001 Houston, Texas and Las Vegas, Nev

Meridian Yachts 200z  Florida, Georgia, North and South Carolina, N
Jersey, Ohio, Minnesota, Texas, and Delay

Grady White 200z Houston, Texa

Hatteras Yacht 200z Texas

Boston Whale 200<¢  North and South Carolir

Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare

and Mochi Craf 2004  United States, Canada, the Bahamas, and Mt

Bertram 2004  United States (excluding the Florida peninsula
portions of New England), Canada, and the Bahs

Princecraft 200¢  Minnesota

Baja 200t  Tempe, Arizona, Colorado, Dallas, Texas, and |

Boston Whale 200t Houston and Dallas, Tex

Meridian Yachts 200t  Chattanooga, Tenness

Tracker Marine 200t  Las Vegas, Nevac

Azimut 200¢  Northeast United States from Maryland to Ma

Atlantis 200¢  Northeast United States from Maryland to Ma

Cabo 200¢€  West coast of Florid

Laguna 200¢  Connecticut, Delaware, Florida, Maryland, N
Jersey, New York, and Tex

Cabo 2007  East coast of Florid

As we add a brand, we believe we are offering aatiign for our existing customer base or fillingap in our
product offerings. As a result, we do not beligvat new product offerings will compete with or cératize the
business generated from our other prominent brands.

We plan to continue to expand our business thraagjuisitions in new geographical territories, néoves
openings in existing territories, and new prodired. In addition, we plan to continue to exparfteoservices,
including conducting used boat sales; offering yactu boat brokerage services; offering our custsrites ability
to finance new or used boats; offering extendediceicontracts; arranging insurance coverage, dietuboat
property, credit-life, accident, disability, andsoalty coverage; selling related marine produatduding engines,
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trailers, parts, and accessories; providing maariea and repair services at our retail locatiomksadrstand-alone
service facilities; and expanding our ability t@yide slip and storage accommodations.

We maintain our executive offices at 18167 U.S.Higy 19 North, Suite 300, Clearwater, Florida 3376
our telephone number is (727) 531-1700. We wererpuarated in the state of Delaware in January 1898ss the
context otherwise requires, all references to “MeMax” mean MarineMax, Inc. prior to its acquisgitiof five
previously independent recreational boat dealelarnch 1998 (including their related real estatepanies) and ¢
references to the “Company,” “our company,” “weyis;” and “our” mean, as a combined company; MariagM
Inc. and the 20 recreational boat dealers, two bazkterage operations, and two full-service yaeptir operations
acquired to date (the “acquired dealers,” and togretvith the brokerage and repair operations, ‘afieg
subsidiaries” or the “acquired companies”).

Our website is located atww.MarineMax.com Through our website, we make available free affgh our
annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K; otrxy
statements, and any amendments to those repedsaiilfurnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 16{dhe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These reportsieadable as soon as reasonably practicable atter w
electronically file those reports with the Secestand Exchange Commission. We also post on owsiteghe
charters of our Audit, Compensation, and Nomind@uogporate Governance Committees; our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, Code of Business ConducEémds, and Code of Ethics for the CEO and Sefioancial
Officers, and any amendments or waivers thereth;agny other corporate governance materials contagby
SEC or NYSE regulations. These documents are absitable in print to any stockholder requestingpaycfrom ou
corporate secretary at our principal executivecefi
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General

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itUthited States. Through 90 retail locations in Alaba Arizona,
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, FlariGeorgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevadew Jersey, New
York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode IslaBduth Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah, weeseland used
recreational boats, including pleasure boats (sisckport boats, sport cruisers, sport yachts, aolty), and fishing boats,
with a focus on premium brands in each segmentaltesell related marine products, including engjitilers, parts, and
accessories. In addition, we arrange related bahyacht financing, insurance, and extended sepgogracts; provide repair
and maintenance services; offer boat and yachtelagle services; and, where available, slip anégtaccommodations.

We are the natios’largest retailer of Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, ManidCabo, and Hatteras recreational boats andy
all of which are manufactured by Brunswick Corpummat Sales of new Brunswick boats accounted for@pmately 57% of
our revenue in fiscal 2007. Brunswick is the wasltiirgest manufacturer of marine products and reangines. We believe
our sales represented in excess of 12% of all Bvighsmarine sales, including approximately 46%tefSea Ray boat sales,
during our 2007 fiscal year. Through operating slibses, we are a party to dealer agreements Biitinswick covering
these products and are the exclusive dealer ofieamlr geographic market. We also have the riglsiell Hatteras Yachts
throughout the state of Florida (excluding the ilapanhandle). We have distribution rights for Mian Yachts in most of
our geographic markets, excluding Arizona, Califayi€olorado, Nevada, and Utah. We are the exausdaler for Italy-
based Ferretti Group for Ferretti Yachts, Pershitiga, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft mega-yachts, tm&nd other
recreational boats for the United States, Canadhitee Bahamas. We also are the exclusive deal®&efidram in the United
States (excluding the Florida peninsula and TeXxaahada, and the Bahamas. We are the exclusiverdealtaly-based
Azimut-Benetti Group for Azimut and Atlantis megaehts, yachts, and other recreational boats foNthéheast United
States from Maryland to Maine and the exclusivdatdar Cabo Yachts throughout the state of Flarida

U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

The total U.S. recreational boating industry geteat@approximately $39.5 billion in retail salescaiendar 2006,
including retail sales of new and used recreatiboaks; marine products, such as engines, traparss, and accessories; and
related boating expenditures, such as fuel, ingerathocking, storage, and repairs. Retail salegwfboats, engines, trailers,
and accessories accounted for approximately $3Mahbof such sales in 2006. Retail recreationadting sales were
$17.9 billion in the late 1980s, but declined tow of $10.3 billion in 1992 based on industry datilished by the National
Marine Manufacturers Association. We believe tlgslohe was attributable to several factors, inalgda recession, the Gulf
War, and the imposition throughout 1991 and 1992 lofxury tax on boats sold at prices in exceskl@0,000. The luxury
tax was repealed in 1993 and, with the exceptio®88 and 2003, retail recreational boating sade® lincreased every year
through 2006. We believe that, based on the cudieaitenging retail environment, recreational tsés will decline during
calendar 2007.

The recreational boat retail market remains higtdgmented with little consolidation having occutte date and
consists of numerous boat retailers, most of whaighsmall companies owned by individuals that dedaraa single market
and provide varying degrees of merchandising, gsimal management, and customer service. We bdliew many boat
retailers are encountering increased pressure imahmanufacturers to improve their levels of senand systems, increas
competition from larger national retailers in certaroduct lines, and, in certain cases, businessession issues.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natil@@ding recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuoftrategy include
the following.

Emphasizing Customer Satisfaction and Loyalty/e seek to achieve a high level of customerfsatiosn and
establish long-term customer loyalty by creatingaarall enjoyable boating experience beginnindnwaihassle-free
purchase process. We further enhance and simpkfptirchase process by
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helping to arrange financing and insurance at etailrlocations with competitive terms and streamdi turnaround. We
offer the customer a thorough in-water orientattbboat operations where available, as well as imgglooat safety,
maintenance, and use seminars and demonstratiotieefoustomer’s entire family. We also continue customer
service after the sale by leading and sponsoringridilax Getaways! group boating trips to varioustuhations,
rendezvous gatherings, and on-the-water organizext® to provide our customers with pre-arrangggbdpnities to
enjoy the pleasures of the boating lifestyle. Ws® @indeavor to provide superior maintenance ararrs@rvices, often
through mobile service at the customer’s wet gfig with extended service department hours and eaeygservice
availability, that minimize the hassles of boat m@nance.

Emphasizing Best PracticesWe emphasize the “best practices” developed ndsour acquired dealers as
appropriate throughout our locations. As an exampéefollow a no-haggle sales approach at eacluofiealerships.
Under the MarineMax Value-Price approach, we salllwats at posted prices, generally representtligcmunt from the
manufacturer’s suggested retail price, therebyiahting the anxieties of price negotiations thatuwdn most boat
purchases. In addition, we adopt, where benefittialpest practices developed by us and our achd@elers in terms of
location, design, layout, product purchases, maariee and repair services (including extended sehvburs and mobile
or dockside services), product mix, employee trajnand customer education and services.

Achieving Operating Efficiencies and Synergia&le strive to increase the operating efficiencieand achieve
certain synergies among our dealerships in ordenbance internal growth and profitability. We celize various
aspects of certain administrative functions atciwporate level, such as accounting, finance, arsee coverage,
employee benefits, marketing, strategic planniegal support, purchasing and distribution, and gameent information
systems. Centralization of these functions reddegdicative expenses and permits the dealershipsnefit from a level
of scale and expertise that would otherwise be aitetvle to each dealership individually. We alseks® realize cost
savings from reduced inventory carrying costs gesalt of purchasing boat inventories on a natiéexagl and directing
boats to dealership locations that can more readilysuch boats; lower financing costs throughavedit sources; and
volume purchase discounts and rebates for certaimmproducts, supplies, and advertising. Thatalf our retail
locations to offer the complementary services afatber retail locations, such as offering customeaursion
opportunities, providing maintenance and repawises at the customer’s boat location, and giviogeas to a larger
inventory, increases the competitiveness of eatetil tecation. By centralizing these types of aitigs, our store
managers have more time to focus on the custonteth@ndevelopment of their teams.

Offering Additional Products and Services, Inclglifhose Involving Higher Profit MarginsWe plan to continue to
offer additional product lines and services thrauglour dealerships or, when appropriate, in setedealerships. We &
offering throughout our dealerships product lirtest fpreviously have been offered only at certaiowflocations. We
also may obtain additional product lines through alequisition of distribution rights directly fromanufacturers and the
acquisition of dealerships with distribution rightde have increased our used boat sales and yautdrbge services
through an increased emphasis on these activitiegperative efforts among our dealerships, andiskeeof the Internet.
We also plan to continue to grow our financing arsiirance, parts and accessories, service, andgtorage businesses
to better serve our customers and thereby increas&iue and improve profitability of these highexrgin businesses.

Pursuing Strategic AcquisitionsWe capitalize upon the significant consolidatigportunities available in the higt
fragmented recreational boat dealer industry byigitg independent dealers and improving their ganance and
profitability through the implementation of our spéng strategies. The primary acquisition focusrisvell-established,
high-end recreational boat dealers in geographietsinot currently served by us, particularly gaphic markets with
strong boating demographics, such as areas wihhkicdastal states and the Great Lakes region. ¥deray seek to
acquire boat dealers that, while located in ativagjeographic markets, have not been able tozeefdivorable market
share or profitability and that can benefit subtédiy from our systems and operating strategies.may expand our
range of product lines, service offerings, and raagenetration by acquiring companies that distellvacreational boat
product lines or boating-related services diffefentn those we currently offer. As a result of considerable industry
experience and relationships, we believe we arépesitioned to identify and evaluate
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acquisition candidates and assess their growtlppots, the quality of their management teams, theal reputation witl
customers, and the suitability of their locationg believe we are regarded as an attractive aaguyrboat dealers
because of (1) the historical performance and sperence and reputation of our management teahinmhe industry;
(2) our decentralized operating strategy, whichegalty enables the managers of an acquired deatmrttinue their
involvement in dealership operations; (3) the apbif management and employees of an acquired dieaparticipate in
our growth and expansion through potential stockenship and career advancement opportunities; 8nthé ability to
offer liquidity to the owners of acquired dealdrsough the receipt of common stock or cash. We leatered into an
agreement regarding acquisitions with the Sea Ruaigibn of Brunswick. Under the agreement, acqigisg of Sea Ray
dealers will be mutually agreed upon by us andfsawith reasonable efforts to be made to inclutalance of Sea R
dealers that have been successful and those thanloabeen. The agreement provides that Sea Rbayotunreasonabl
withhold its consent to any proposed acquisitioa &ea Ray dealer by us, subject to the conditenhforth in the
agreement, as further described in “Business — &siock Agreement Relating to Acquisitions.”

Opening New Facilities.We intend to continue to establish additionaitdacilities in our existing and new marke
We believe that the demographics of our existingggaphic territories support the opening of addgidfacilities, and we
have opened 22 new retail facilities, excludingsthopened on a temporary basis for a specific germince our
formation in January 1998. We also plan to reach cigstomers through various innovative retail folsrdeveloped by
us, such as mall stores and floating retail faeditOur mall store concept is unique to the bgaitidustry and is designi
to draw mall traffic, thereby providing exposurebtmating for the non-boating public as well as Eigimg our new
product offerings to boating enthusiasts. Floatitgil facilities place the sales facility, wittcastomer reception area ¢
sales offices, on or anchored to a dock in a maimhuse adjacent boat slips to display our newuaed boats in areas
high boating activity. We continually monitor therformance of our retail locations and close rdtaiations that do not
meet our expectations or that were opened for eifsppurpose that is no longer relevant. Since &hat998, we have
closed nine retail locations, excluding those opemea temporary basis for a specific purpose.

Promoting Brand Name Recognition and the Marinel@axnection. We are promoting our brand name recognition
to take advantage of our status as the nationis aydst-to-coast marine retailer. This strategy edsognizes that many
existing and potential customers who reside in Nemt markets and vacation for substantial perindaouthern markets
will prefer to purchase and service their boatsnftbe same well-known company. We refer to thistegy as the
“MarineMax Connection.” As a result, our sighagepbiasizes the MarineMax name at each of our locgtiand we
conduct national advertising in various print atigdeo media.

Utilization of the Internet. Our web initiativewww.MarineMax.com provides customers with the ability to learn
more about our company and our products. Our welsiberates direct sales and provides our stothdesids to
potential customers for new and used boats ancebagk services. We also plan to expand our aldlitffer financing
and parts and accessories on our website.

Emphasizing Employee Training and Developmeho. promote continued internal growth, we devatiestantial
efforts to train our employees to understand oue cetail philosophies, which focus on making thechase of a boat a
its subsequent use as hassle-free and enjoyaplesamle. Through our MarineMax University, or MMWe teach our
retail philosophies to existing and new employdeseous locations and online, through MMU-onlindMU is a
modularized and instructor-led educational progtaat focuses on our retailing philosophies and jgle instruction on
such matters as the sales process, customer sdfibeaccounting, leadership, and human resources.

Operating with Decentralized ManagementVe maintain a generally decentralized approatchdmperational
management of our dealerships. The decentralizethgeament approach takes advantage of the extemgiegience of
local managers, enabling them to implement poliaie$ make decisions, including the appropriate gebchix, based on
the needs of the local market. Local managemehbaity also fosters responsive customer servicepaadhotes long-
term community and customer relationships. In aoldjtthe
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centralization of certain administrative functiatshe corporate level enhances the ability ofllat@nagers to focus the
efforts on day-to-day dealership operations andtistomers.

Utilizing Technology Throughout OperationdVe believe that our management information systenich currently
is being utilized by each operating subsidiary aag developed over a number of years through catiperefforts with .
common vendor, enhances our ability to integratesssfully the operations of our operating subsieieand future
acquired dealers. The system facilitates the ihterge of information and enhances creslling opportunities throughc
our company. The system integrates each level efadipns on a company-wide basis, including purcigasnventory,
receivables, financial reporting, budgeting, anldsamanagement. The system also provides salessagatives with
prospect and customer information that aids thetraicking the status of their contacts with prosgpegutomatically
generates follow-up correspondence to such prospiacilitates the availability of boats companydejilocates boats
needed to satisfy particular customer requestsn@rdtors the maintenance and service needs obmgss’ boats. Our
representatives also utilize the computer systeassist in arranging customer financing and instegrackages. Our
managers use a web-based tool to access essealidiihancial and operational data from anywherargy time.

Products and Services

We offer new and used recreational boats and cehataine products, including engines, trailersigand accessories.
While we sell a broad range of new and used basgdpcus on premium brand products. In additionasgist in arranging
related boat financing, insurance, and extendedcgecontracts; provide boat maintenance and reggairices; provide boat
brokerage services; and offer slip and storageracuudations.

New Boat Sales

We primarily sell recreational boats, includinggsdare boats and fishing boats. The principal prisdwe offer are
manufactured by Brunswick, the leading worldwidenofacturer of recreational boats, including Sea flagsure boats;
Boston Whaler and Laguna fishing boats; Meridiachts; Cabo Yachts; and Hatteras Yachts. In fise@l72we derived
approximately 57% of our revenue from the saleenf thoats manufactured by Brunswick. We believe weatepresented in
excess of 12% of all of Brunswick’s marine prodsakes during that period. We also sell mega-yaghtshts, and other
recreational boats manufactured by Bertram andkdhebased Ferretti Group, including Ferretti Y& HPershing, Riva,
Apreamare, and Mochi Craft. Certain of our deal@shlso sell luxury yachts, fishing boats, andtpon boats provided by
other manufacturers, including ltaly-based Azintutring fiscal 2007, new boat sales accounted fpr@pmately 68.2% of
our revenue.

We offer recreational boats in most market segménitishave a particular focus on premium qualigagure boats and
yachts as reflected by our fiscal 2007 average lmeat sales price of approximately $115,000, a deseref approximatel
1% from fiscal 2006, compared with an estimatedigtiy average calendar 2006 selling price of agprately $33,000
based on industry data published by the NationaindaVianufacturers Association. Given our locationsome of the more
affluent, offshore boating areas in the United &tatnd emphasis on high levels of customer semwieaell a relatively
higher percentage of large recreational boats, asahegarachts, yachts, and sport cruisers. We believetiiegproduct line
we offer are among the highest quality within thregpective market segments, with well-establighadk-name recognition
and reputations for quality, performance, and styli
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The following table is illustrative of the rangedaapproximate manufacturer suggested retail penge of new boats th
we offer, but is not all inclusive:

Manufacturer Suggested

Manufacturer Suggested

Product Line and Trade Name Overall Length Retail Price Range
Motor Yachts
Hatteras Motor Yacht 64’ to 10C $ 3,000,000 to $10,000,0+
Ferretti 46’ to 8¢ 1,100,000 to 9,000,0+
Azimut 43 to 11¢€ 790,000 to 10,600,0+
Convertibles
Hatteras Convertible 54 to 77 2,300,000 to 7,000,0+
Bertram 36 to 7C 525,000 to 5,000,0+
Cabo 32 to 57 475,000 to 1,850,0(+
Pleasure Boats
Sea Ray 17 to 6C 21,000 to 2,500,0(
Meridian 36" to 5¢ 300,000 to 1,600,0(
Fishing Boats
Boston Whale 11’ to 3¢ 8,000 to 325,0C
Grady White 18'to 3¢ 40,000 to 500,0(
Laguna 18 to 27 25,000 to 55,0C
Specialty Boats & Yachts
Pershinc 50 to 9C 1,650,000 to 10,250,0+
Riva 33 to 7" 700,000 to 5,600,0(+
Apreamare 25 to 6% 350,000 to 3,700,0+
Mochi Craft 44 to 74 1,275,000 to 5,025,0+

Motor Yachts. Hatteras Yachts, Ferretti Group, and Azimut hreé of the world’s premier yacht builders. The onot
yacht product lines typically include st-of-the-art designs with live-aboard luxuries. THatteras series offers a flybridge
with extensive guest seating; covered aft deckckvhiay be fully or partially enclosed, providing thoater with additional
living space; an elegant salon; and multiple stears for accommodations. Ferretti is known foEitsopean styling, speed,
performance, and offers luxurious salon/galleyrsgeaments and multiple staterooms with private headisnut yachts are
known for their Americanized open layout with lgalidesign, powerful performance, and accuracy.lhgious interiors of
Azimut yachts are accented by windows and mulégleommodations that have been designed for comfort.

Convertibles. Hatteras Yachts, Bertram Yachts, and Cabo Yaaietshree of the world’s premier convertible yacht
builders and offer state-of-the-art designs witledaboard luxuries. Convertibles are primarily ifighvessels, which are well
equipped to meet the needs of even the most sabdausament-class competitor. The Hatteras see@tsifes interiors that
offer luxurious salon/galley arrangements, multigtierooms with private heads, and a cockpititithtides a bait and tackle
center, fishbox, and freezer. The Bertram seriatufe interiors that offer spacious living room aadbn/galley arrangemer
multiple staterooms with private heads, and a cib¢kpt includes storage for big catches, ampl@ @area, open sink area,
live-bait storage, and stand-upd storage. The Cabo series is known for spagiookpits and accessibility to essentials, <
as bait chests, livewells, bait prep centers, anklé lockers. Cabo interiors offer elegance, hgitted by teak woodwork,
halogen lighting, and ample storage areas.

Pleasure Boats. Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats target bhethukury and the family recreational boating méske
and come in a variety of configurations to suitteegstomer’s particular recreational boating stglea Ray sport yachts and
yachts serve the luxury segment of the recreatiboating market and include i-of-the line living accommodations with a
salon, a fully equipped galley, and multiple statens. Sea Ray sport yachts and
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yachts are available in cabin, bridge cockpit, andser models. Sea Ray sport boat and sport croisdels are designed f
performance and dependability to meet family rettmeal needs and include many of the features andramodations of Si
Ray’s sport yacht and yacht models. Meridian spachts and yachts are known for their solid peromoe and thoughtful
use of space with 360-degree views and spacioan,gélley, and stateroom accommodations. Merigpant yachts and
yachts are available in sedan, motoryacht, andhailcsse models. All Sea Ray and Meridian pleasuagsbieature custol
instrumentation that may include an electronickpge; various hull, deck, and cockpit designs ¢aatinclude a swim
platform; bow pulpit and raised bridge; and variausenities, such as swivel bucket helm seats, gegts, sun pads, wet
bars, built-in ice chests, and refreshment cenkéost Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats featuneddy or MerCruiser
engines.

Fishing Boats. The fishing boats we offer, such as Boston Whalaguna, and Grady White, range from entry level
models to advanced models designed for fishingveatdr sports in lakes, bays, and sfffere waters, with cabins with limit
live-aboard capability. The fishing boats typicdibature livewells, in-deck fishboxes, rodholdeigging stations, cockpit
coaming pads, and fresh and saltwater washdowns.

Specialty Boats.Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft spgciats and yachts are known for exceptional
quality, design, and innovation and are consideredhium products in their respective segments.Hérshing series is
considered a perfect blend of high performanceyyxand the comfort of perfectly blended intespace. The Riva series is
considered by those who want the best, expectabg and live the best as the luxury boat of chdibe Apreamare series is
considered one of the most exciting and most delsiexpress cruisers on the market with an unmaeallEuropean design.
The Mochi Craft series is an old-style revolutibattrediscovers the natural lines of the 1950s.

Used Boat Sales

We sell used versions of the new makes and modelsffer and, to a lesser extent, used boats of atlakes and models
generally taken as trade-ins. During fiscal 20G&diboat sales accounted for approximately 18.88tiofevenue, and
approximately 75% of the used boats we sold wemm8wvick models.

Our used boat sales depend on our ability to scaumgply of high-quality used boats at attractiviees. We acquire
substantially all of our used boats through custainagle-ins. We intend to continue to increaseusad boat business as a
result of the increased availability of quality ddmats generated from our expanding sales efthesncreasing number of
used boats that are well-maintained through owiceinitiatives, our ability to market used bo#disoughout our combined
dealership network to match used boat demand,fendxperience of our yacht brokerage operationditiddally,
substantially all of our used boat inventory istpdson our web site, www MarineMax.com, which exgmthe awareness
and availability of our products to a large audeen€ boating enthusiasts.

At most of our retail locations, we offer the SemyR egacy warranty plan available for used Sealivafs less than six
years old. The Legacy plan applies to each qualifyised Sea Ray boat, which has passerpoint inspection, and provid
protection against failure of most mechanical pfntsup to three years. We believe that the SealRgpacy warranty plan,
which is only available for used Sea Ray boatsmsed from a Sea Ray dealer, enhances our salssdfSea Ray boats by
motivating purchasers of used Sea Ray boats tdhpseconly from a Sea Ray dealer and motivatingrsetif Sea Ray boats
to sell through a Sea Ray dealer.

Marine Engines, Related Marine Equipment, and Boagj Accessories

We offer marine engines and propellers, substantdll of which are manufactured by Mercury Marimedivision of
Brunswick. We sell marine engines and propellemmnarily to retail customers as replacements foirtheisting engines or
propellers. Mercury Marine has introduced varioae/ engine models that reduce engine emissionsnplgowith current
Environmental Protection Agency requirements. $aesiness — Environmental and Other Regulatory ksSuen industry
leader for almost six decades, Mercury Marine slizeis in state-of-thart marine propulsion systems and accessories.
of our operating subsidiaries have been recogrigddercury Marine as “Premier Service Dealers.”sTéiésignation is
generally awarded based on meeting certain stasdad qualifications.
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We also sell related marine parts and accessaniading oils, lubricants, steering and controdtgyns, corrosion contr
products, engine care, maintenance, and servickipt® (primarily Mercury Marine’s Quicksilver lind)igh-performance
accessories (such as propellers) and instrumemdsa @omplete line of boating accessories, inclyidlifie jackets, inflatables,
and water sports equipment. We also offer nové&diys, such as shirts, caps, and license platesehe manufacturer’s or
dealer’s logo.

The sale of marine engines, related marine equipraed boating accessories accounted for approzlynadt2% of our
fiscal 2007 revenue.

Maintenance, Repair, and Storage Services

Providing customers with professional, prompt meaince and repair services is critical to our sefests and
contributes to our profitability. We provide mainsace and repair services at most of our retaditions, with extended
service hours at certain of our locations. In additin many of our markets, we provide mobile ni@irance and repair
services at the location of the customer’s boat.béleve that this service commitment is a competiadvantage in the
markets in which we compete and is critical to effiorts to provide a trouble-free boating experento further this
commitment, in certain of our markets, we have epestandalone maintenance and repair facilities in locatitrat are mo
convenient for our customers and that increasavhéability of such services. We also believe that maintenance and
repair services contribute to strong customerimgiahips and that our emphasis on preventative teramce and quality
service increases the potential supply of well-rzived boats for our used boat sales.

We perform both warranty and non-warranty repaivises, with the cost of warranty work reimburseactie
manufacturer in accordance with the manufactusegganty reimbursement program. For warranty wor&st
manufacturers, including Brunswick, reimburse acpatage of the dealer’s posted service labor retiéls the percentage
varying depending on the dealer’s customer satisfaindex rating and attendance at service trgigiourses. We derive the
majority of our warranty revenue from Brunswick guats, as Brunswick products comprise the majarfitgroducts sold.
Certain other manufacturers reimburse warranty vabik fixed amount per repair. Because boat maturiars permit
warranty work to be performed only at authorizedldeships, we receive substantially all of the wated maintenance and
repair work required for the new boats we sell. THied-party extended warranty contracts we oftso @esult in an ongoing
demand for our maintenance and repair servicethéoduration of the term of the extended warraotyt@act.

Our maintenance and repair services are performenanufacturer-trained and certified service teciams. In charging
for our mechanics’ labor, many of our dealerships a variable rate structure designed to reflectifiiculty and
sophistication of different types of repairs. Tlegqentage markups on parts are similarly basedamufacturer suggested
prices and market conditions for different parts.

At many of our locations, we offer boat storageseess, including in-water slip storage and insidd autside land
storage. These storage services are offered atetdim@ market rates and include in-season andenstbrage.

Maintenance, repair, and storage services accotiotegproximately 5.0% of our revenue during fis2@07. This
includes warranty and non-warranty services.

F&I Products

At each of our retail locations, we offer our cumtgs the ability to finance new or used boat puseland to purchase
extended service contracts and arrange insuranvezage, including boat property, credit life, ardident, disability, and
casualty insurance coverage (collectively, “F&I”).

We have relationships with various national mapneduct lenders under which the lenders purchaaé iestallment
contracts evidencing retail sales of boats andrattaine products that are originated by us in edaace with existing pre-
sale agreements between us and the lenders. Tinaegements permit us to receive a portion of ih&nfce charges expec
to be earned on the retail installment contracetdam a variety of factors, including the creditrgting of the buyer, the
annual percentage rate of the contract chargduetbuyer, and the lender’s then current minimunuireq annual percentage
rate charged to the buyer on the contract. This
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participation is subject to repayment by us ifllger prepays the contract or defaults within agieged time
period, usually 90 to 180 days. To the extent neguby applicable state law, our dealerships asned to
originate and sell retail installment contractsfining the sale of boats and other marine products.

We also offer third-party extended service contraetder which, for a predetermined price, we prewt
designated services pursuant to the service camjtadelines during the contract term at no addaicharge to the
customer above a deductible. While we sell all heats with the boat manufacturer’s standard huitavay of
generally five years and standard engine warrahgyenerally one year, extended service contracigige
additional coverage beyond the time frame or safpee manufacturer’s warranty. Purchasers of tsexds
generally are able to purchase an extended seswitteact, even if the selected boat is no longeeed by the
manufacturer’s warranty. Generally, we receiveeafée arranging an extended service contract. vexgtired
services under the contracts are provided by ugaittfor by the third-party contract holder.

We also are able to assist our customers with piperunity to purchase credit life insurance; aenidand
disability insurance, and property and casualtyriasce. Credit life insurance policies providefgpayment of the
boat financing contract if the purchaser dies witike contract is outstanding. Accident and disghitisurance
policies provide for payment of the monthly contralligation during any period in which the buysdisabled.
Property and casualty insurance covers loss or garwathe boat. We do not act as an insurance boolagent or
issue insurance policies on behalf of insurers. Néajever, provide marketing activities and othdates services t
insurance companies and brokers for which we reciarketing fees. One of our strategies is to gaaéncreased
marketing fees by offering more competitive insweaproducts.

During fiscal 2007, fee income generated from Fé&dducts accounted for approximately 3.6% of ouermie.
We believe that our customers’ ability to obtaimgetitive financing quickly and easily at our deskeps
complements our ability to sell new and used bd&fs also believe our ability to provide customelstad
financing on a “same-day” basis gives us an adgantaer many of our competitors, particularly serall
competitors that lack the resources to arrangefireicing at their dealerships or that do not geteesufficient
volume to attract the diversity of financing sowtleat are available to us.

Brokerage Services

Through employees or subcontractors that are lextbsat or yacht brokers, we offer boat or yacbkérage
services at most of our retail locations. For a wassion, we offer for sale brokered boats or yadrgsng them on
the “BUC” system, and advising our other retaildtions of their availability through our integrateasimputer
system and posting them on our web site, www.Mazecom. The BUC system, which is similar to a restate
multiple listing service, is a national boat or fakisting service of approximately 900 brokers mained by BUC
International. Often sales are co-brokered, withabmmission split between the buying and sellirgkérs. We
believe that our access to potential used boabmests and methods of listing and advertising custshbrokered
boats or yachts is more extensive than is typicedray brokers. In addition to generating revenumfbwokerage
commissions, our brokerage services also enalie affer a broad array of used boats or yachtsawitlincreasing
related inventory costs. During fiscal 2007, bralger services accounted for approximately 1.2% ofewenue.

Our brokerage customers generally receive the $aghelevel of customer service as our new and beed
customers. Our waterfront retail locations enabevater demonstrations of an on-site brokered lat.
maintenance and repair services, including moleiteise, also are generally available to our brojereustomers.
The purchaser of a boat brokered through us alsdad@ advantage of MarineMax Getaways! weekenddagd
trips and other rendezvous gatherings and in-veatents, as well as boat operation and safety sesavie believe
that the array of services we offer are uniquédehlirokerage business.

Retail Locations

We sell our recreational boats and other marindymrts and offer our related boat services throuphegail
locations in Alabama, Arizona, California, Colora@mnnecticut, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Maryland
Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New Ybitrth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, South
Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah. Each retaitibn generally includes an indoor showroom (idieig some
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of the industrys largest indoor boat showrooms) and an outsidefaredisplaying boat inventories, a business e
to assist customers in arranging financing andrarste, and maintenance and repair facilities.

Many of our retail locations are waterfront progston some of the nation’s most popular boaticgtions,
including the Delta Basin, Newport Harbor, and MiasBay in California; Norwalk Harbor in Connecttcmnultiple
locations on the Intracoastal Waterway, the Atta@itean, Biscayne Bay, Boca Ciega Bay, Naples Baxt o the
Gulf of Mexico), Tampa Bay, and the CaloosahatdRizer in Florida; Lake Lanier and Lake Altoona ie@gia;
Chesapeake Bay in Maryland; Leech Lake and th€i®ix River in Minnesota; Lake of the Ozarks, TaRleck
Lake, and the Mississippi River in Missouri; BaraeBay, the Delaware River, the Hudson River, Lidkpatcong,
Little Egg Harbor, and the Manasquan River in Newsdy; Great Sound Bay, the Hudson River, and Hgtan
Harbor in New York; the Intracoastal Waterway inrflicCarolina; Lake Erie in Ohio; Grand Lake in Gidana;
Myrtle Beach in South Carolina; Tennessee Rivardnnessee; and Clear Lake, Lake Conroe, and Lakes\ile
in Texas. Our waterfront retail locations, mostiich include marina-type facilities and docks &tiatr we display
our boats, are easily accessible to the boatinglpop, serve as in-water showrooms, and enablgalks force to
give customers immediate in-water demonstrationsadbus boat models. Most of our other locatioresia close
proximity to water.

We plan to reach new customers by expanding inloeations through various innovative retail formatsch
as mall stores and floating retail facilities. @uall store concept is unique to the boating induatrd is designed to
draw mall traffic, thereby providing exposure taahng to the non-boating public as well as dispigydur new
product offerings to boating enthusiasts. Floatitgil facilities place the sales facility, wittcastomer reception
area and sales offices, on or anchored to a doaknarina and use adjacent boat slips to displeyamel used boats
in areas of high boating activity.

Operations
Dealership Operations and Management

We have adopted a generally decentralized appitoaitie operational management of our dealershigsle
certain administrative functions are centralizethatcorporate level, local management is primaggponsible for
the day-to-day operations of the retail locatideech retail location is managed by a store managey,oversees
the day-to-day operations, personnel, and finapeigiormance of the individual store, subject ® dhirection of a
district manager, who generally has responsibititythe retail locations within a specified geodrapregion.
Typically, each retail location also has a staffigieting of a sales manager, an F&I manager, & pad service
manager, sales representatives, maintenance aaid teghnicians, and various support personnel.

We attempt to attract and retain quality employaesur retail locations by providing them with ongp
training to enhance sales professionalism and ptdcwwledge, career advancement opportunitiesinvétarger
company, and favorable benefit packages. We maiatédrmal training program, called MarineMax Unisity or
MMU, which provides training for employees in afipgects of our operations. Training sessions ackdtedur
various regional locations covering a variety qfits. MMU-online offers various modules over the Interneghty
trained, professional sales representatives ammportant factor to our successful sales effortese sales
representatives are trained at MMU to recognizértiportance of fostering an enjoyable sales prodessducate
customers on the operation and use of the boadgoaassist customers in making technical and dedggisions in
boat purchases. The overall focus of MMU is to lear core retailing values, which focus on custosssvice.

Sales representatives receive compensation prin@rih commission basis. Each store manager imaezh
employee with incentive bonuses based on the pedioce of the managed dealership. Maintenance gadf re
service managers receive compensation on a saary Wwith bonuses based on the performance of their
departments. Our management information systemgeeeach store and department manager with dadpdial
and operational information, enabling them to mamtiheir performance on a daily, weekly, and montidsis. We
have a uniform, fully integrated management infdrarasystem serving each of our dealerships.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales philosophy focuses on selling the plessaf the boating lifestyle. We believe that thigaal
elements of our sales philosophy include our appgaétail locations, our no-hassle sales approlaighly trained
sales representatives, high level of customer seremphasis on educating the customer and thercass family
on boat usage, and providing our customers wittodppities for boating. We strive to provide supeustomer
service and support before, during, and after #he s

Each retail location offers the customer the oppaty to evaluate a large variety of new and useatdin a
comfortable and convenient setting. Our full-sesvietail locations facilitate a turn-key purchasgrgcess that
includes attractive lender financing packages,reldd service agreements, and insurance. Many aktait
locations are located on waterfronts and marinag;wattract boating enthusiasts and enable custoto@perate
various boats prior to making a purchase decision.

We sell our boats at posted value prices that gdgaepresent a discount from the manufacturarggested
retail price. Our sales approach focuses on custesrgice by minimizing customer anxiety associatét price
negotiation.

As a part of our sales and marketing efforts, vge glarticipate in boat shows and in-the-water salests at
area boating locations, typically held in Januargt Rebruary, in each of our markets and in cettations in clos
proximity to our markets. These shows and eversarmally held at convention centers or marinaf) area
dealers renting space. Boat shows and other ofisit@otions are an important venue for generatagssorders.
The boat shows also generate a significant amduntayest in our products resulting in boat salfsr the show.

We emphasize customer education through one-oredueation by our sales representatives and, at some
locations, our delivery captains, before and atsale, and through in-house seminars for theeefatinily on boat
safety, the use and operation of boats, and pratkrobnstrations. Typically, one of our delivery teéps or the
sales representative delivers the customer’s boat tarea boating location and thoroughly instrtietscustomer
about the operation of the boat, including hand#structions for docking and trailering the boed. enhance our
customer relationships after the sale, we leadsapdsor MarineMax Getaways! group boating tripgaigous
destinations, rendezvous gatherings, and on-therwaganized events that promote the pleasurdwedidating
lifestyle. Each company-sponsored event, plannddexhby a company employee, also provides a félera
medium for acclimating new customers to boating emables us to promote actively new product ofterito
boating enthusiasts.

As a result of our relative size, we believe wedhavcompetitive advantage within the industry bindgable to
conduct an organized and systematic advertisingrvearéteting effort. Part of our marketing effortlides an
integrated prospect management system that trhekstatus of each sales representative’s contétttayprospect,
automatically generates follow-up correspondenad|ifates company-wide availability of a partiaukeat or other
marine product desired by a customer, and tragksnintenance and service needs for the custoineats

Suppliers and Inventory Management

We purchase substantially all of our new boat inegndirectly from manufacturers, which allocatevnigoats
to dealerships based on the amount of boats sdldebgiealership. We also exchange new boats whr alealers t
accommodate customer demand and to balance inyentor

We purchase new boats and other marine-relatedipt®ffom Brunswick, which is the world’s largest
manufacturer of marine products, including Sea Bagton Whaler, Baja, Cabo, Hatteras, Princecaafd,
Meridian. We also purchase new boats and othemmaeiated products from other manufacturers, @inty
Azimut, Bertram, Century, the Ferretti Group, Gratliite, Sea Pro, and Tracker Marine. In fiscal 2Q@ifes of
new Brunswick boats accounted for approximately ®f%ur revenue. No other manufacturer accountednfare
than 10% of our revenue in fiscal 2007. We beliewveSea Ray boat purchases represented approxyra&gd of
Sea Ray’s new boat sales and in excess of 12% Bfaiswick marine product sales during fiscal 2007
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Through operating subsidiaries, we have enter@dagteements with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prisduc
The dealer agreements with the Sea Ray divisi@drafiswick do not restrict our right to sell any Sy product
lines or competing products. The terms of the demdeeement appoints a designated geographicabtgrfor the
dealer, which is exclusive to the dealer as lonthaslealer is not in breach of the material obildges and
performance standards under the agreement and&&atRen current material policies and prograniigfidng
notice and the expiration of any applicable cunégas without cure.

The dealer agreement with Ferretti Group and Berttaes not restrict our right to sell any Ferr@ttoup and
Bertram product lines but has certain restrictiaiating to competing products. The dealer agre¢imgpoints us ¢
the exclusive dealer for the retail sale, dispémyd servicing of designated Ferretti Group andrBertproducts and
repair parts currently or in the future sold byredr Group and Bertram in the designated geograptgas. Upon
the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisition, wedrae the exclusive dealer for Azimut-Benetti Greufyzimut
product line. The Azimut dealer agreement provial@gographic territory to promote the product hnel to
network with the appropriate clientele through was independent locations designated for Azimutilrsales.

Arrangements with certain other manufacturers neagrict our right to offer some product lines imtan
markets.

We typically deal with each of our manufactureithieo than the Sea Ray division of Brunswick, urafer
annually renewable, noexclusive dealer agreement. Manufacturers genegathblish prices on an annual basis
may change prices in their sole discretion. Manufaes typically discount the cost of inventory after inventory
financing assistance during the manufacturers’ slemsons, generally October through March. To otbaver cost
of inventory, we strive to capitalize on these nfanturer incentives to take product delivery during
manufacturers’ slow seasons. This permits us to gating advantages and better product availghilitring the
selling season.

We transfer individual boats among our retail lamad to fill customer orders that otherwise migiket
substantially longer to fill from the manufactur&his reduces delays in delivery, helps us maxinrmizentory
turnover, and assists in minimizing potential ot@ek or out-of-stock situations. We actively monitar inventory
levels to maintain levels appropriate to meet quramticipated market demands. We are not bourmbhtractual
agreements governing the amount of inventory tleatrwst purchase in any year from any manufacthtegrthe
failure to purchase at agreed upon levels maytréasthe loss of certain manufacturer incentive® pérticipate in
numerous end-of-summer manufacturer boat showghwhanufacturers sponsor to sell off their remajnin
inventory at reduced costs before the introduationew model year products, typically beginningluty.

Inventory Financing

Marine manufacturers customarily provide interessistance programs to retailers. The interesttassis
varies by manufacturer and may include periodse# financing or reduced interest rate programs.ifterest
assistance may be paid directly to the retailéherfinancial institution depending on the arrangets the
manufacturer has established. We believe thatioan€ing arrangements with manufacturers are stdnalihin the
industry.

In March 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EbFEhe Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB
revised certain provisions of its previously reathenclusions on EITF 02-16, “Accounting by a Cuasto
(Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideratiorc&eed from a Vendor” (EITF 02-16), and providediigidnal
transitional guidance. We determined that EITF 62ripacts the way we account for interest assistasceived
from vendors beginning after July 1, 2003 with teeewal of and amendments to our dealer agreeméhtshe
manufacturers of our products. EITF 02+h6st significantly requires us to classify interassistance received frc
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstaisse against
our interest expense incurred with our lenders.

Our revolving credit facility currently provides usth a line of credit with assdtased borrowing availability -
up to $500 million for working capital and invengdinancing and an additional $20 million for tradnal floorplan
borrowings, all of which are determined pursuard tworrowing base formula. The credit facility rega us to
satisfy certain covenants, including maintainirtgragible net worth ratio. The credit facility cuntly matures
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in May 2012, with two one-year renewal options ranimgy. The credit facility was last amended in J@207 to extend the
terms and modify the definition of “Fixed Chargesv€rage Ratio.”

As of September 30, 2007, we owed an aggregatd28.8 million under our revolving credit faciliths of
September 30, 2007, our revolving credit facilitpyided us with an additional available borrowirapacity of
approximately $148.9 million. Advances on the figiiccrued interest at a rate of 7.2% as of Sebpér@0, 2007. We were
in compliance with all covenants in the facility@sSeptember 30, 2007.

Management Information System

We believe that our management information systenich currently is being utilized by each of oureogating
subsidiaries and was developed over a number of yeeough cooperative efforts with the vendor,ardes our ability to
integrate successfully the operations of our opegegubsidiaries and future acquisitions, faciitathe interchange of
information, and enhances cross-selling opportesitiroughout our company. The system integraies leael of operations
on a company-wide basis, including purchasing, ritmgy, receivables, financial reporting and budugtiand sales
management. The system enables us to monitor eadbrghip’s operations in order to identify quickhgas requiring
additional focus and to manage inventory. The systkso provides sales representatives with prospettustomer
information that aids them in tracking the statfitheir contacts with prospects, automatically gates
follow-up correspondence to such prospects, fatd# the availability of a particular boat compavigle, locates boats
needed to satisfy a particular customer requedtpaomitors the maintenance and service needs tfroess’boats. Compar
representatives also utilize the system to agsistranging financing and insurance packages. toliac 2002, Brunswick
acquired the vendor of our management informatytesn.

Brunswick Agreement Relating to Acquisitions

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick are pairtiean agreement extending through December 2@t %tovides a
process for our continued growth through the adtjoiisof additional Sea Ray boat dealers that @dgsitbe acquired by us.
Under the agreement, acquisitions of Sea Ray deafiirbe mutually agreed upon by us and Sea Raly reiasonable efforts
to be made to include a balance of Sea Ray dahlgrfiave been successful and those that haveepat hhe agreement
provides that Sea Ray will not unreasonably withhtd consent to any proposed acquisition of aFsgadealer by us,
subject to the conditions set forth in the agreem&mong other things, the agreement provides $otoyprovide Sea Ray
with a business plan for each proposed acquisitimiyding historical financial and five-year projed financial information
regarding the acquisition candidate; marketing ashkertising plans; service capabilities and marialyend staff personnel;
information regarding the ability of the candidedeachieve performance standards within designagedds; and informatic
regarding the success of our previous acquisitifi®ea Ray dealers. The agreement also contemi@ateRay reaching a
good faith determination whether the acquisitioruldde in its best interest based on our dedicatimhfocus of resources
on the Sea Ray brand and Sea Ray’s consideratianyofdverse effects that the approval would havéne resulting
territory configuration and adjacent or other desalales and the absence of any violation of agipléclaws or rights granted
by Sea Ray to others.

Dealer Agreements with Brunswick

Brunswick, through its Sea Ray division, and wegtigh our principal operating subsidiaries, ardigaito Sales and
Service Agreements relating to Sea Ray productneitg through December 2015. Each of these dagteements appoir
one of our operating subsidiaries as a dealehforetail sale, display, and servicing of desigh&ea Ray products, parts,
and accessories currently or in the future sol&és Ray. Each dealer agreement designates a desigiemgraphical
territory for the dealer, which is exclusive to thealer as long as the dealer is not in breacheoirtaterial obligations and
performance standards under the agreement and&&atRen current material policies and prograniiefang notice and
the expiration of any applicable cure periods withcure. Each dealer agreement also specifies ketations, which the
dealer may not close, change, or add to withoupthos written consent of Sea Ray, provided tha Bay may not
unreasonably withhold its consent. Each dealereageat also restricts the dealer from selling, aikiag (other than in
recognized and established marine publicationsigitiog for sale, or offering for resale any SeayRproducts outside its
territory without the
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prior written consent of Sea Ray as long as sinndatrictions also apply to all domestic Sea Ralats selling comparable
Sea Ray products. In addition, each dealer agreipnevides for the lowest product prices charge®by Ray from time to
time to other domestic Sea Ray dealers, subjabietdealer meeting all the requirements and canditof Sea Ray’'s
applicable programs and the right of Sea Ray irddaith to charge lesser prices to other dealersdet existing competitive
circumstances, for unusual and non-ordinary busingsumstances, or for limited duration promotigmagrams.

Among other things, each dealer agreement reqtiieedealer to

devote its best efforts to promote, display, adsertand sell Sea Ray products at each of itd tetaitions in
accordance with the agreement and applicable |

display and utilize at each of its retail locati@igns, graphics, and image elements with Sea Rdgrgification that
positively reflect the Sea Ray image and promogeréiail sale of Sea Ray produc

purchase and maintain at all times sufficient in@gnof current Sea Ray products to meet the restderdemand of
customers at each of its locations and to meeRag's applicable minimum inventory requiremer

maintain at each retail location, or at anotheeptable location, a service department that isqrigstaffed and
equipped to service Sea Ray products promptly asiggsionally and to maintain parts and supplieseteice Sea Re
products properly on a timely bas

perform all necessary product rigging, installatiand inspection services prior to delivery to pasers in accordance
with Sea Ray’s standards and perform post-salécesrof all Sea Ray products sold by the dealeraadght to the
dealer for service

provide or arrange for warranty and service workSea Ray products regardless of the selling dealeondition of
sale;

exercise reasonable efforts to address circumsianaghich another dealer has made a sale to gmatiretail
purchases who permanently resides within the dsdkaritory where such sale is contrary to thdisgldealer’s Sales
and Service Agreemer

provide appropriate instructions to purchasersmm to obtain warranty and service work from theléee:

furnish product purchasers with Sea Ray'’s limitedranty on new products and with information amdhing as to the
safe and proper operation and maintenance of thaupts;

assist Sea Ray in performing any product defectracall campaign:

achieve sales performance in accordance with faliraasonable standards and sales levels establigtfeea Ray in
consultation with the dealer based on factors ssghopulation, sales potential, market share ptergerof Sea Ray
products sold in the territory compared with conitpet products sold in the territory, local econsmbnditions,
competition, past sales history, number of retabtions, and other special circumstances thataffagt the sale of
Sea Ray products or the dealer, in each case temsigith standards established for all domesti& Bay dealers
selling comparable product

provide designated financial information that aetful and accurate

conduct its business in a manner that preservegmmahces the reputation and goodwill of both Ssadnd the deals
for providing quality products and servict

maintain the financial ability to purchase and rtaimon hand and display Sea I's current product model
maintain customer service ratings in compliancd\8ita Ra’s criteria;

comply with those dealer’s obligations that mayirhposed or established by Sea Ray applicable woatlestic Sea
Ray dealers

maintain a financial condition that is adequateatisfy and perform its obligations under the agrest;
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« achieve within designated time periods or maintagior dealer status (which is Sea Ray’s highest
performance status) or other applicable certif@@atequirements as established from time to tim&d&gy Ra
applicable to all domestic Sea Ray deal

 notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of aatail locations

« sell Sea Ray products only on the basis of SeaRalished applicable limited warranty and maketner
warranty or representations concerning the limitadranty, expressed or implied, either verballynor
writing;

 provide timely warranty service on all Sea Ray pigid presented to the dealer by purchasers in dacoe

with Sea Ray’s then current warranty program applie to all domestic Sea Ray dealers selling coatpar
Sea Ray products; al

» provide Sea Ray with access to the dealer’s boo#tsecords and such other information as Sea Rgy ma
reasonably request to verify the accuracy of theamty claims submitted to Sea Ray by the dealdr wi
regard to such warranty clairr

Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify each of our deadmigst any losses to third parties resulting f&ea Ray’s
negligent acts or omissions involving the desigmanufacture of any of its products or any breaclt bf the
agreement. Each of our dealers has agreed to infjeBea Ray against any losses to third partiesltiag from the
dealer’s negligent acts or omissions involvingdealer’s application, use, or repair of Sea Raylpets, statements
or representation not specifically authorized bg Bay, the installation of any after market comps@r any othe
modification or alteration of Sea Ray products, ang breach by the dealer of the agreement.

Each dealer agreement may be terminated

« by Sea Ray, upon 60 days prior written noticehéf dealer fails or refuses to place a minimum stackrder
of the next model year’s products in accordanch vatuirements applicable to all Sea Ray dealansrgdly
or fails to meet its financial obligations as thmcome due to Sea Ray or to the d¢'s lenders

* by Sea Ray or the dealer, upon 60 days writtercadti the other, in the event of a breach or defauthe
other with any of the of the material obligatiopsrformance standards, covenants, representations,
warranties, or duties imposed by the agreemerteBea Ray manual that has not been cured withdtag®
of the notice of the claimed deficiency or withimesmsonable period when the cure cannot be condplete
within a 60-day period, or at the end of the 60-gdasiod without the opportunity to cure when thasma
constitutes bad faitt

« by Sea Ray or the dealer if the other makes a filaatl misrepresentation that is material to theagent or
the other engages in an incurable act of bad 1

« by Sea Ray or the dealer in the event of the irsaly, bankruptcy, or receivership of the otl

* by Sea Ray in the event of the assignment of theemgent by the dealer without the prior writtensemt of
Sea Ray

« by Sea Ray upon at least 15 days’ prior writtericean the event of the failure to pay any sums aiue
owing to Sea Ray that are not disputed in gooth;faitd

« upon the mutual consent of Sea Ray and the d¢

Employees

As of September 30, 2007, we had 2,135 employe@302f whom were in store-level operations and 405
whom were in corporate administration and managéniée are not a party to any collective bargaining
agreements. We consider our relations with our eygas to be excellent.
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Trademarks and Service Marks

We have registered trade names and trademarkgheitt.S. Patent and Trademark Office for variounes
including “MarineMax,” “MarineMax Getaways,” “MargMax Care,” “Delivering the Dream,” “MarineMax
Delivering the Boating Dream,” “Newcoast Financsarvices,” “MarineMax Boating Gear Center,” and “iven
on Water.” We have registered the name “MarineMaxhe European Community. We have trade name and
trademark applications pending in Canada for varimames, including “MarineMax,” “Delivering the m,” and
“The Water Gene.” There can be no assurance tlyadfathese applications will be granted.

Seasonality and Weather Conditions

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioreigp industry, is highly seasonal, with seasopnafétrying in
different geographic markets. Over the three-yesiod ended September 30, 2007, the average re¥entie
quarters ended December 31, March 31, June 3G5epimber 30 represented approximately 19%, 26%, 8ad
25%, respectively, of our average annual revenith the exception of Florida, we generally real&gnificantly
lower sales and higher levels of inventories amated short-term borrowings, in the quarterly pesiending
December 31 and March 31. The onset of the publd &Bnd recreation shows in January stimulatesdades and
allows us to reduce our inventory levels and relatgort-term borrowings throughout the remaindeheffiscal
year.

Our business is also subject to weather patterhighwnay adversely affect our results of operatiéius
example, drought conditions (or merely reducedfadlifevels) or excessive rain, may close areaihgdbcations o
render boating dangerous or inconvenient, therebaiting customer demand for our products. In tddij
unseasonably cool weather and prolonged winteritond may lead to a shorter selling season inageibcations.
Hurricanes and other storms could result in disomgtof our operations or damage to our boat irorézd and
facilities, as was the case during fiscal 2005 2006 when Florida and other markets were affecyedumerous
hurricanes. Although our geographic diversity kely to reduce the overall impact to us of adveveather
conditions in any one market area, these conditighigontinue to represent potential, material acbe risks to us
and our future financial performance.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasopervision, and licensing under various fedestake, and
local statutes, ordinances, and regulations. Windébelieve that we maintain all requisite licensed permits and
are in compliance with all applicable federal, st@nd local regulations, there can be no assuthateve will be
able to maintain all requisite licenses and perniite failure to satisfy those and other regulateuirements
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition, and results of operatiofise adoption of
additional laws, rules, and regulations could &lawve a material adverse effect on our businessovafederal,
state, and local regulatory agencies, includingQbeupational Safety and Health AdministrationQ@HA, the
United States Environmental Protection Agency, BAEand similar federal and local agencies, haxisdiction
over the operation of our dealerships, repair itéesl, and other operations with respect to matach as consumer
protection, workers’ safety, and laws regardinggetion of the environment, including air, watandasoil.

The EPA has various air emissions regulations fitlb@ard marine engines that impose more strictsans
standards for two-cycle, gasoline outboard marimgrees. Emissions from such engines must be reduged
approximately 75% over a nine-year period beginmiity the 1998 model year. The majority of the @maiul
marine engines we sell are manufactured by Mermasine. Mercury Marine’s product line of low-emisai
engines, including the OptiMax, Verado and otheirfstroke outboards, have already achieved the & Rr@ndated
2006 emission levels. Any increased costs of primguengines resulting from EPA standards or thbilita of our
manufacturers to comply with EPA requirements, dddve a material adverse effect on our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate undergubstorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of vario
petroleum products. The USTs are generally subjefetderal, state, and local laws and regulatibas tequire
testing and upgrading of USTs and remediation afaminated soils and groundwater resulting frorkilgaUSTSs.
In addition, if leakage from company-owned or opedldJSTs migrates onto the property of others, \ag be
subject to civil liability to third parties for reediation costs or other damages. Based on histexperience,
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we believe that our liabilities associated with U83ting, upgrades, and remediation are unlikelyaiee a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or operating résu

As with boat dealerships generally, and parts &ndice operations in particular, our business imgslthe use, handling,
storage, and contracting for recycling or dispa$dlazardous or toxic substances or wastes, inadueinvironmentally
sensitive materials, such as motor oil, waste moiland filters, transmission fluid, antifreezegdn, waste paint and lacquer
thinner, batteries, solvents, lubricants, degrepagents, gasoline, and diesel fuels.

Accordingly, we are subject to regulation by fedlestate, and local authorities establishing resments for the use,
management, handling, and disposal of these mistaria health and environmental quality standadd, liability related
thereto, and providing penalties for violationdlodse standards. We are also subject to laws,ardées, and regulations
governing investigation and remediation of contaation at facilities we operate to which we sendandaus or toxic
substances or wastes for treatment, recyclingispodal.

We do not believe we have any material environnidiatailities or that compliance with environmentals, ordinances,
and regulations will, individually or in the aggegg, have a material adverse effect on our busifiaasicial condition, or
results of operations. However, soil and groundwed@tamination has been known to exist at cepiedperties owned or
leased by us. We have also been required and nthg iimture be required to remove aboveground adérground storage
tanks containing hazardous substances or wastds. gg&stain of our properties, specific releasegaifoleum have been or
are in the process of being remedied in accordatitbestate and federal guidelines. We are monitptire soil and
groundwater as required by applicable state aner&duidelines. In addition, the shareholdersefdacquired dealers have
indemnified us for specific environmental issuemnidfied on environmental site assessments perfibtmgeus as part of the
acquisitions. We maintain insurance for pollutdetoup and removal. The coverage pays for the esgseio extract
pollutants from land or water at the insured propef the discharge, dispersal, seepage, migratielease, or escape of the
pollutants is caused by or results from a coverdse of loss. We may also have additional storageltability insurance
and “Superfund” coverage where applicable. In aoidjtcertain of our retail locations are locatedaaterways that are
subject to federal or state laws regulating navigaaters (including oil pollution prevention), fignd wildlife, and other
matters.

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action repect to prior
historical site activities on these properties besn completed in accordance with federal and EtateAlso, two of our
properties are within the boundaries of a “Supetfgite, although neither property has been nexjgected to be identified
as a contributor to the contamination in the avéa, however, do not believe that these environniésgaes will result in ar
material liabilities to us.

Additionally, certain states have required or aresidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational boat.
While such licensing requirements are not expetidue unduly restrictive, regulations may discoeragtential first-time
buyers, thereby limiting future sales, which coattversely affect our business, financial conditenmd results of operations.

Product Liability

The products we sell or service may expose us tienfial liabilities for personal injury or propertiamage claims relatil
to the use of those products. Historically, thehetson of product liability claims has not matdiyaaffected our business.
Our manufacturers generally maintain product ligbihsurance, and we maintain third-party prodiattility insurance,
which we believe to be adequate. However, we magmance legal claims in excess of our insuraneerage, and those
claims may not be covered by insurance. Furthernaong significant claims against us could adverséfigct our business,
financial condition, and results of operations agsllt in negative publicity. Excessive insurankeénes also could result in
increased insurance premiums.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from reatien businesses
seeking to attract consumers’ leisure time andrelimmary spending dollars, the recreational bodtstry itself is highly
fragmented, resulting in intense competition fastomers, quality products, boat show
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space, and suitable retail locations. We rely ¢erdain extent on boat shows to generate salesin@bitity to
participate in boat shows in our existing or taegemnarkets could have a material adverse effeouombusiness,
financial condition, and results of operations.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @égaland, with respect to sales of marine equipnpamts,
and accessories, with national specialty marineest@atalog retailers, sporting goods stores naask merchants.
Dealer competition continues to increase basedh®nuality of available products, the price andigadf the
products, and attention to customer service. Tisesggnificant competition both within markets warently serve
and in new markets that we may enter. We competadh of our markets with retailers of brands atba@and
engines we do not sell in that market. In addite®yeral of our competitors, especially thosersgltioating
accessories, are large national or regional chhatshave substantial financial, marketing, anéotkesources.
However, we believe that our integrated corpornafi@structure and marketing and sales capabilitiescost
structure, and our nationwide presence enable csrpete effectively against these companies. #rsales of
used boats is an additional significant sourceoofietition.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information concewgpieach of our executive officers:

Name & PLition

William H. McGill Jr. 64 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive
Officer, and Directo

Michael H. McLamb 42 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, and Directt

Kurt M. Frahn 39 Vice President of Finance and Treaslt

Jack P. Ezze 37 Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer, and Coliar

Edward A. Russe 47 Vice President of Operatiol

Michael J. Aiello 51 Vice Presiden

Anthony M. Aisquith 40 Vice Presiden

William H. McGill Jr. has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Maviag since January 23, 1998 and as
the Chairman of the Board and as a director ofconnpany since March 6, 1998. Mr. McGill servedtesRresider
of our company from January 23, 1988 until Septar8h@000 and re-assumed the position on July 0220
Mr. McGill was the principal owner and presidentGilfwind USA, Inc., one of our operating subsi@ar from
1973 until its merger with us.

Michael H. McLambhas served as Executive Vice President of our cosnpimce October 2002, as Chief
Financial Officer since January 23, 1998, as Saryetince April 5, 1998, and as a director of cmpany since
November 1, 2003. Mr. McLamb served as Vice Predidad Treasurer of our company from January 288
until October 22, 2002. Mr. McLamb, a certified fiataccountant, was employed by Arthur Andersen [itdPn
December 1987 to December 1997, serving most rigcestr senior manager.

Kurt M. Frahnhas served as Vice President of Finance and Trerastiour company since October 22, 2002.
Mr. Frahn served as Director of Taxes and Acquisgiof our company from May 15, 1998 until OctoB2y 2002.
Mr. Frahn was employed by Arthur Andersen LLP fr6eptember 3, 1991 until May 15, 1998, serving most
recently as a tax consulting manager.

Jack P. Ezzelhas served as Vice President and Chief Accountiffiged of our company since October 22,
2002 and as Corporate Controller of our compangesitune 1, 1999. Mr. Ezzell served as AssistantrGiter from
January 13, 1998 until June 1, 1999. Mr. Ezzatkuified public accountant, was employed by ArtAndersen
LLP from August 1996 until January 1998, servingstmecently as a senior auditor.

Edward A. Russelias served as Vice President of Operations sinceliv006. Mr. Russell has been a Vice
President of our company since October 22, 2002 Rvssell has served as the Regional Manager dflouda
operations since August 1, 2002. Prior to that, Rirssell served as the District President for cemttal and West
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Florida operations from March 1998 until Augus0p2. Mr. Russell was an owner and General Salemlyr of Gulfwind
USA Inc., one of our operating subsidiaries, nolledaMarineMax of Central Florida, from 1984 urit§ merger with our
company in March 1998.

Michael J. Aiellohas served as Vice President of our company sicteb®r 22, 2002. Mr. Aiello has served as the
Regional Manager of the state of New Jersey andgnding areas since 1999 and was a principal oameroperator of
Merit Marine Inc., one of our operating subsidiarieow called MarineMax of Mid-Atlantic, from 198til its merger with
our company in March 1999.

Anthony M. Aisquitlhas served as Vice President of our company simeefiber I, 2003. Mr. Aisquith has served as the
Regional Manager of our Georgia, Carolinas, Teand, California operations since August 1, 2000,d4dr, 2002,
March 15, 2003, and March 1, 2004, respectively. Msquith previously served as the Store Manageuo Tampa, Florida
location from October 1, 1997 until August 1, 2@0® as a salesperson in our Clearwater, Floridgitmtfrom June 18,
1995 until October 1, 1997. Mr. Aisquith joined @ampany on June 18, 1995 after 10 years of expegian the auto
industry.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our success depends to a significant extent on¢batinued popularity and reputation for quality ahe boating products
of our manufacturers, particularly Brunswick’s SeRay, Meridian and Hatteras boat lines, Ferretti Gup’s Ferretti
Yachts, Riva, Pershing, and Bertram product lineschAzimut-Benetti Group’s Azimut and Atlantis prodts.

Approximately 57% of our revenue in fiscal 2007ulésd from sales of new boats manufactured by Buicils including
approximately 42% from Brunswick’s Sea Ray divisamd approximately 5% from Brunswick’s Hatteras Madivision.
The remainder of our fiscal 2007 revenue from neatlsales resulted from sales of products frormédd number of other
manufacturers, none of which accounted for mora #@%o of our revenue. Any adverse change in ttenfiral condition,
production efficiency, product development, tecligidal advancement, management, marketplace acoepéad marketing
capabilities of our manufacturers, particularly Bswick given our reliance on Sea Ray, Meridian, ldatteras, would have
substantial adverse impact on our business. Adidilip, given the revenue generated by each yacht@ya-yacht sale, any
adverse change in the financial condition, produrcéfficiency, product development, managementkatptace acceptance,
and marketing capabilities of Ferretti Group woli/e a substantial adverse impact on our business.

To ensure adequate inventory levels to supporegpansion, it may be necessary for Brunswick ahdrananufacturers
to increase production levels or allocate a grgagecentage of their production to us. The intefampor discontinuance of
the operations of Brunswick or other manufactucensld cause us to experience shortfalls, disruptiondelays with respect
to needed inventory. Although we believe that adégjalternate sources would be available that ceylhce any
manufacturer other than Brunswick as a productcuhose alternate sources may not be availalfe dime of any
interruption, and alternative products may not a&lable at comparable quality and prices.

Through our principal operating subsidiaries, wentaén dealer agreements with Brunswick covering Bay products.
Each dealer agreement has a multi-year term andda®for the lowest product prices charged by3ba Ray division of
Brunswick from time to time to other domestic SeeyRealers. These terms are subject to

« the dealer meeting all the requirements and canditof Sea R¢'s applicable programs; ai
« the right of Brunswick in good faith to charge lkessprices to other deale

— to meet existing competitive circumstanc

— for unusual and nc¢-ordinary business circumstances

— for limited duration promotional prograr

Each dealer agreement designates a designatecagbam territory for the dealer, which is excluesto the dealer as
long as the dealer is not in breach of the matetiégations and performance standards under the

23




Table of Contents

agreement and Sea Ray’s then current materialipsland programs following notice and the expiratibany applicable
cure periods without cure.

Through certain of our operating subsidiaries, \8e aaintain dealer agreements with Hatteras cogdtlatteras
products. Each agreement allows Hatteras to rgwises at any time, and such new prices will sugsggrevious prices.
Pursuant to the agreement, we must bear any lessegur as a result of such price changes andrmoagecover from
Hatteras for any losses. In addition, certain afaperating subsidiaries may not represent manurfact or product lines that
compete directly with Hatteras without its priorittemn consent.

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitir,became the exclusive dealer for Azimut-Benettiup’'s Azimut
product line. The Azimut dealer agreement provia@gographic territory to promote the product &ne to network with th
appropriate clientele through various independecdtions designated for Azimut retail sales.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than the Sea Ray division of Brunkwimder renewable
annual dealer agreements. These agreements donmtatrcany contractual provisions concerning proguwicing or required
purchasing levels. Pricing is generally establistieé model year basis, but is subject to changigeimanufacturer’s sole
discretion. Any change or termination of theserageaments for any reason could adversely affectymtoavailability and
cost and our financial performance.

Our operations depend upon a number of factors titg to or affecting consumer spending for luxuryogds, such as
recreational boats.

Unfavorable local, regional, national, or globabeemic developments or uncertainties regardingréuticonomic
prospects could reduce consumer spending in thkatsawe serve and adversely affect our businesssi@oer spending on
luxury goods also may decline as a result of loearsumer confidence levels, even if prevailing emic conditions are
favorable. In an economic downturn, consumer digmrary spending levels generally decline, at timessilting in
disproportionately large reductions in the sal&ugtiry goods. Similarly, rising interest rates abhlve a negative impact on
the ability or willingness of consumers to finarmat purchases, which could also adversely affectbility to sell our
products and impact the profitability of our fin@n@nd insurance activities. For example, lower gsoves spending adversely
affected our business in fiscal 2007. Local inflcesy such as corporate downsizing and military beeengs, also could
adversely affect our operations in certain markéts.may be unable to maintain our profitability idgrany period of
adverse economic conditions or low consumer confideChanges in federal and state tax laws, suah amposition of
luxury taxes on new boat purchases, and stock mpetéormance also could influence consumers’ d@assto purchase
products we offer and could have a negative efiaatur sales. For example, during 1991 and 199fetheral government
imposed a luxury tax on new recreational boats satles prices in excess of $100,000, which coirmcwii¢h a sharp decline
in boating industry sales from a high of more tBa.9 billion in the late 1980s to a low of $10illidn in 1992.

General economic conditions and competitive facttinat impact the recreational boating industry calinhibit our
growth and negatively impact our profitability.

General economic conditions, consumer spendingmpett federal tax policies, interest rate levatsl #he cost and
availability of fuel can impact overall boat purska. Economic conditions in areas in which we dpeataalerships,
particularly Florida in which we generated 55%, 4&¥d 44% of our revenue during fiscal 2005, 2@0&l 2007
respectively, can have a major impact on our ofmerat We also believe that the level of boat puselsehas been adversely
affected by increased competition from other rettweal activities, perceived hassles of boat owmigrsand relatively poor
customer service and education throughout thel tetat industry. Although our strategy addressesynwd these industry
factors and we have expanded our operations dperigds of stagnant or declining industry trentis,ayclical nature of the
recreational boating industry or the lack of indugirowth could adversely affect our business,riial condition, or results
of operations in the future.
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Our success depends, in part, on our ability to tiane to make successful acquisitions and to intatg the
operations of acquired dealers and each dealer weqldre in the future.

Since March 1, 1998, we have acquired 20 recrealtiovat dealers, two boat brokerage operationstvaod
full-service yacht repair facilities. Each acquidkghler operated independently prior to its actjaisby us. Our
success depends, in part, on our ability to coetioumake successful acquisitions and to intedhet®perations of
acquired dealers and each dealer we acquire ifuthies, including centralizing certain functionsaohieve cost
savings and pursuing programs and processes thabpe cooperation and the sharing of opportunéies
resources among our dealerships. We may not be@blersee the combined entity efficiently orrgplement
effectively our growth and operating strategiestfi@mextent that we successfully pursue our adiprisstrategy,
our resulting growth will place significant additial demands on our management and infrastructunefaure to
pursue successfully our acquisition strategiesperate effectively the combined entity could havaaerial
adverse effect on our rate of growth and opergigrormance.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays freqtly encountered in connection with rapid expansio
through acquisitions could inhibit our growth and egatively impact our profitability.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additional reciaaal boat dealers involves significant risks. T$timtegy
entails reviewing and potentially reorganizing doe business operations, corporate infrastrucacesystems, al
financial controls. Unforeseen expenses, diffiegltiand delays frequently encountered in conneuetitinrapid
expansion through acquisitions could inhibit ouswth and negatively impact our profitability. We yriae unable
to identify suitable acquisition candidates or donplete the acquisitions of candidates that wetifjerincreased
competition for acquisition candidates or increaasking prices by acquisition candidates may ireggairchase
prices for acquisitions to levels beyond our finahcapability or to levels that would not resuitthe returns
required by our acquisition criteria. Acquisitioiso may become more difficult in the future asagquire more of
the most attractive dealers. In addition, we magoenter difficulties in integrating the operatiafsaacquired deale
with our own operations or managing acquired dsgeofitably without substantial costs, delaysoibrer
operational or financial problems.

We may issue common or preferred stock and indostantial indebtedness in making future acquisitidine
size, timing, and integration of any future acdigsis may cause substantial fluctuations in opegatésults from
quarter to quarter. Consequently, operating re$oitany quarter may not be indicative of the resstilat may be
achieved for any subsequent quarter or for a sl year. These fluctuations could adverselycafftee market
price of our common stock.

Our ability to continue to grow through the acqtiisi of additional dealers will depend upon varidastors,
including the following:

« the availability of suitable acquisition candidad¢sttractive purchase price

« the ability to compete effectively for availablegagsition opportunities

« the availability of funds or common stock with dfsient market price to complete the acquisitic
« the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturegovernmental approvals; a

« the absence of one or more manufacturers attematimgpose unsatisfactory restrictions on us innemtion
with their approval of acquisition

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequertigage in discussions with various recreationat bealers
regarding their potential acquisition by us. Ingeation with these discussions, we and each pategquisition
candidate exchange confidential operational arehfifal information, conduct due diligence inquiriasd consider
the structure, terms, and conditions of the pod¢atquisition. In certain cases, the prospectoepissition candidat
agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition ity other party for a specific period of time, dsams an option to
purchase the prospective dealer for a designated guring a specific time, and agrees to takerabBons
designed to enhance the possibility of the acdaisisuch as preparing audited financial informatmd converting
its accounting system to the system specified byatential acquisition discussions frequently tplexe over a
long period of time and involve difficult busindssegration and other issues, including
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in some cases, management succession and relatiedsnas a result of these and other factors,ralar of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreements@e not consummated.

We may be required to obtain the consent of Brunskwand various other manufacturers prior to the agigition of other
dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitions, afiacturers may consider many factors, includingfmancial
condition and ownership structure. Manufacturess ahay impose conditions on granting their appf@l acquisitions,
including a limitation on the number of their dealéhat we may acquire. Our ability to meet maniufigss’ requirements for
approving future acquisitions will have a direcatieg on our ability to complete acquisitions afié@ our growth strategy.
There can be no assurance that a manufacturematiterminate its dealer agreement, refuse to reétsegealer agreement,
refuse to approve future acquisitions, or take roftetion that could have a material adverse effaabur acquisition program.

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick have ae@gent extending through June 2015 that provigeseeess for
our continued growth through the acquisition ofiiddal Sea Ray boat dealers that desire to beiatjby us. Under the
agreement, acquisitions of Sea Ray dealers withbially agreed upon by us and Sea Ray with redd®mrdforts to be max
to include a balance of Sea Ray dealers that haee successful and those that have not been. Teeragnt provides that
Sea Ray will not unreasonably withhold its congerany proposed acquisition of a Sea Ray dealeisbgubject to the
conditions set forth in the agreement. Among othings, the agreement requires us to provide SgaMih a business plan
for each proposed acquisition, including historfi@dncial and five-year projected financial infation regarding the
acquisition candidate; marketing and advertisiramp] service capabilities and managerial and g@fonnel; information
regarding the ability of candidate to achieve penance standards within designated periods; amdrrtion regarding the
success of our previous acquisitions of Sea Raleded he agreement also contemplates Sea Rayimgagigood faith
determination whether the acquisition would betsrbiest interest based on our dedication and fotresources on the Sea
Ray brand and Sea Ray’s consideration of any ad\affects that the approval would have on the tieguterritory
configuration and adjacent or other dealers salddfze absence of any violation of applicable lawgghts granted by Sea
Ray to others.

Our growth strategy also entails expanding our pcbtines and geographic scope by obtaining additidistribution
rights from our existing and new manufacturers. Mé&y not be able to secure additional distributights or obtain suitable
alternative sources of supply if we are unableltmio such distribution rights. The inability topand our product lines and
geographic scope by obtaining additional distribitights could have a material adverse effechergrowth and
profitability of our business.

Boat manufacturers exercise substantial control oair business.

We depend on our dealer agreements. Through degrleements, boat manufacturers, including Brunsveixgrcise
significant control over their dealers, restriatitinto specified locations, and retain approvaltsgiver changes in
management and ownership, among other things. ditinaation of our dealer agreements with most rfeiurers,
including Brunswick, depends upon, among otherghimur achieving stated goals for customer satisfaratings and
market share penetration in the market served éwfiplicable dealership. Failure to meet the cust@atisfaction, market
share goals, and other conditions set forth indealer agreement could have various consequemodgiling the following:

« the termination of the dealer agreem

« the imposition of additional conditions in subsegfugealer agreement

« limitations on boat inventory allocatior

 reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty waekormed by the deale

* |oss of certain manufacturer to dealer incentiog:

denial of approval of future acquisitior
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Our dealer agreements with certain manufactunecfyding Brunswick, do not give us the exclusiyghtito
sell those manufacturers’ products within a givengyaphical area. Accordingly, a manufacturer,uditig
Brunswick, could authorize another dealer to starew dealership in proximity to one or more of lmawations, or
an existing dealer could move a dealership to atioc that would be directly competitive with uhebe events
could have a material adverse effect on our conipeosition and financial performance.

The failure to receive rebates and other dealeréntives on inventory purchases or retail sales abul
substantially reduce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that providemives for dealers to purchase and sell particadat
makes and models or for consumers to buy partitidat makes or models. Any eliminations, reductions
limitations, or other changes relating to rebateoentive programs that have the effect of reduie benefits we
receive could increase the effective cost of ot lparchases, reduce our margins and competitisigiqm, and
have a material adverse effect on our financidigoerance.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure sigeaht additional capital, the amount of which wilepend
upon the size, timing, and structure of future adgitions and our working capital and general corpate needs

If we finance future acquisitions in whole or inrparough the issuance of common stock or seesriti
convertible into or exercisable for common stockisng stockholders will experience dilution irethioting power
of their common stock and earnings per share doelldegatively impacted. The extent to which we talable and
willing to use our common stock for acquisitiondlwepend on the market value of our common staoki, the
willingness of potential sellers to accept our camnstock as full or partial consideration. Our iiigbto use our
common stock as consideration, to generate caghdperations, or to obtain additional funding thghwebt or
equity financings in order to pursue our acquisifwogram could materially limit our growth.

Any borrowings made to finance future acquisitiongor operations could make us more vulnerable to
downturn in our operating results, a downturn iarexmic conditions, or increases in interest ratebarrowings
that are subject to interest rate fluctuationsuif cash flow from operations is insufficient toeheur debt service
requirements, we could be required to sell adddi@guity securities, refinance our obligationsdispose of assets
in order to meet our debt service requirementadutition, our credit arrangements contain finanaral operational
covenants and other restrictions with which we neastply, including limitations on capital expend#s and the
incurrence of additional indebtedness. Adequatenfimg may not be available if and when we need ihay not be
available on terms acceptable to us. The failu@btain sufficient financing on favorable terms aadditions coul
have a material adverse effect on our growth prispend our business, financial; condition, andlte®f
operations.

Our current revolving credit facility provides adi of credit with asset-based borrowing availabiit up to
$500 million and allows us $20 million in traditiaifloorplan borrowings. We have pledged variousuf assets
including boat inventories, accounts receivablejmgent, and fixtures, to secure borrowings underooedit
facility. While we believe we will continue to oliteadequate financing from lenders, such finanaivay not be
available to us.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of amag new locations and offering new products invelvisk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiring boaakges, we intend to continue to pursue a stratégyawth
through opening new retail locations and offeriegvrproducts in our existing and new territoriescémplishing
these goals for expansion will depend upon a nurabfactors, including the following:

« our ability to identify new markets in which we caltain distribution rights to sell our existingantditional
product lines

« our ability to lease or construct suitable faahtiat a reasonable cost in existing or new mar

* our ability to hire, train, and retain qualifiedrpennel;
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« the timely integration of new retail locations irgristing operations

« our ability to achieve adequate market penetraidiavorable operating margins without the acqoisiof
existing dealers; an

« our financial resource

Our dealer agreements with Brunswick require Bruok\s consent to open, close, or change retail locdhiat
sell Sea Ray products, and other dealer agreergengsally contain similar provisions. We may notle to open
and operate new retail locations or introduce newdgpct lines on a timely or profitable basis. Moreq the costs
associated with opening new retail locations awithicing new product lines may adversely affectprofitability.

As a result of these growth strategies, we exmeekpend significant time and effort in opening acduiring
new retail locations and introducing new produ€tar systems, procedures, controls, and financ&lueces may
not be adequate to support our expanding operafidresinability to manage our growth effectivelyut have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations.

Our planned growth also will impose significant addesponsibilities on members of senior managearaht
require us to identify, recruit, and integrate éiddal senior level managers. We may not be abidentify, hire, or
train suitable additions to management.

Our business, as well as the entire recreationahbing industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonglitarying in
different geographic markets. In addition, weatheonditions may adversely impact our business.

During the three-year period ended September 307,28 average revenue for the quarterly periodee
December 31, March 31, June 30, and Septembempd@sented 19%, 26%, 30%, and 25%, respectivelguof
average annual revenues. With the exception ofddpwe generally realize significantly lower saleshe quarterl
periods ending December 31 and March 31. The arigbe public boat and recreation shows in Janstinyulates
boat sales and allows us to reduce our inventagideand related short-term borrowings throughbetremainder
of the fiscal year. Our business could become aukisily more seasonal as we acquire dealers frexate in colde
regions of the United States.

Weather conditions may adversely impact our opsgatesults. For example, drought conditions, reduce
rainfall levels, and excessive rain may force b@ptireas to close or render boating dangerousconuenient,
thereby curtailing customer demand for our produatsiddition, unseasonably cool weather and pg#dnwinter
conditions may lead to shorter selling seasongitam locations. Hurricanes and other storms coegdlt in the
disruption of our operations or damage to our latntories and facilities as was the case durisgaf 2005 and
2006 when Florida and other markets were affecyedumerous hurricanes. Many of our dealershipsheslts to
customers for use on reservoirs, thereby subjectimgusiness to the continued viability of thesservoirs for
boating use. Although our geographic diversity andfuture geographic expansion will reduce theralvémpact
on us of adverse weather conditions in any one etatea, weather conditions will continue to repnégpotential
material adverse risks to us and our future opggaierformance. As a result of the foregoing ameofactors, our
operating results in some future quarters couldddew the expectations of stock market analystsiawebtors.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from nooaking
recreation businesses seeking to attract disceatyspending dollars, the recreational boat ingustelf is highly
fragmented and involves intense competition fotamers, product distribution rights, and suitalgail locations,
particularly on or near waterways. Competition @ages during periods of stagnant industry growth.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @aland, with respect to sales of marine partessories,
and equipment, with national specialty marine pants accessories stores, catalog retailers, spagtinds stores,
and mass merchants. Competition among boat desleesed on the quality of available products ptiee and
value of the products, and attention to customesige There is significant competition both withirarkets we
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currently serve and in new markets that we mayreife compete in each of our markets with retaibdrigrands of
boats and engines we do not sell in that markeddttition, several of our competitors, especidilyse selling
marine equipment and accessories, are large nhtonegional chains that have substantial finanomarketing,
and other resources. Private sales of used bgatssent an additional source of competition.

Due to various matters, including environmentalagns, permitting and zoning requirements and cditigre
for waterfront real estate, some markets in thaddnGtates have experienced an increased waisinfipti marina
and storage availability. In general, the market&lich we currently operate are not experiencimgunusual
difficulties. However, marine retail activity coultk adversely effected in markets that do not Isaficient marine
and storage availability to satisfy demand.

The availability of boat insurance is critical tous success.

The ability of our customers to secure reasonatitydable boat insurance that is satisfactory twégs that
finance our customer’s purchase is critical to surcess. Historically, affordable boat insurancebieen available.
With the hurricanes that have impacted the statflmfda and other markets over the past sevewralsy@surance
rates have escalated and insurance coverage haméacore difficult to obtain. Any difficulty of ctemers to
obtain affordable boat insurance could adversdcabur business.

We depend on income from financing, insurance, aextended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referral faEsived from the placement or marketing of various
F&I products, consisting of customer financing,urence products, and extended service contraetsntst
significant component of which is the participatemd other fees resulting from our sale of custdinancing
contracts. During fiscal 2007, F&I products accaahtor approximately 3.6% of our revenue.

The availability of financing for our boat purchesand the level of participation and other feegeaeive in
connection with such financing depend on the paldicagreement between us and the lender and thentuate
environment. Lenders may impose terms in their Boahcing arrangements with us that may be untablerto us
or our customers, resulting in reduced demand dorcastomer financing programs and lower partiégraand othe
fees.

The reduction of profit margins on sales of F&I gwets or the lack of demand for or the unavailgbdf these
products could have a material adverse effect oroperating margins.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, upon the eongrefforts and abilities of our executive offiseAlthough
we have an employment agreement with certain oegacutive officers, we cannot assure that thes¢har
executive personnel will remain with us. Our exgagdperations may require us to add additionatettee
personnel in the future. As a result of our de@dizied operating strategy, we also rely on the rgangent teams of
our operating subsidiaries. In addition, we likelyl depend on the senior management of any sicgnifi businesses
we acquire in the future. The loss of the servafasne or more of these key employees before walaleeto attract
and retain qualified replacement personnel couleesily affect our business.

The products we sell or service may expose us temt@l liability for personal injury or property dmage
claims relating to the use of those products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell generallyntaan product liability insurance. We also mainttiird-
party product liability insurance that we belieeebe adequate. We may experience claims that amorered by o
that are in excess of our insurance coverage. fidteltion of any significant claims against us ldogsubject us to
damages, result in higher insurance costs, and barrusiness reputation with potential customers.
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Environmental and other regulatory issues may impaeir operations.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasopervision, and licensing under various fedetake, and
local statutes, ordinances, and regulations. Tiheréeto satisfy those and other regulatory requieats could have
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations.

Various federal, state, and local regulatory agesiéncluding OSHA or the EPA, and similar fedenadl local
agencies, have jurisdiction over the operationusfdealerships, repair facilities, and other operat with respect
to matters such as consumer protection, workefstyseand laws regarding protection of the envireninincluding
air, water, and soil. The EPA recently promulgagedssions regulations for outboard marine enginasimpose
stricter emissions standards for two-cycle, gasatintboard marine engines. Emissions from suchmesgiust be
reduced by approximately 75% over a nine-year pdrgginning with the 1998 model year. The majooityhe
outboard marine engines we sell are manufacturdddrgury Marine. Mercury Marine’s product line of¥-
emission engines, including the OptiMax, Verado atieér four-stroke outboards, have already achi¢hvedEPA’s
mandated 2006 emission levels. Any increased cdsigoducing engines resulting from EPA standardhe
inability of our manufacturers to comply with EP@quirements, could have a material adverse effecuo
business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate USTstfer storage of various petroleum products. USTganerall
subject to federal, state, and local laws and egguls that require testing and upgrading of USTtr@amediation ¢
contaminated soils and groundwater resulting freaking USTs. In addition, we may be subject tol diability to
third parties for remediation costs or other damnsafjkeeakage from our owned or operated USTs mégranto the
property of others.

Our business involves the use, handling, storawg®cantracting for recycling or disposal of hazarsior toxic
substances or wastes, including environmentallgisea materials, such as motor oil, waste motband filters,
transmission fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste pamd lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubrgamtgreasing
agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels. Accordinglyaveesubject to regulation by federal, state, andllauthorities
establishing investigation and health and enviramadeguality standards, and liability related therend providing
penalties for violations of those standards.

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, and régntagoverning investigation and remediation of
contamination at facilities we operate or to whiod send hazardous or toxic substances or wastéeéiment,
recycling, or disposal. In particular, the Compirediee Environmental Response, Compensation andlityafsct,
or CERCLA or “Superfund,” imposes joint, strict,caseveral liability on

* owners or operators of facilities at, from, or tbigh a release of hazardous substances has occ
 parties who generated hazardous substances thatreleased at such facilities; &
« parties who transported or arranged for the tramiafon of hazardous substances to such facili

A majority of states have adopted “Superfund” segicomparable to and, in some cases, more sttittygm
CERCLA. If we were to be found to be a responsjiaietly under CERCLA or a similar state statute, weld be
held liable for all investigative and remedial soassociated with addressing such contaminaticaddition, claims
alleging personal injury or property damage mayptmight against us as a result of alleged expdsunazardous
substances resulting from our operations. In amfuittertain of our retail locations are locatedvaterways that are
subject to federal or state laws regulating navigaaters (including oil pollution prevention), fignd wildlife, and
other matters.

Soil and groundwater contamination has been knovexist at certain properties owned or leased by\es
have also been required and may in the future dpgined to remove aboveground and underground sdeatks
containing hazardous substances or wastes. Astaircef our properties, specific releases of getrm have been
or are in the process of being remediated in accae with state and federal guidelines. We are toong the soil
and groundwater as required by applicable statdedwatal guidelines. We also may have additiorabgte tank
liability insurance and “Superfundloverage where applicable. Environmental laws agdlations are complex al
subject to frequent change. Compliance with amended, or more stringent laws or regulations, nstriet

30




Table of Contents

interpretations of existing laws, or the futurecdigery of environmental conditions may require &ddal
expenditures by us, and such expenditures may beriaia

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action regpect
to prior historical site activities on these prdje= has been completed in accordance with fedachktate law.
Also, two of our properties are within the boundarof a “Superfund” site, although neither propéyg been
identified as a contributor to the contaminatiorhia area.

Additionally, certain states have required or amesidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational
boat. These regulations could discourage potelntigrs, thereby limiting future sales and adveraéfigcting our
business, financial condition, and results of opens.

Fuel prices and supply may affect our business.

All of the recreational boats we sell are powergdligsel or gasoline engines. Consequently, amrirgéon in
the supply, or a significant increase in the pdcéax on the sale of fuel on a regional or natidr@esis could have a
material adverse effect on our sales and operagisigits. At various times in the past, diesel @ofjae fuel has
been difficult to obtain. The supply of fuels mayibterrupted, rationing may be imposed, or theedf or tax on
fuels may significantly increase in the future.

We must evaluate goodwill and identifiable intandgbassets for impairment annually and we would rgoize
an impairment loss if the carrying amount of goodior an identifiable intangible asset exceeds f&sr value.

Intangible assets and goodwill represent the exaedge purchase price of businesses acquiredthediair
value of the net tangible assets acquired at tteafaacquisition. We have determined that our msagtificantly
acquired specifically identifiable intangible assete dealer agreements, which are indefinite-limhgibles.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets arecartted for in accordance with Statement of Findncia
Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinati¢8FAS 141), and Statement of Financial Accountin
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intangibkséts” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that all lassin
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be astamlifor using the purchase method of accountingidentifiable
intangible assets acquired in a business combmagaecognized as assets and reported separatelygbodwill.
SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and indefinite-thiatangible assets no longer be amortized, btk dmstested for
impairment at least annually and whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that the cayyéue may
not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of amntifiable intangible asset or goodwill exceeddatsvalue, we
would recognize an impairment loss. We measurepatgntial impairment based on various businessatialo
methodologies, including a projected discountedh dlsv method. We completed the annual impairmest ¢tluring
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, based on finahitiformation as of the third quarter of fiscaloZQ which resulted
in no impairment of goodwill or identifiable intaide assets. To date, we have not recognized apgirment of
goodwill or identifiable intangible assets. Priorthe adoption of SFAS 142, all purchase pricexiress of the
tangible assets acquired was recorded as goodwilha identifiable intangible assets were recoghitdentifiable
intangible assets and net goodwill amounted to%p@illion and $23.7 million, respectively, as ofpfsember 30,
2007.

Impairment of the identifiable intangible assetgoodwill or regulatory action that changes the ainpent
testing methodology, requires amortization, or aeasff of identifiable intangible assets or goodwilagnmaterially
and adversely affect the financial position of company. A reduction in net income resulting frdra impairment
of identifiable intangible assets or goodwill magvk an adverse impact upon the market price ofommon stock

The market price of our common stock could be sutbj wide fluctuations as a result of many factors
Factors that could affect the trading price of cmmmon stock include the following:

« variations in operating resuli
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the thin trading volume and relatively small pulfl@at of our common stocl
« the level and success of our acquisition progradhreaw store opening
* variations in san-store sales

« the success of dealership integrati

« relationships with manufacture!

» changes in earnings estimates published by ana

« general economic, political, and market conditic

« seasonality and weather conditio

« governmental policies and regulatio

« the performance of the recreational boat industiyaneral; an

« factors relating to suppliers and competits

In addition, market demand for smabpitalization stocks, and price and volume flutiares in the stock market unrela
to our performance could result in significant fluetions in market price of our common stock.

The performance of our common stock could advera#éct our ability to raise equity in the publiarkets and
adversely affect our acquisition program.

The issuance of additional common stock in the fatuincluding shares that we may issue pursuanistock-based
grants, including stock option grants, and futurecquisitions, may result in dilution in the net tarlgie book value per
share of our common stock.

Our board of directors has the legal power andaiithto determine the terms of an offering of #saof our capital
stock, or securities convertible into or exchandee&dr these shares, to the extent of our sharasithiorized and unissued
capital stock.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for fue sale.

As of September 30, 2007, there were outstandirj788864 shares of our common stock. Substanadlllyf these
shares are freely tradable without restrictionustifer registration under the securities laws, ssleeld by an “affiliate” of
our company, as that term is defined in Rule 14dienthe securities laws. Shares held by affiliafesur company, which
generally include our directors, officers, and airfprincipal stockholders, are subject to theleekaitations of Rule 144
described below. Outstanding shares of common s$scled in connection with the acquisition of anguired dealers are
available for resale beginning one year after #spective dates of the acquisitions, subject toptiamce with the provisions
of Rule 144 under the securities laws.

As of September 30, 2007, we had issued optiopsitthase approximately 2,123,545 shares of comitezk sinder our
1998 incentive stock plan, and approximately 33 §lres of common stock under our 2007 incentivekgblan, and we
issued 524,528 of the 750,000 shares of commok séaerved for issuance under our 1998 employex gtarchase plan.
We have filed a registration statement under ticeriiges laws to register the common stock to saésl under these plans.
As a result, shares issued under these plans evilidely tradable without restriction unless acediby affiliates of our
company, who will be subject to the volume and plimitations of Rule 144.

We may issue additional shares of common stockefepred stock under the securities laws as pahgfacquisition we
may complete in the future. If issued pursuantri@fiective registration statement, these sharaergdly will be freely
tradable after their issuance by persons not atiitl with us or the acquired companies.
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We rely on our operating subsidiarie

We are a holding company, the principal assetshi¢hvare the shares of the capital stock or merhijers
interests of our corporate or limited liability cpemy subsidiaries, including the operating subsgeia As a holding
company without independent means of generatingatipg revenue, we depend on dividends and othanpats
from our subsidiaries to fund our obligations anetrour cash needs. Financial covenants undeefidgan
agreements of our subsidiaries may limit our subsgek’ ability to make sufficient dividend or othgayments to
permit us to fund our obligations or meet our caséds, in whole or in part.

We do not pay cash dividends.

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark skdoreover, financial covenants under certaiowf
credit facilities restrict our ability to pay divédds.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affentisting stockholders.

Our Stockholders’ Rights Plan may have the effécteterring, delaying, or preventing a change inted that
might otherwise be in the best interests of oucldtolders. Under the Rights Plan, we issued a diddof one
Preferred Share Purchase Right for each shareraoonmon stock held by stockholders of record abefclose of
business on September 7, 2001.

In general, subject to certain limited exceptidhs, stock purchase rights become exercisable wipensan or
group acquires 15% or more of our common stocktender offer or exchange offer for 15% or morewf
common stock is announced or commenced. After aoly svent, our other stockholders may purchasdiaddi
shares of our common stock at 50% of the then-ntimarket price. The rights will cause substartikition to a
person or group that attempts to acquire us onstexwhapproved by our board of directors. The gghay be
redeemed by us at $0.01 per stock purchase rigimyetime before any person or group acquires 1686ave of ou
outstanding common stock. The rights should netrfete with any merger or other business combinadjaproved
by our board of directors. The rights expire on Asi?8, 2011.

Certain provisions of our restated certificate afdorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may make a
change in the control of our company more difficuidb complete, even if a change in control were et
stockholders’ interest or might result in a premiuover the market price for the shares held by the
stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws divithe board of directors into three classes of dimscglected
for staggered three-year terms. The certificat@adrporation also provides that the board of doecmay
authorize the issuance of one or more series ééipesal stock from time to time and may determirerights,
preferences, privileges, and restrictions andHexriumber of shares of any such series of prefetoak, without
any vote or action by our stockholders. The bodirectors may authorize the issuance of prefestedk with
voting or conversion rights that could adversefgefthe voting power or other rights of the hoklef common
stock. The certificate of incorporation also alloses board of directors to fix the number of dicgstand to fill
vacancies on the board of directors.

We also are subject to the anti-takeover provisafrSection 203 of the Delaware General Corporatian,
which prohibits us from engaging in a “business boration” with an “interested stockholder” for arjwal of three
years after the date of the transaction in whiehgérson became “interested stockholder,” unless the business
combination is approved in a prescribed manner.

Certain of our dealer agreements could also mattiiitult for a third party to attempt to acquiaesignificant
ownership position in our company. In addition, sheckholders’ agreement and governance agreenikiawe
the effect of increasing the control of our dirgst@xecutive officers, and persons associatedtiviim.

33




Table of Contents

Our sales of Ferretti Group and Azimut product mag adversely affected by fluctuations in currencychange
rates between the U.S. dollar and the euro.

Products purchased from the Italy-based Ferretiu@and Azimut are subject to fluctuations in theoeto
U.S. dollar exchange rate, which ultimately may aétipthe retail price at which we can sell such potsl As a
result, fluctuations in the value of the euro asipared with the U.S. dollar may impact the pricenfgoat which we
can sell profitably Ferretti Group and Azimut pretk) and such price points may not be competitiite @ther
product lines in the United States. Accordinglyclstluctuations in exchange rates ultimately mapgaut the
amount of revenue, cost of goods sold, cash fland,earnings we recognize for the Ferretti GroupAzimut
product lines. The impact of these currency flutttues could increase, particularly as our revemamfthe Ferretti
Group and Azimut products increase as a percemtagar total revenue. We also could incur lossemfhedging
transactions designed to reduce our risk to flu@indn exchange rates. We cannot predict the &ffetexchange
rate fluctuations or currency rate hedges on oeratng results. Therefore, in certain cases, we leatered into
foreign currency cash flow hedges to reduce thaldity of cash flows associated with firm comménts to
purchase boats and yachts from Ferretti Group. &deat assure that our strategies will adequatelept our
operating results from the effects of exchangeftattuations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We lease our corporate offices in Clearwater, BlrWe also lease 56 of our retail locations uhekeses,
many of which contain multi-year renewal optionsl @ome of which grant us a first right of refusaptirchase the
property at fair value. In most cases, we pay edisent at negotiated rates. In substantiallyfathe leased
locations, we are responsible for taxes, utilitissurance, and routine repairs and maintenanceowviethe propert
associated with 33 other retail locations and dpevae additional location as noted below.

The following table reflects the status, approxiesize, and facilities of our various retail locas as of the
date of this report.

Square Operated
Location Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2 Waterfront
Alabama
Gulf Shores Company owne 4,000 Retail and servic 199¢ —
Arizona
Tempe Company owne 34,00( Retail and servic 199z —
California
Retail only; 15 wet
Lodi Third-party leas 2,400 slips 199¢ Sacramento Rive
Retail and service; 1
Newport Beact Third-party leas: 4,400 wet slips 200t Newport Bay
Retail and service; 2 Alameda Estuary
Oakland Third-party leas  17,70( wet slips 198t (San Francisco Bay
Santa Ros Company owne 8,10C Retail and servic 199C —
Sacramentt Company owne 24,80( Retail and servic 199t —
San Diegc Third-party leas: 14,50( Retail and servic 200¢ —
Retail and service; 2
San Diego (Shelter Islan  Third-party leas 93C wet slips 200t Mission Bay
Sacramento Sport Yacht Retail only; 11 wet
Center Third-party leas 50C slips 2001 Sacramento Rive
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Location

Colorado
Denver

Grand Junctiol
Connecticut

Norwalk
Delaware

Bear
Florida
Cape Haz:

Clearwatel
Cocoa

Coconut Grove

Dania

Destin

Ft Lauderdale
(Pier 66)

Fort Myers
Ft Walton Beacl

Key Largo
Jacksonville

Jacksonville
Miami
Miami

Naples
North Palm

Beach
Pensacol;

Pompano Beac

Pompano Beac

Square Operated
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas 16,400 storage 200z¢
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas:  9,30( storage 198¢
Third-party leas: 7,00 Retail and servic 199/
Retail and service; 1
Third-party leas: 5,000 wet slips 199t
Retail, service, and
Company owne 18,00( storage; 8 wet slip 1972
Retail and service; 2
Company owne 42,000 wet slips 197:
Company owne 15,00( Retail and servic 196¢
Retail only; 24 wet
Third-party leas 2,000 slips 200z
Repair and service;
Company owne 32,000 16 wet slips 1991
Retail only; 24 wet
Third-party leas  2,20C slips 200t
Retail and service; 1
Third-party leas: 2,400 wet slips 1971
Retail and service; 1
Third-party leas: 8,000 wet slips 198:
Third-party leass  4,80(C Retail only 200z
Retail and service; 6
Third-party leas:  8,90( wet slips 200z
Company owne 15,00( Retail and servic 2004
Retail only; 7 wet
Third-party leas 1,00C slips 199t
Retail and service; 1
Company owne 7,20C wet slips 198(
Service only; 11 wet
Company owne 5,00C slips 200t
Retail and service; 1
Company owne 19,60( wet slips 1997
Retail and service; 8
Company owne 22,80( wet slips 199¢
Third-party leas  24,30( Retail and servic 1977
Retail and service; 1
Company owne 23,000 wet slips 199(
Retail and service; 2
Company owne 5,400 wet slips 200t
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Waterfront

Norwalk Harbor
Between Delaware
Bay and Chesapeake
Bay

Intracoastal Waterwa

Tampa Bay

Biscayne Bay

Port Everglade
Destin Harbol
Intracoastal Waterwa

Caloosahatchee Riv

Card Sounc

St Johns Rive
Little River
Little River

Naples Bay

Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterwa
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Location

Sarasot:
St. Petersburg(:

Stuart
Tampa

Venice
Georgia

Allatoona
Buford (Atlanta)

Cumming (Atlanta

Forest Park (Atlante
Maryland

Baltimore
White Marsh

Joppa
Minnesota

Bayport

Minnetonka
Oakdale

Rogers
Walker

Walker
Missouri

Kimberling City

Lake Ozark
Laurie
Springfield
Osage Beac
St. Louis

St. Charles

Square Operated
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas:  26,50( storage; 15 wet slig 1972
Yacht service, 20 wet
Joint venture 15,00C slips 200¢
Retail and service; €
Company owne 29,100 wet slips 200z
Company owne 13,10( Retail and servic 199t
Retail, service, and
Company owne 62,000 storage; 90 wet slig 1972
Retail and service; 4
Third-party leas:  8,80( wet slips 2002
Company owne 13,500 Retail and servic 2001
Retail and service; 5
Third-party leas: 13,00( wet slips 1981
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas 47,30( storage 197:
Retail and service; 1
Third-party leass 9,600 wet slips 200t
Company owne 19,80( Retail and servic 195¢
Retail, service, and
Company owne 28,40( storage; 294 wet sli 196¢
Retail only; 10 wet
Third-party leas 45C slips 199¢
Retail and service; 5
Third-party leas:  3,50( wet slips 200t
Third-party leas: 21,80( Retail and servic 1997
Retail, service, and
Company owne 70,00( storage 1991
Retail, service, and
Company owne 76,400 storage 198¢
Retail and service; ¢
Company owne 6,80C wet slips 1971
Retail only; 7 wet
Third-party leas 50C slips 200(
Retail and service;
Company owne 60,300 300 wet slips 1987
Company owne 70C Retail and servic 200¢
Company owne 12,20( Retail and servic 1997
Company owne 2,00C Retail and servic 199¢
Third-party leas: 12,00( Retail and servic 200z¢
Retail only; 6 wet
Third-party leas 50C slips 2004
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Waterfront

Sarasota Ba
Boca Ciega Ba

Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterwa

Lake Allatoone

Lake Lanier

Baltimore Inner
Harbor

Gunpowder Rive

St Croix River

Lake Minnetonk:

Leech Lake

Table Rock Lake

Lake of the Ozark

Mississippi Rivel
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Location

Nevada
Las Vegas
New Jersey

Brick

Brant Beact
Greenbrool

Jersey City

Lake Hopatconi
Ship Bottom

Somers Poin
New York
Copiague

Huntington
Lindenhurst
(Delivery Center
Lindenhurst (Highway
Store)

Lindenhurst (Marina
Manhattar

North Carolina
Wilmington
Wrightsville Beacl
Ohio

Mentor

Port Clinton

Port Clinton
Toledo

Oklahoma

Afton
Rhode Island

Wakefield

Square Operated
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2
Company owne 21,60( Retail and servic 199(
Retail and service;
Company owne 20,000 225 wet slips 1971
Retail and service; 3
Third-party leas:  3,80( wet slips 196~
Third-party leas: 18,50( Retail and servic 199t
Retail only; 6 wet
Third-party leas 50C slips 200(
Retail and service; 8
Third-party leas 4,600 wet slips 199¢
Third-party leas: 19,30( Retail and servic 1972
Retail and service; 3
Affiliate lease 31,000 wet slips 1987
Third-party leas  15,00( Retail only 199:
Third-party leas 1,20C Retail and servic 199t
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas: 54,000 dry storage 196¢
Third-party leas: 10,00( Retail and servic 2004
Marina and service;
Third-party leas  14,60( 370 wet slips 196¢
Retail only; 75 wet
Third-party leas 1,20C slips 199¢
Third-party leas: 6,00 Retail and servic 200¢
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas 34,500 storage 199¢
Third-party leass 5,00 Retail and servic 2007
Retall, service, and
Third-party leas: 63,70( storage; 155 wet slif 1977
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas  93,30( storage 1997
Third-party leas: 12,20( Retail and servic 198¢
Retail and service; 2
Third-party leas:  3,50( wet slips 200z
Retail only; 3 wet
Third-party leas 1,80C slips 200¢
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Waterfront

Manasquan Rive

Barnegat Ba

Hudson Rivel

Lake Hopatcon

Little Egg Harbor Bay

Huntington Harbor ar
Long Island Soun
Neguntatogue Creek
Great South Ba

Neguntatogue Creek
Great South Ba

Hudson Rivel

Intracoastal Waterwa

Lake Erie

Lake Erie

Grand Lake

Narragansett Ba
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Location

South Carolina
Myrtle Beach
Tennesset

Chattanoogi

Texas

Arlington

Houston

Houston

League City (floating
facility)(4)

Lewisville (Dallas)

Lewisville (Dallas)
(floating facility)

Seabrool
Utah
Salt Lake City

Square Operated

Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2

Third-party leas  3,50C Retail only 199¢

Retail only; 12 wet

Third-party leass 3,00 slips 200t

Third-party leas: 31,00( Retail and servic 199¢

Third-party leas: 10,00( Retail and servic 1987

Third-party leas:  15,00( Retail and servic 1981
Retail and service; 2

Third-party leas 80C wet slips 198¢

Company owne 22,00( Retail and servic 200z
Retail and service; 2

Third-party leas: 12,000 wet slips(5) 199/
Retail and service; 3

Company owne 32,000 wet slips 200z

Third-party leas:  21,20( Retail and servic 197¢

Waterfront

Coquina Harbo

Tennessee Rive

Clear Lake

Lake Lewisville

Clear Lake

(1) Square footage is approximate and does not in@utide sales space or dock or marina facili
(2) Operated since date is the date the facility waneg by us or opened prior to its acquisition hy

(3) Joint venture entered into with Brunswick to acquirarina and service facilit
(4) We own the floating facility, however, the relatock and marina space is leased by us from aniliaiz

third party.

(5) Shares service facility located at the other Leillessvetail location.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are party to various legal actions arising edhdinary course of business. While it is not iftdlaso
determine the actual outcome of these actions &gptember 30, 2007, we do not believe that thegters will
have a material adverse effect on our consolidi@@dcial condition, results of operations, or célsiws.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrar's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock has been traded on the New YaékIExchange under the symbol HZO since our ingigdlic
offering on June 3, 1998 at $12.50 per share. dt@wing table sets forth high and low sale prioéthe common stock for
each calendar quarter indicated as reported oNélmeYork Stock Exchange.

High Low

2005

First quartel $35.1¢  $27.51]

Second quarte $31.77  $23.9¢

Third quartel $35.8¢  $21.5(

Fourth quarte $32.48  $22.3¢
2006

First quarte $34.2¢  $27.7

Second quarte $36.72  $25.3¢

Third quartel $26.65  $19.2¢

Fourth quarte $29.4¢  $24.3t
2007

First quartel $26.1C  $20.01

Second quarte $24.05  $18.8(

Third quarte! $21.9¢  $14.3(

Fourth quarter (through November 30, 20 $16.62  $13.5(

On November 30, 2007, the closing sale price ofoamnmon stock was $16.35 per share. On Novembet(RY,, there
were approximately 100 record holders and approtain®,900 beneficial owners of our common stock.

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofase up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock. Under the pla may buy back common stock from time to timéhe open market
or in privately negotiated blocks, dependant uparous factors, including price and availabilitytbé shares, and general
market conditions. At September 30, 2007, we hawel@ased an aggregate of 719,600 shares of contockunder the
plan for an aggregate purchase price of approxim&tet.8 million. The number and average pricehzfres purchased in
each fiscal month of the fourth quarter of fisc@D2 are set forth in the table below:

Total Maximum
Total Number of Shares Number of Share:
Number of Average Purchased as that May Yet Be
Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased Undel

Period Purchasecd per Share Announced Progranm the Plan
Jul. 1, 2007— Jul. 31, 200 60,00( $ 19.3( 60,00( 633,70(
Aug. 1, 2007— Aug. 31, 2007 323,30( $ 18.6¢ 323,30( 310,40(
Sep. 1, 200— Sep. 30, 200 — — — 310,40(
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following table contains certain financial akrating data and is qualified by the more dedailensolidated
financial statements and notes thereto includegindisre in this report. The balance sheet and stateofi operations data
were derived from the consolidated financial staets and notes thereto that have been auditedrist &rYoung LLP, an
independent registered certified public accountimg. The financial data shown below should be readonjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and thee@labtes thereto and “Management’s Discussion aradyAis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsesg in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2003(6) 2004(6) 2005(6) 2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands except share, per share, andtail location data)

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue $ 607,50 $ 762,006 $ 947,347 $ 1,213,554 $ 1,255,98!
Cost of sale: 459,72¢ 573,61t 712,84: 906,78: 956,25:
Gross profit 147,77 188,39: 234,50« 306,76 299,73:
Selling, general, and administrative exper 113,29¢ 139,47( 169,97! 222,80¢ 245,22:
Income from operatior 34,47: 48,92 64,52¢ 83,95¢ 54,51(
Interest expense, n 2,471 6,49¢ 9,291 18,61¢ 26,95¢
Income before income tax provisi 32,00: 42,42: 55,23¢ 65,33¢ 27,55t
Income tax provisiol 12,32: 16,12¢ 21,41 25,95¢ 7,48¢
Net income $ 1968 $ 2629 $ 3382 $ 39,38 $  20,06¢
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 12¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 18 § 208 $ 1.04
Weighted average number of shal

Diluted 15,671,47 16,666,10 18,032,53  18,928,73  19,289,23
Other Data: (as of yea-end)
Number of retail locations(] 65 67 71 87 88
Sales per store(2)(: $ 1190 $ 12,83 $ 16,38¢ $ 17,06c0 $  15,24¢
Same-store sales growth(3)(: 6% 21% 23% 7% ()%

September 30
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $ 67,000 $ 88,01: $163,43: $153,46'  $170,38¢
Total asset 329,15! 474,35¢ 539,49( 801,56: 825,87!
Long-term debt (including current portion)( 22,34 26,23" 30,08t 37,18¢ 30,83:
Total stockholdel' equity 166,05¢ 196,82: 283,59¢ 349,88 373,55¢

(1) Includes only those retail locations open at pegnd.
(2) Includes only those stores open for the entireqaieg12-monthperiod.
(3) New and acquired stores are included in the combpmtzse at the end of the s’s thirteenth month of operatior

(4) A store is one or more retail locations that afj@@eht or operate as one entity. Sales per stats@me-store sales
growth is intended only as supplemental informatiad is not a substitute for Revenue or Net Incpresented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes

(5) Amounts exclude our sh-term borrowings for working capital and inventonyaincing.

(6) Amounts exclude the effects of stock based compi®msexpense recognized under the provisions déBtant of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 12* Shar-Based Paymer” as the standard was adopted October 1, 2

40




Table of Contents

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition driResults of Operation

The following should be read in conjunction withrAaincluding the matters set forth in the “Ris&ctors”section of thi
Form 10-K, and our Consolidated Financial Statesmant notes thereto included elsewhere in this AdHK.

Overview

We are the largest recreational boat retailerénUhited States with fiscal 2007 revenue in excé$s..25 billion.
Through our current 90 retail locations in 22 statee sell new and used recreational boats antbdetaarine products,
including engines, trailers, parts, and accessoviksalso arrange related boat financing, insuraaee extended warranty
contracts; provide boat repair and maintenancacsyand offer yacht and boat brokerage servamesdwhere available,
offer slip and storage accommodations.

MarineMax was incorporated in January 1998. We cenmted operations with the acquisition of five inelegent
recreational boat dealers on March 1, 1998. Sineénitial acquisitions in March 1998, we have #igantly expanded our
operations through the acquisition of 20 recreatitrwat dealers, two boat brokerage operationspaodull-service yacht
repair facilities. As a part of our acquisitionagtgy, we frequently engage in discussions witiouarrecreational boat
dealers regarding their potential acquisition byRmtential acquisition discussions frequently taleee over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration asttier issues, including in some cases, managesnenéssion and related
matters. As a result of these and other factonsinaber of potential acquisitions that from timeitoe appear likely to occur
do not result in binding legal agreements and ateonsummated. No significant acquisitions wenagleted during the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2007 and 2005follbwing are the acquisitions we completed duttihg fiscal year ende
September 30, 2006.

During March 2006, we acquired substantially altref assets and assumed certain liabilities ofs®l&+3 Marina, Inc.
(Surfside), a privately held boat dealership witthelocations in New York and Connecticut, for eppgmately $24.8 millioi
in cash and 665,024 shares of common stock, pl®3$gillion in working capital adjustments includiacquisition costs.
The shares were valued at $33.71 per share, wrasttlve average closing market price of our comnmekdor the
five-day period beginning two days prior to andiegdwo days subsequent to the acquisition date.adguisition expands
our ability to serve consumers in the Northeastihgazommunity and allows us to capitalize on Sdd%s market position
and leverage our inventory management and inveffittepcing resources over the acquired locatiomsef on a third-party
valuation, the purchase price, including acquigitiosts, resulted in the recognition of approxirya$d0.0 million of tax
deductible goodwill and approximately $16.4 milliohtax deductible indefinite-lived intangible assélealer agreements).
Surfside has been included in our consolidatechiia statements since the date of acquisition.

During January 2006, we acquired substantiallpitihe assets, including certain real estate, asdraed certain
liabilities of the Port Arrowhead Group (Port Arrbaad), a privately held boat dealership with lawaiin Missouri and
Oklahoma, for approximately $27.5 million in caphys $5.0 million in working capital adjustmentsliding acquisition
costs. Port Arrowhead operates six retail locatiomduding a large marina with more than 300 slifise acquisition expan
our ability to serve consumers in the Midwest bzatommunity, including neighboring boating dediimas in Illinois,
Kansas, and Arkansas. The acquisition also all@te @apitalize on Port Arrowhead’s market positol leverage our
inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. Based on a thartdswaluation, the
purchase price, including acquisition costs, reslib the recognition of approximately $6.0 milliohtax deductible
goodwill and approximately $2.0 million of tax dexible indefinite-lived intangible assets (dealgreements). Port
Arrowhead has been included in our consolidateahfiml statements since the date of acquisition.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as criti@abtir business operations and the understandingrakesults of
operations. The impact and risks related to thefieies on our business operations is discussedifirout Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations when such policies affectreported and expect
financial results.
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In the ordinary course of business, we make a nuwibestimates and assumptions relating to thertigygpof
results of operations and financial condition ia greparation of our financial statements in canityr with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdéhStates. We base our estimates on historicarexqee and on
various other assumptions that we believe are nedde under the circumstances. The results fornbaises for
making judgments about the carrying values of asmed liabilities that are not readily apparentrfrather sources.
Actual results could differ significantly from thegstimates under different assumptions and condit\WWe believe
that the following discussion addresses our mastaraccounting policies, which are those that mmost important
to the portrayal of our financial condition anduks of operations and require our most difficalibjective, and
complex judgments, often as a result of the needake estimates about the effect of matters tleaindwerently
uncertain.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and tragdes, and parts and service operations at thethieneoat,
motor, trailer, or part is delivered to or acceptgdhe customer or service is completed. We reizegrommissions
earned from a brokerage sale at the time the telatekerage transaction closes. We recognize reviom slip
and storage services on a straight-line basistheeterm of the slip or storage agreement. We neizceg
commissions earned by us for placing notes withrfaial institutions in connection with customer biir@ancing
when we recognize the related boat sales. We atsmnize marketing fees earned on credit life,dertdi and
disability, and hull insurance products sold bydkparty insurance companies at the later of cust@nceptance of
the insurance product as evidenced by contractuéiwes or when the related boat sale is recognivéel also
recognize commissions earned on extended warrantice contracts sold on behalf of third-party irsice
companies at the later of customer acceptanceedtvice contract terms as evidenced by contraciugion, or
recognition of the related boat sale.

Certain finance and extended warranty commissiodsngarketing fees on insurance products may begedar
back if a customer terminates or defaults on thaedging contract within a specified period of tinBased upon o
experience of repayments and defaults, we maiataimargeback allowance that was not material tdinancial
statements taken as a whole as of September 36,@®D07. Should results differ materially fronr distorical
experiences, we would need to modify our estiméfatare chargebacks, which could have a matedakese
effect on our operating margins.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our wadn accordance with Emerging Issues Task Faseel
No. 0z-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Resglfer Certain Consideration Received from a Vefidor
(EITF 02-16). EITF 02-16 most significantly requgres to classify interest assistance received franufacturers
as a reduction of inventory cost and related cbsales as opposed to netting the assistance againmterest
expense incurred with our lenders. Pursuant to BIZH26, amounts received by us under our co-ogtassie
programs from our manufacturers, are netted agesfeted advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aeghie inventory, net of vendor consideration anctpase
discounts, the cost of equipment added, recondlitipcosts, and transportation costs relating taigicgy inventory
for sale. We state new and used boat, motor, aildrtinventories at the lower of cost, determinada specific-
identification basis, or market. We state parts acckssories at the lower of cost, determined effittt-in, firstout
basis, or market. If the carrying amount of oureintory exceeds its fair value, we reduce the cagrgimount to
reflect fair value. We utilize our historical exparce and current sales trends as the basis fdower of cost or
market analysis. If events occur and market comitichange, causing the fair value to fall belowyiag value,
further reductions may be required.
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Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse

We account for goodwill and identifiable intangilsissets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinati¢8FAS 141), and Statement of Financial Accountin
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intangibkséts” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that all lassin
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be astamlifor using the purchase method of accountingidentifiable
intangible assets acquired in a business combmagaecognized as assets and reported separatelygbodwill.
We have determined that our most significant aeglidentifiable intangible assets are dealer ages¢snwhich ar
indefinite-lived intangible assets. SFAS 142 reggiithat goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblesats no longer be
amortized, but instead tested for impairment atlaanually and whenever events or changes inrostances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recabier. If the carrying amount of goodwill or an itiéable
intangible asset exceeds its fair value, we woeittbgnize an impairment loss. We measure any patémipairmen
based on various business valuation methodoloigielsiding a projected discounted cash flow methi'd.
completed our last annual impairment test durirgftlurth quarter of fiscal 2007, based on finanicidrmation as
of the third quarter of fiscal 2007, which resultadho impairment of goodwill or identifiable intgibble assets. To
date, we have not recognized any impairment of gidlbdr identifiable intangible assets in the apglion of
SFAS 142. We will continue to test goodwill andntable intangible assets for impairment at lesstually and
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value may not be recoverabier B the
adoption of SFAS 142, all purchase price in exoéghe net tangible assets was recorded as gooamdlino
identifiable intangible assets were recognized.déetdwill and identifiable intangible assets amednb
$97.5 million and $23.7 million, respectively, agsember 30, 2007.

The most significant estimates used in our goodwailuation model include estimates of the futu@agh in
our cash flows and future working capital needsupport our projected growth. Should circumstamtesige
causing these assumptions to differ materially #vgrected, our goodwill may become impaired, resyin a
material adverse effect on our operating margins.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Adcounting for Impairment or Disposal of Longwed
Assets” (SFAS 144), requires that long-lived asseish as property and equipment and purchaseuabjibtas
subject to amortization, be reviewed for impairmehenever events or changes in circumstances iedicat the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&geoverability of the asset is measured by coreparof its
carrying amount to undiscounted future net cashdlthe asset is expected to generate. If suchsamsetonsidered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognizedeéssured as the amount by which the carrying amafuthe asse
exceeds its fair market value. Estimates of expkftteire cash flows represent managengebést estimate based
currently available information and reasonable sungportable assumptions. Any impairment recognized
accordance with SFAS 144 is permanent and mayenaediored. To date, we have not recognized angirment
of long-lived assets in connection with SFAS 144.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to October 1, 2005, we accounted for ourestiesed compensation plans under the recognitidn an
measurement provisions of Accounting PrinciplesrBd@pinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations disdlosure requirements established by Statenfdfihancial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for St®&sed CompensationSFAS 123), as amended by Staten
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accangtfor Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure” (SFAS 148). Under APB 25, because thaatgprice was equal to or greater than fair valoe
compensation expense was recorded in earningaifastock options and awards granted under our grapletock
purchase plan (ESPP). The pro forma effects oimnetne and earnings per share for stock option<&=3RP
awards were disclosed in a footnote to the findrstéements. Compensation expense was recordsatnings for
non-vested common stock awards (restricted stoet@dsmand restricted stock units) and Board of Dinefees.
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Effective October 1, 2005, we adopted the provisiohStatement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R) for our sharedasmpensation plans. We adopted SFAS 123R
using the modified prospective transition methoddér this transition method, compensation costgeized in
fiscal 2006 and 2007 includes (a) the compensaiish for all share-based awards granted priorubnbt yet
vested as of October 1, 2005, based on the graetfaia value estimated in accordance with theioalgprovisions
of SFAS 123 and (b) the compensation cost fortalle-based awards granted subsequent to SeptefRH0S,
based on the grant-date fair value estimated iordanice with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Resultpfior
periods have not been restated. As a result oddaption of SFAS 123R, we recorded compensatiorresgfor
stock options of approximately $3.5 million and &gillion before tax, or $0.15 and $0.15 per ditlishare after-
tax for the fiscal years ended September 30, 26662807.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance witheBtant of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS 109). Under S§-209, we recognize deferred tax assets and tiabifor
the future tax consequences attributable to termpaliéferences between the financial statementygagramounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their resipedax basis. We measure deferred tax assetladmlities using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablamieda the years in which those temporary differerane expected
to be recovered or settled.

We operate in multiple states with varying tax laamsgl are subject to both federal and state aufldaraax
filings. We make estimates to determine that oxiréserves are adequate to cover audit adjustniatsy. Actual
audit results could vary from the estimates readtueus. As the number of years that are operafoatidits vary
depending on tax jurisdiction, a number of yeary mlapse before a particular matter is auditedfanadly resolved
While it is often difficult to predict the final dcome or timing of resolution of a particular taxter, we believe
that our consolidated financial statements refleetappropriate outcome of known tax contingencies.

For a more comprehensive list of our accountingcped, including those which involve varying degged
judgment, see Note— “Significant Accounting Policies” of Notes to Cawlidated Financial Statements.
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain financiatalas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Fiscal Year Ended September 3(

2005 2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)
Revenue $947,34° 100.(% $1,213,54 100.(% $1,255,98! 100.(%
Cost of sale: 712,84, 75.2% 906,78: 74.7% 956,25: 76.1%
Gross profit 234,50 24.8% 306,76( 25.2% 299,73 23.9%
Selling, general, and administrative exper 169,97" 17.% 222,80t 18.4% 245,22: 19.€%
Income from operatior 64,52¢ 6.S% 83,95¢ 6.S% 54,51( 4.3%
Interest expense, n 9,291 1.C% 18,61¢ 1.5% 26,95¢ 2.1%
Income before income tax provisi 55,23¢ 5.8% 65,33¢ 5.4% 27,55¢ 2.2%
Income tax provisiol 21,41; 2.3% 25,95¢ 2.2% 7,48¢ 0.6%
Net income $ 33,82¢ 3.6% $ 39,38: 3.2% $ 20,06¢ 1.6%

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2007 Compared Wwisltal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Revenue. Revenue increased $42.4 million, or 3.5%, to $biflion for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2007 from $1.21 billion for the fiscal year endegp&mber 30, 2006. Of this increase, $50.8 millias attributabl
to stores opened, closed, or acquired that wereligible for inclusion in the comparable-storedas
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partially offset by a decline of $8.4 million alititable to a less than 1% decline in comparables@ales in fiscal 2007. The
1% decline in same-store sales was net of an iser@arevenue from our parts, service, finance,iasurance products of
approximately $6.2 million. The decline in our sastere sales was due to softer economic conditidrish have adversely
impacted our retail sales.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased $7.1 million, or 2.3%$289.7 million for the fiscal year ended Septengir
2007 from $306.8 million for the fiscal year endgebtember 30, 2006. Gross profit as a percentagevefiue decreased to
23.9% for fiscal 2007 from 25.3% for fiscal 2006ig decrease was primarily attributable to a margéuction on boat sales
as we became more aggressive in the softer madat ; order to achieve our sales volume.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense&3elling, general, and administrative expensesased $22.4 million, or
10.0%, to $245.2 million for the fiscal year endgeptember 30, 2007 from $222.8 million for thedisgear ended
September 30, 2006. Selling, general, and admitigtr expenses as a percentage of revenue incrappeakimately
115 basis points to 19.6% for the year ended SdmeB0, 2007 from 18.4% for the year ended SepteBMle2006. For
fiscal 2007, we recorded $2.1 million of businegsiruption insurance proceeds that was receiveddims associated with
Hurricane Wilma in 2006; we recorded a $1.0 millgain from the sale of our jet; and we recorde@@0$000 gain related
insurance proceeds we received associated witkribv and ice storm damage at certain Missouri loeat We recorded
these items as a reduction to selling, general aaintinistrative expenses. Excluding these itemkngegeneral, and
administrative expenses as a percent of revenud %«8%6 for the year ended September 30, 2007.apgpsoximate
145 basis point increase in selling, general, almdimistrative expenses as a percentage of reveaaguimarily attributable
to the reported same-store sales decline and seagaersonnel and marketing related costs inctorddve retail sales in a
softer retail environment.

Interest Expense.Interest expense increased $8.4 million, or 44189$27.0 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 from $18.6 million for the fisesar ended September 30, 2006. Interest expenagarcentage of
revenue increased to 2.1% for fiscal 2007 from 1féffiscal 2006. The increase was primarily a lestiincreased
borrowings associated with our revolving creditiifgcand mortgages, which accounted for an incegasnterest expense of
approximately $6.8 million and a less favorableiast rate environment, which accounted for areae of approximately
$1.6 million in interest expense.

Income Tax Provision.Income taxes decreased $18.5 million, or 71.2987t5 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 from $26.0 million for the flsaar ended September 30, 2006, primarily asw@treSour decreased
earnings. Our effective tax rate decreased to 27a@2%e fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 B86rii% for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006, primarily as atresthe settlement of certain tax positions urateinitiative offered by
one of the states in which we conduct operatiorssa Aesult of this settlement, we reduced the veser contingent income
taxes by approximately $5.2 million and reduceame tax expense by approximately $3.8 million far fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007. Without this reduction, thecative tax rate would have been approximately 40&%he fiscal year
ended September 30, 2007.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 Compared Wwislital Year Ended September 30, 2005

Revenue. Revenue increased $266.2 million, or 28.1%, t@ $illion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZI6 from
$947.3 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8ir2005. Of this increase, $204.9 million wasilattiable to stores opened
or acquired that were not eligible for inclusiortlie comparable-store base and $61.3 million wabaiable to a 6.5%
growth in comparable-store sales for fiscal 200 hcrease in comparable-store sales for fisd@b 28sulted primarily
from an increase of approximately $45.2 milliorbmat and yacht sales. This increase in boat arfut gates on a
comparable-store basis helped generate an indreasesnue from our parts, service, finance, asdiance products of
approximately $16.1 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $72.3 million, or 30.8%$806.8 million for the fiscal year ended Septengie
2006 from $234.5 million for the fiscal year endgeptember 30, 2005. Gross profit as a percentagevefue increased to
25.3% for fiscal 2006 from 24.8% for fiscal 200%ig increase was primarily attributable to an iasein service, finance,
insurance, parts, and brokerage revenue, whichrg@ngield higher gross margins than boat saled, @ increase in
manufacturer programs in place for the year endgde®nber 30, 2006. The
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increase in gross profit was partially offset byegrease in gross margins on boat sales, coupthdawincrease in yacht
sales, which generally yield lower gross margiranthoat sales.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense&elling, general, and administrative expensesased $52.8 million, or
31.1%, to $222.8 million for the fiscal year end&ptember 30, 2006 from $170.0 million for thedispear ended
September 30, 2005. Selling, general, and admiiger expenses as a percentage of revenue incrappeakimately
50 basis points to 18.4% for the year ended SepeBt 2006 from 17.9% for the year ended Septe@be2005. For fisc:
2006, the increase as a percentage of revenuettsistable to approximately $3.5 million of stooktion compensation
expense, resulting from the adoption of SFAS 128&Rapproximately $1.2 million of hurricane relatgenses to move a
repair inventory (net of related insurance reimbarents) and uninsured losses to our locations.tidadily, our selling,
general, and administrative expenses as a pereeafagvenue increased as a result of increasekletitag and commission
expenses associated with achieving our level ofpeoable-store sales growth, increased facilitied, @her costs associated
with new and acquired stores.

Interest Expense.Interest expense increased $9.3 million, or 190 # $18.6 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 from $9.3 million for the fispadr ended September 30, 2005. Interest experspasentage of
revenue increased to 1.5% for fiscal 2006 from 1f6ffiscal 2005. The increase was primarily a lestiincreased
borrowings associated with our revolving creditiifgcand mortgages, which accounted for an incegasnterest expense of
approximately $5.7 million and a less favorableiast rate environment, which accounted for areeme of approximately
$3.6 million in interest expense.

Income Tax Provision.Income taxes increased $4.5 million, or 21.2%%26.0 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 from $21.4 million for the flsesar ended September 30, 2005 as a result afased earnings. Our
effective tax rate increased to 39.7% for the figear ended September 30, 2006 from 38.8% fofisical year ended
September 30, 2005 as a result of the adoptiofr85S123R.

Quarterly Data and Seasonality

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioratimp industry, is highly seasonal, with seasopaditrying in different
geographic markets. With the exception of Florida,generally realize significantly lower sales &igher levels of
inventories, and related short-term borrowingghaquarterly periods ending December 31 and Maici he onset of the
public boat and recreation shows in January stiteslhoat sales and allows us to reduce our inveigwgels and related
short-term borrowings throughout the remaindeheffiscal year. Our business could become subatyntiore seasonal as
we acquire dealers that operate in colder regibtiseoUnited States.

Our business is also subject to weather patternishwmay adversely affect our results of operatiéis example,
drought conditions (or merely reduced rainfall klsy®r excessive rain may close area boating lonator render boating
dangerous or inconvenient, thereby curtailing augtodemand for our products. In addition, unsedsgraool weather and
prolonged winter conditions may lead to a shorédlirgy season in certain locations. Hurricanes @her storms could result
in disruptions of our operations or damage to matlinventories and facilities, as was the casangdiscal 2005 and 2006
when Florida and other markets were affected byeroos hurricanes. Although our geographic diveiisitikely to reduce
the overall impact to us of adverse weather camustin any one market area, these conditions wiltinue to represent
potential, material adverse risks to us and owré&financial performance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs are primarily for working capitastipport operations, including new and used bodtelated parts
inventories, off-season liquidity, and growth thgbuacquisitions and new store openings. We regutadnitor the aging of
our inventories and current market trends to evaloar current and future inventory needs. We afsothis evaluation in
conjunction with our review of our current and exfeel operating performance and expected growtleterchine the
adequacy of our financing needs. These cash nesgshistorically been financed with cash gener&tad operations and
borrowings under our line of credit facility. Wercently depend upon dividends and other payments fsur consolidated
operating subsidiaries and our line of
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credit facility to fund our current operations andet our cash needs. Currently, no agreementsteaistestrict this flow of
funds from our operating subsidiaries.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, wsesth in operating activities was approximately 818illion. For the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2007 prasided by operating activities approximated4$8illion and
$20.0 million, respectively. For the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2005, cash used in operatingtiestivas due primarily
to a decrease in accounts payable due to the tiofingrtain payments to our manufacturers and erease in inventories
due to the continued expansion of existing protlnes and to ensure appropriate inventory levealsijgly offset by net
income and an increase in customer deposits. Edidbal year ended September 30, 2006, cash mo\iyg operating
activities was due primarily to net income, adjdsk@r non-cash depreciation, amortization, andkstised compensation
charges, and increases in accounts payable angealcexpenses, partially offset by an increase ¢owntts receivable due to
increased revenues, an increase in inventoriessiore appropriate inventory levels, and a decrigasastomer deposits. For
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, cashdeby operating activities was due primarily & mcome, adjusted for
non-cash depreciation, amortization, and stockdasmpensation charges, and increases in custapesits and accrued
expenses, partially offset by a decrease in acequatable, and an increase in inventories to ermppeopriate inventory
levels.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2005,, 200052007, cash used in investing activities vgsaimately
$17.9 million, $95.4 million, and $9.4 million, y@sctively. For the fiscal year ended Septembef806, cash used in
investing activities was primarily used in businasguisitions and to purchase property and equipassociated with
opening new retail facilities or improving and redting existing retail facilities. For the fiscatgr ended September 30,
2005, cash used in investing activities was pritparsed to purchase property and equipment assacveth opening new
retail facilities or improving and relocating exigj retail facilities. For the fiscal year endecpfenber 30, 2007, cash usec
investing activities was primarily used to purchpseperty and equipment associated with opening ne¢al facilities or
improving and relocating existing retail facilitiaad in the finalization of certain business acitjoiss, partially offset by
proceeds received from the sale and involuntaryedion of property and equipment.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2005 @08, 2ash provided by financing activities was agjmnately
$43.9 million and $83.9 million, respectively. Rbe fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, cashims$edncing activities
was approximately $5.3 million. For the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2005, cash provided by fingragtivities was
primarily attributable to proceeds from common sisassued through the February 2005 public offeripgn the exercise of
stock options, and stock purchases under our eraplstock purchase plan, partially offset by neayepents on short-term
borrowings as a result of using the proceeds flmrigsuance of common shares through the Febr@&f Rublic offering
and repayments of long-term debt. For the fiscal yanded September 30, 2006, cash provided bydimgrmctivities was
primarily attributable to proceeds from net borrogs on short-term borrowings as a result of inardasventory levels and
borrowings on long-term debt on equipment and estdte acquired, and proceeds from common shawgedisipon the
exercise of stock options and under the employaek giurchase plan, partially offset by purchasesezfsury stock and
repayments of long-term debt. For the fiscal yeateel September 30, 2007, cash used in financiigteet was primarily
attributable to purchases of treasury stock andymegnts of long-term debt, partially offset by meds from net borrowings
on shortterm borrowings as a result of increased inventevgls, and proceeds from common shares issuedthpaxercis
of stock options and under the employee stock @selplan.

As of September 30, 2007, our indebtedness totgpdoximately $356.8 million, of which approximat&30.8 million
was associated with our real estate holdings a@6.$3nillion was associated with financing our intary and working
capital needs.

During June 2007, we entered into an amendmentioéxisting credit facility, which modified the deition of “Fixed
Charges Coverage Ratio” and extended the termradexond amended and restated credit and secgrigment entered
into in June 2006 with the same lenders. The anteoddit facility matures in May 2012, with two eyear renewal option
At September 30, 2007, we were in compliance witbfahe credit facility covenants.
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Prior to June 2007, we entered into a second andesuiet restated credit and security agreement ugtit &nancial
institutions during June 2006. The credit facifitypvides us a line of credit with asset-based lwairrg availability of up to
$500 million for working capital and inventory fineing, with the amount of permissible borrowingsedeined pursuant to
borrowing base formula. The credit facility alsorpés approved-vendor floorplan borrowings of ugg9 million. The
credit facility accrues interest at LIBOR plus 16®60 basis points, with the interest rate bagethuhe ratio of our net
outstanding borrowings to our tangible net worthe Tredit facility is secured by our inventory, @guots receivable,
equipment, furniture, and fixtures. The credit liacrequires us to satisfy certain covenants,udaig maintaining a leverage
ratio tied to our tangible net worth. The othemsrand conditions of the new credit facility aregelly similar to the
previous credit facility. The credit facility extéad the maturity of the credit facility to May 2Qith two one-year renewal
options. For the periods ending September 30, 20062005 the credit facility provided us with adsased borrowing
availability up to $500 million and $340 millionnd accrued interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 15P60 basis points.

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 20035,2and 2007, we completed the acquisition of ivesine retail
operations. We acquired the net assets, relatgrepyo and buildings and assumed or retired celi@ilities, including the
outstanding floorplan obligations related to nevatdaventories, for approximately $52.3 milliondash, plus $29.0 million
in working capital adjustments, including acquasiticosts, and 665,024 shares of common stock valu$83.71 per share.

Except as specified in this “Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial Condition, and Resaft®perations”
and in our consolidated financial statements, wes e material commitments for capital for the nEXtmonths. We believe
that our existing capital resources will be suéfittito finance our operations for at least the d@xnonths, except for
possible significant acquisitions.

Contractual Commitments and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our enizi contractual obligations and commercial cormeitts as of
September 30, 2007:

Line of Long-Term Operating
Year Ending September 3( Credit Debt Leases Total
(Amounts in thousands)

2008 $326,00( $ 4,39¢ $10,55( $340,94¢
2009 — 4.47¢ 8,56¢ 13,04(
2010 — 4,56 7,745 12,30¢
2011 — 3,90z 6,95¢ 10,85¢
2012 — 3,70t 5,41¢ 9,12(
Thereatftel — 9,79: 16,62: 26,41*
Total $326,00( $ 30,83: $55,85: $412,68!

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

At September 30, 2007, approximately 98.3% of turts and longlerm debt bore interest at variable rates, genetiall
to a reference rate such as the LIBOR rate or tineeprate of interest of certain banks. Changeéstarest rates on loans frc
these financial institutions could affect our eags as a result of interest rates charged on nartaderlying obligations that
are variable. At September 30, 2007, a hypotheti@8lbasis point increase in interest rates orvariable rate obligations
would have resulted in an increase of approxim&k8lp million in annual pre-tax interest expend@isestimated increase is
based upon the outstanding balances of all of atiable rate obligations and assumes no mitigatiranges by us to reduce
the outstanding balances or additional interess@sge that would be received from vendors dubedypothetical interest
rate increase.

Products purchased from the Italy-based Ferretiu@mare subject to fluctuations in the Euro to W@lar exchange rate,
which ultimately may impact the retail price at ainiwe can sell such products. Accordingly, fludzd in the value of the
Euro as compared with the U.S. dollar may impaetgtice points at which we can sell profitably E&irGroup products,
and such price points may not be competitive witteoproduct lines in the
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United States. Accordingly, such fluctuations icleange rates ultimately may impact the amountwémae, cost ¢
goods sold, cash flows, and earnings we recognizthé Ferretti Group product line. We cannot peetlie effects
of exchange rate fluctuations on our operatingltgsin certain cases, we may enter into foreigmemcy cash flow
hedges to reduce the variability of cash flows eisdéed with forecasted purchases of boats and gdicirh Ferretti
Group. We are not currently engaged in materi@ifpr currency exchange hedging transactions to geaoar
foreign currency exposure. If and when we do engageaterial foreign currency exchange hedgingdaations,
we cannot assure that our strategies will adequatetect our operating results from the effectexdthange rate
fluctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

Reference is made to the financial statementsiakes thereto, and the report thereon, commencing o
of this report, which financial statement, notes] eeport are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcénting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

We have evaluated, with the participation of oure€Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officéng
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of September 30, 2007. Based on this d@i@aiuaur Chie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer haa&ch concluded that our disclosure controls andguhares are
effective to ensure that we record, process, summand report information required to be disctbbg us in our
quarterly reports filed under the Securities ExgfeaAct within the time periods specified by the ées and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. During tbeaf year covered by this report, there have rentany
changes in our internal controls over financialordipg that have materially affected, or is reasiwndikely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaaaeporting.

Subsequent to the date of their evaluation, thave Imot been any significant changes in our interoiatrols ot
in other facts that could significantly affect thesontrols, including any corrective action witlgaed to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangdal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiimg adequate internal control over financiglaring,
as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of theusites Exchange Act of 1934. Under the supervisiod with the
participation of the Company’s management, inclgdia principal executive officer and principaldimcial officer,
the Company conducted an evaluation of the effentigs of the Company’s internal control over fina@meporting
as of September 30, 2007 as required by the SesuEkchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(c). In makhig
assessment, the Company used the criteria setifpittiie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations eftheadway
Commission (COSO) imternal Control — Integrated FrameworBased on its evaluation, management concluded
that its internal control over financial reportings effective as of September 30, 2007.

The Companys internal control over financial reporting as ep8&mber 30, 2007 has been audited by Erns
Young LLP, an independent registered public acdagrftrm, as stated in their report which appeaiot.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited MarineMax, Inc.’s internal contreér financial reporting as of September 30, 2085¢ek on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integaframework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
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Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the C@8t@ria). MarineMax, Inc.’s management is respblesfor
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeogss of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompagyinanagement’s report on internal control oveariitial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the canys internal control over financial reporting bdsn our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatiwether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understandi
of internal control over financial reporting, assiag the risk that a material weakness existsnggsind evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkldasn the assessed risk, and performing such ptheedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbeliat our audit provides a reasonable basisuoppinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesssuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting includes thosdipies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thakasonable detail, accurately and fairly i@ftbe transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)ideweasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princj@ed that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagasrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgeriorate.

In our opinion, MarineMax, Inc. maintained, in alhterial respects, effective internal control dueancial reporting as
of September 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited
States), the consolidated balance sheets of MaameMc. as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, ancktated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholderstycnd cash flows for each of the three yeathéperiod ended
September 30, 2007 of MarineMax, Inc. and our regated December 6, 2007 expressed an unqualifiedon thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Tampa, Florida
December 6, 2007

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Govarnce

The information required by this Item relating tar @irectors is incorporated herein by referenciéodefinitive Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14&efExchange Act for our 2008 Annual Meeting afckholders. The
information required by this Item relating to oxeeutive officers included in “Business — ExecutDficers.”

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item is incorp@é@terein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this Item is incorp@é@terein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adiatector Independenci

The information required by this Item is incorp@éterein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent to be filled
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(@) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Scheths

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Inde€dnsolidated Financial Statements on page F-hisfeport.

(2) No financial statement schedules are includsgzhbse such schedules are not applicable, areaquated, or because
required information is included in the consolidafmancial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number
31
3.2
33
4.1
4.2

10.1(K)

10.3(h)
10.3(i)
10.3(j)
10.4
10.5
10.12

10.18(a)"

10.19

10.20

10.20(a)
10.21

10.21(a)

10.22
10.23
10.24

Exhibit

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist, including all amendments to date

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registran

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock(:

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

Rights Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweersRagt and American Stock Transfer & Trust Compi
as Rights Agent(Z

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 30, 20@&g MarineMax of New York, Inc.;

Surfside-3 Marina, Inc.; Matthew Barbara, Paul Baah Diane Keeney, and Angela Chianese; and certain
affiliates of Surfsid-3 Marina, Inc.(Form 1(-Q filed May 10, 2006)(3

Employment Agreement between Registrant and WillianMcGill Jr.(4)

Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHadcLamb(4)

Employment Agreement between Registrant and EdwaRlussell(4)

1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeeitb, 2000(5

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plai

Agreement Relating to Acquisitions between Regteend Brunswick Corporation, dated December 75200
9)

Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, effectivaustut, 2006 among the Registrant, MarineMax Motor
Yachts, LLC, and Hatteras Yachts Division of BrurgdwCorporation(7

Second Amended and Restated Credit and Securityefggnt dated June 19, 2006 among the Registrant and
its subsidiaries as Borrowers, Keybank Bank, NBank of America, N.A., and various other lendess, a
Lenders(8

Agreement Relating to Acquisitions between Regteend Brunswick Corporation, dated December 75200
)

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreemet

Second Amended and Restated Credit and Securitgefvggnt dated June 19, 2006 among the Registrant and
its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and Bank of Amefitd., KeyBank, N.A., General Electric Commercial
Distribution Finance Corporation, Wachovia BankAN Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., National City Bank, N,A
U.S. Bank, N.A., and Branch Banking and Trust Conypas Lenders(¢

First Amendment to Second Amended and RestatedtGumadl Security Agreement executed on June 5, 2007
effective as of May 31, 2007 among the Registradtits subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and Bank of Acaer
N.A., Keybank, N.A., General Electric CommerciakBibution Finance Corporation, Wachovia Bank, N
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., National City Bank, N.A.,%J Bank, N.A. and Branch Banking and Trust Company
as Lenders(1C

MarineMax, Inc. 2007 Incentive Compensation Plah

Form Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Incentive Cengation Plan(1]

Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 208dentive Compensation Plan(]
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit
10.25 Director Fee Share Purchase Program
21 List of Subsidiarie:
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LL

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetbuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetbuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

321 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpéed pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof
2002.

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct
of 2002.

Tt Certain information in this exhibit has been ontiteand filed separately with the Securities and Exde
Commission. Confidential treatment has been reqdesith respect to the omitted portio

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateraariform 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2891iled on
December 20, 200:

(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report dated September 30, 1998, as filed on Ochel 998
(3) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006, as filed @y %0, 2006
(4) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K, as filed on June 13, 20C

(5) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 288Tiled on
February 14, 200:

(6) Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterne Form £-1 (Registratior33z-47873).

(7) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended March 31, 2007 jlad bn May 7
2007.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1i®Qhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2006iled én
August 4, 2006

(9) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on December 9, 20(
(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on June 11, 200
(11) Incorporated by reference to Regist’sForm &K as filed on March 6, 200
(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form -8 (File No. 33:-141657)as filed March 29, 200
(13) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on November 9, 20C

(c) Financial Statement Schedule

(1) See Item 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: December 11, 2007

M ARINEMAX , INC .

William H. McGill Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Exchawgef 1934, this report has been signed belowhiay

following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacity and on the dates indicated.

William H. McGill Jr.

Michael H. McLamb

Hilliard M. Eure I

John B. Furmau

Robert S. Kan

Joseph A. Wattetr

Dean S. Woodma

Capacity

Date

Chairman of the Board, President, and December 11, 20(

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President, Chief Finan
Officer, Secretary, and Director (Princi
Accounting and Financial Office

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related ¢datal statements of operations, comprehensivariaco
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttiree years in the period ended September 30, db@se
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated
financial position of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidsrat September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the cdasadi results
of their operations and their cash flows for eaftcthe three years in the period ended Septembe2®¥, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountmigciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the effectiveness of MarineMag, iinternal control over financial reporting &sSeptember 30,
2007, based on criteria established in Internalt@bdintegrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and gpontedated December 6, 2007 expressed an ungudalifie
opinion.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Tampa, Florida
December 6, 2007
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share tig

September 3C  September 3C

2006 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2511 $ 30,37
Accounts receivable, n 57,58¢ 57,33¢
Inventories, ne 462,84° 478,03¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 8,44¢ 8,991
Deferred tax asse 4,48¢ 6,48
Total current asse 558,48( 581,22¢
Property and equipment, r 122,21! 118,96(
Goodwill and other intangible assets, 116,19! 121,17-
Other lon¢-term asset 4,67: 451¢
Total asset $ 801,56: $ 825,87¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 37,39¢ $ 19,98(
Customer deposi 17,17( 33,42(
Accrued expense 24,41¢ 27,044
Shor-term borrowings 321,50( 326,00
Current maturities of lor-term debt 4,53z 4,39¢
Total current liabilities 405,01! 410,84(
Deferred tax liabilitie: 11,63¢ 11,971
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 32,65¢ 26,43
Other lon¢-term liabilities 2,36¢ 3,071
Total liabilities 451,67t 452,31¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY¢ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 stearég®rized, none issued or
outstanding at September 30, 2006 and 2 — —
Common stock, $.001 par value; 24,000,000 shatt®azed, 18,529,524 and
18,379,864 shares issued and outstanding at Septe&@p2006 and 2007,
respectively 19 19
Additional paic-in capital 156,61¢ 167,91.
Retained earning 200,30¢ 220,37"
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 507 28
Treasury stock, at cost, 336,300 and 719,600 sihatdsat September 30, 2006 and
2007, respectivel (7,569 (14,77%)
Total stockholder equity 349,88° 373,55¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 80156 $ 825,87¢

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share &g

For the Year Ended September 3C

2005 2006 2007
Revenue $ 947,34 $ 1,213,54 $ 1,255,98!
Cost of sale: 712,84 906,78: 956,25:
Gross profit 234,50 306,76( 299,73:
Selling, general, and administrative exper 169,97! 222,80¢ 245,22¢
Income from operation 64,52¢ 83,95« 54,51(
Interest expens 9,291 18,61¢ 26,95¢
Income before income tax provisi 55,23¢ 65,33¢ 27,55¢
Income tax provisiol 21,41 25,95¢ 7,48¢€
Net income $  33,82¢ $ 39,38: $  20,06¢
Basic net income per common sh $ 2.01 $ 2.1¢ $ 1.0¢
Diluted net income per common shi $ 1.8¢ $ 2.0¢ $ 1.04
Weighted average number of common shares usedriputing net
income per common shail
Basic 16,815,44 18,028,56 18,618,61
Diluted 18,032,53 18,928,73 19,289,23

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Year Ended September 3C

2005 2006 2007

Net income $33,82¢ $39,38: $20,06¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Change in fair market value of derivative instrutsenet of tax of $318 and tax

benefit of $300 for the years ended September @06 2nd 2007, respective — 507 (479
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedeétincome, net of tax of $62 for

the year ended September 30, 2 — — (100
Comprehensive incon $33,82¢  $39,88¢  $19,49(

See accompanying notes.

F-5




Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Amounts in thousands except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Deferred Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Retained Stock Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
Shares  Amount _Capital Earnings Compensatior Income Stock Equity

BALANCE, September 30, 20( 15,711,01 $ 16 $ 70,32f $127,09¢ $ — $ — $ (61§ $ 196,82
Net income — — —  33,82¢ — — — 33,82¢
Shares issued under employee stock purchase 51,727 — 1,01¢ — — — — 1,01¢
Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt 379,56° — 4,26¢ — — — — 4,26¢
Shares issued through public offeri 1,429,00! 2 44,20 — — — — 44,20:
Stocl-based compensatic 106,78: — 3,132 — (3,027) — — 10E
Amortization of deferred stock compensat — — — — 63C — — 63C
Tax benefits of options exercis — — 2,72¢ — — — — 2,72¢
BALANCE, September 30, 20( 17,678,08 18 125,67: 160,92: (2,397 — (61¢) 283,59¢
Net income — — — 39,380 — — — 39,38.
Purchase of treasury sto (306,30() — — — — — (6,949 (6,94%)
Reclassification resulting from adoption of SFASSE — — (2,397) — 2,391 — — —
Shares issued under employee stock purchase 59,197 — 1,28: — — — — 1,28:
Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt 253,35: — 2,581 — — — — 2,581
Stoclt-based compensatic 180,16 — 5,567 — — — — 5,561
Shares issued upon business acquis 665,02 1 22,417 — — — — 22,41¢
Tax benefits of options exercis — — 1,49¢ — — — — 1,49¢
Change in fair market value of derivative instrutsen

net of tax — — — — — 507 — 507
BALANCE, September 30, 20( 18,529,522 19 156,61¢ 200,30¢ — 507 (7,56%9) 349,88
Net income — — —  20,06¢ — — — 20,06¢
Purchase of treasury sto (383,30() — — — — — (7,219 (7,212)
Shares issued under employee stock purchase 78,66¢ — 1,631 — — — — 1,631
Shares issued upon exercise of stock opi 149,78( — 1,581 — — — — 1,581
Stocl-based compensatic 5,19¢ — 7,307 — — — — 7,307
Tax benefits of options exercis — — 76¢ — — — — 76¢
Change in fair market value of derivative instrutsen

net of tax — — — — — (479) — (479)
BALANCE, September 30, 20( 18,379,86 $ 19 $167,91: $220,37! $ — $ 28 $(14,77H)$  373,55¢

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Year Ended September 30,

2005 2006 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $33,82¢ $39,38. $20,06¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,11¢ 8,607 9,35(
Deferred income tax provision (bene 363 1,02( (1,367
Gain on sale of property and equipm (13€) (42 (1,030
Gain on involuntary conversion of property and equént — — (613
Stock-based compensation expel 73t 5,567 7,307
Tax benefits of options exercis 2,72¢ 1,49t 76¢
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic — (1,127 (54¢)
(Increase) decrease in —
Accounts receivable, n (1,25¢) (21,385 25€
Inventories, ne (31,149 (25,339 (15,199
Prepaid expenses and other as (65S) (2,099 (1,172
Increase (decrease) in —
Accounts payabl (37,720 20,19¢ (17,419
Customer deposi 9,87¢ (21,98¢) 16,25(
Accrued expense 3,471 4,10¢ 3,332
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (13,799 9,40z 19,99¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm 7,799 (10,169 (9,507
Cash used in business investn — (4,007 —
Net cash used in acquisitions of businesses, setgsind intangible ass (650) (81,369 (4,847
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 571 10t 2,91t
Proceeds from involuntary conversion of propertgt aquipmen — — 2,007
Net cash used in investing activiti (17,879 (95,43%) (9,439
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings of lon-term debt 3,271 12,24( —
Repayments of lor-term debt (3,469 (5,140 (6,359
Net (repayments) borrowings on st-term borrowings (5,429 78,72¢ 4,50(
Purchases of treasury stc — (6,945 (7,219
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock thrquutic offering 44,20 — —
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic — 1,127 54€
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock und@&sropnd employee purchase pl: 5,28¢ 3,86/ 3,21¢
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 43,86¢ 83,87¢ (5,307
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS: 12,19t (2,159 5,26z
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 15,07¢ 27,271 25,11:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $27,27. $25117 $30,37¢
Supplemental Disclosures of N-Cash Financing Activities
Long-term debt assumed for property and equipment paes $ 4040 $ — 3 —
Supplemental Disclosure of N-Cash Investing Activities
Common stock issued in connection with businessiaitipn $ —  $2241¢ 3% —

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

We were incorporated in Delaware in January 199Baaa the largest recreational boat retailer in the
United States. We engage primarily in the retd#é darokerage, and service of new and used boatsre trailers,
marine parts, and accessories and offer slip ardgt accommodations in certain locations. In &ditve arrange
related boat financing, insurance, and extendedcgecontracts. As of September 30, 2007, we opdritrough 88
retail locations in 22 states, consisting of Alabarizona, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Dredae, Florida,
Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, Neersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, OklahoiRhpde
Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, Meridian, Cabo, and Hatteras recreatiboats
and yachts, all of which are manufactured by Bruokworporation (Brunswick). Sales of new Brunswimats
accounted for approximately 57% of our revenuadod 2007. Brunswick is the world’s largest martdiger of
marine products and marine engines. We believeepesented in excess of 12% of all Brunswick masades,
including approximately 46% of its Sea Ray boa¢satluring our 2007 fiscal year.

We have dealership agreements with Sea Ray, B¥gtaier, Meridian, Cabo, Hatteras Yachts, Mercury
Marine, and Baja Marine Corporation, all subsidiardr divisions of Brunswick. We also have deaigeaments
with Azimut and Ferretti Group, including Bertraithese agreements allow us to purchase, stockasellservice
these manufacturers’ boats and products. Theseragres also allow us to use these manufacturensésatrade
symbols, and intellectual properties in our operai

Our operating dealership subsidiaries that camy3ba Ray product line are party to a multi-yeateate
agreement with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodactsare the exclusive dealers of Sea Ray boal®in t
geographic markets. We are party to a multi-yeafteteagreement with Hatteras Yachts that givehe®xclusive
right to sell Hatteras Yachts throughout the stdt€lorida (excluding the Florida panhandle). We also the
exclusive dealer for Hatteras Yachts throughousthte of Texas. We are also the exclusive deateCébo Yachts
throughout the state of Florida. We are also party dealer agreement with Ferretti Group and Bertyachts. The
agreement appoints us as the exclusive dealerciveffi Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, and M@chft mega-
yachts, yachts, and other recreational boats fothhited States, Canada, and the Bahamas. Thenagmealsc
appoints us as the exclusive dealer for BertrathérnUnited States (excluding the Florida peninsuid Texas),
Canada, and the Bahamas. We are also the exchisaler for Italy-based Azimut-Benetti Group’s prodlines
Azimut and Atlantis meggachts, yachts, and other recreational boats foNibrtheast United States from Maryl:
to Maine. We believe the non-Brunswick brands offenigration for our existing customer base ordilloid in our
product offerings, and accordingly, do not compeitl the business generated from our other prontibeands.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than Sea Ray and Hatteras Yachtgrund
renewable annual dealer agreements, each of whiek gs the right to sell various makes and moad®ats
within a given geographic region. Any change omieation of these agreements, or the agreemertssied
above, for any reason, or changes in competitagylatory, or marketing practices, including relatecentive
programs, could adversely affect our results ofatpens. Although there are a limited number of ofanturers of
the type of boats and products that we sell, webelthat adequate alternative sources would biéealato replact
any manufacturer other than Brunswick as a prosioietce. These alternative sources may not be alad the
time of any interruption, and alternative produni@y not be available at comparable terms, whicldcaffiect
operating results adversely.

In order to provide comparability between periodsspnted, certain amounts have been reclassified thie
previously reported consolidated financial statetmém conform to the consolidated financial statetpeesentation
of the current period. The consolidated finandiatesments include our accounts and the accourttsrafubsidiarie
all of which are wholly owned. All significant imeompany transactions and accounts have been alietin
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

2. ACQUISITIONS:

We commenced operations with the acquisition a&f fndependent recreational boat dealers on MartB98. Since the
initial acquisitions, we have acquired 20 recresldoat dealers, two boat brokerage operatiorsivao full-service yacht
repair facilities. As a part of our acquisitionagtgy, we frequently engage in discussions witiouarrecreational boat
dealers regarding their potential acquisition byRmtential acquisition discussions frequently tpkee over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration astter issues, including, in some cases, managesnenéssion and related
matters. As a result of these and other factonsinaber of potential acquisitions that from timeitoe appear likely to occur
do not result in binding legal agreements and ateonsummated. The following describes the actjpiisi we completed
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006idjaficant acquisitions were completed duringfikeal years ended
September 30, 2005 and 2007.

During January 2006, we acquired substantiallpitihe assets, including certain real estate, asdraed certain
liabilities of the Port Arrowhead Group (Port Arrbaad), a privately held boat dealership with lawaiin Missouri and
Oklahoma, for approximately $27.5 million in caphys $5.0 million in working capital adjustmentscluding acquisition
costs. Port Arrowhead operates six retail locatiomduding a large marina with more than 300 slifise acquisition expan
our ability to serve consumers in the Midwest bggatommunity, including neighboring boating dediimas in Illinois,
Kansas, and Arkansas. The acquisition also all@e @apitalize on Port Arrowhead’s market positionl leverage our
inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. Based on a tlartswaluation, the
purchase price, including acquisition costs, reslib the recognition of approximately $6.0 milliohtax deductible
goodwill and approximately $2.0 million of tax dexible indefinite-lived intangible assets (dealgreements). Port
Arrowhead has been included in our consolidateaniinal statements since the date of acquisitiomfétma results of
operations have not been presented with respéiasetBort Arrowhead acquisition, as the pre-acdaisigffects of the
acquisition was not significant in fiscal 2005 &006.

During March 2006, we acquired substantially altref assets and assumed certain liabilities ofs&le+3 Marina, Inc.
(Surfside), a privately held boat dealership witthélocations in New York and Connecticut, for egppmately $24.8 millio
in cash and 665,024 shares of common stock, pl€9$gillion in working capital adjustments, incladiacquisition costs.
The shares were valued at $33.71 per share, whashtlve average closing market price of our comnmekgor the five day-
period beginning two days prior to and ending haggisubsequent to the acquisition date. The atiguigxpands our abilit
to serve consumers in the Northeast boating cormsnant allows us to capitalize on Surfside’s mapegition and leverage
our inventory management and inventory financirepueces over the acquired locations. Based orra@iplarty valuation, th
purchase price, including acquisition costs, reslih the recognition of approximately $40.0 mitliof tax deductible
goodwill and approximately $16.4 million of tax deible indefinitelived intangible assets (dealer agreements). Siertsa:
been included in our consolidated financial stateissince the date of acquisition.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asdumthe acquisitions
of Port Arrowhead and Surfside during 2006 (amoimthousands):

Receivable: $ 5,501
Inventories 119,80¢
Other current asse 39z
Property and equipme 20,38t
Goodwill 45,99
Other identifiable intangible asse 18,37t

Total assets acquire $ 210,45(
Shor-term borrowings $ (92,770
Other current liabilitie (14,009

Total current liabilities assume (106,779

Net assets acquire $ 103,67t

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizan presents the combined results of operatiomotompany with
the operations of Surfside as if the acquisitiod becurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2005 a@d@&2(amounts in
thousands, except per share data):

For the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30,

2005 2006
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue $1,095,411 $1,264,85.
Net income $ 36,45t $ 37,67¢
Net income per common she
Basic $ 2.0¢ $ 2.05
Dilutive $ 1.9¢ $ 1.9¢

This unaudited pro forma financial information i®gented for informational purposes only. The uitaddgro forma
financial information includes an adjustment toorecincome taxes as if Surfside were taxed as ar@ocation from the
beginning of the periods presented until its adjarsdate. The unaudited pro forma financial imi@ation does not include
adjustments to remove certain private company esggwhich may not be incurred in future periodisil&rly, the
unaudited pro forma financial information does inotude adjustments for additional expenses, ssatet, insurance,
interest incurred on borrowings for cash paid ggition, and other expenses that would have bem=nred subsequent to
the acquisition date. The unaudited pro forma fim@rinformation may not necessarily reflect outufie results of operations
or what the results of operations would have beshwe owned and operated Surfside as of the bewjrofithe periods
presented.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consolidated statements offtash, we consider all highly liquid investment#twan original
maturity of three months or less to be cash egental

We made interest payments of approximately $9.0anjl$17.2 million, and $26.6 million for the fistyears ended
September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectiveliyding interest on debt to finance our real estaidings and new boat
inventory. We made income tax payments of approtéin&15.3 million, $8.9 million, and $26.0 millidor the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, resplgctiv
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Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our weadn accordance with Emerging Issues Task Faseel
No. 0z-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Resglfer Certain Consideration Received from a Verfidor
(EITF 02-16). EITF 02-16 most significantly requdnes to classify interest assistance received frmnufacturers
as a reduction of inventory cost and related cbsales as opposed to netting the assistance againsterest
expense incurred with our lenders. Pursuant to BIZH26, amounts received by us under our co-ostassie
programs from our manufacturers are netted agegteted advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aeghie inventory, net of vendor consideration anctpase
discounts, the cost of equipment added, recondlitipcosts, and transportation costs relating taigicgy inventory
for sale. We state new and used boat, motor, aildrtinventories at the lower of cost, determinada specific-
identification basis, or market. We state parts acwkssories at the lower of cost, determined effittt-in, firstout
basis, or market. Based on the agings of the iovierstand our consideration of current market tsemge maintain
lower of cost or market valuation allowance, whichs not material to the consolidated financialestents taken ¢
a whole as of September 30, 2006 or 2007.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost, net cfimclated depreciation, and depreciate property and
equipment over their estimated useful lives usirggdtraight-line method. We capitalize and amotgasehold
improvements over the lesser of the life of theséear the estimated useful life of the asset. Udieks for purpose
of computing depreciation are as follows:

Years
Buildings and improvemen 5-40
Machinery and equipme 3-10
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 3-5

We remove the cost of property and equipment solétired and the related accumulated deprecidtam the
accounts at the time of disposition, and includg r@sulting gain or loss in the consolidated statets of
operations. We charge maintenance, repairs, andrmeplacements to operations as incurred; we alg@tand
amortize major replacements and improvements dngr iseful lives.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and identifiable intangilsissets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinati¢8FAS 141), and Statement of Financial Accountin
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibkséts” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that all lassin
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be astalifor using the purchase method of accountingidentifiable
intangible assets acquired in a business combmagaecognized as assets and reported separatelygbodwill.
We have determined that our most significant aeglidentifiable intangible assets are the dealexeagents, whic
are indefinite-lived intangible assets. SFAS 14fuies that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangitdissets no
longer be amortized, but instead tested for impaimat least annually and whenever events or clsange
circumstances indicate that the carrying value maybe recoverable. If the carrying amount of goitidw an
identifiable intangible asset exceeds its fair galwe would recognize an impairment loss. We mesany potentic
impairment based on various business valuation edelbgies, including a projected discounted casiv finethod.
We completed the annual impairment test duringaheth quarter of fiscal 2007, based on finanaiéimation as
of the third quarter of fiscal 2007, which resultedho impairment of goodwill or
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identifiable intangible assets. To date, we hawa@wognized any impairment of goodwill or idergtile intangible
assets in the application of SFAS 142.

There was no goodwill amortization expense forftbeal years ended September 30, 2005, 2006, abid 20
Accumulated amortization of goodwill was approxigigat$2.6 million at September 30, 2006 and 2007.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Adcounting for Impairment or Disposal of Longwed
Assets” (SFAS 144), requires that long-lived asseish as property and equipment and purchaseubjibtas
subject to amortization, be reviewed for impairmehenever events or changes in circumstances iedicat the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&geoverability of the asset is measured by coraparof its
carrying amount to undiscounted future net cashdlthe asset is expected to generate. If suchsamsetonsidered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognizedessured as the amount by which the carrying amafuthe asse
exceeds its fair market value. Estimates of exgeftteire cash flows represent managensbést estimate based
currently available information and reasonable sungportable assumptions. Any impairment recognized
accordance with SFAS 144 is permanent and mayenaediored. To date, we have not recognized angirment
of long-lived assets in connection with SFAS 144.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits primarily include amounts reakivem customers toward the purchase of boats. We
recognize these deposits as revenue upon delivegoeptance of the related boats to customers.

Insurance

We retain varying levels of risk relating to theumance policies we maintain, most significantlyrkeos’
compensation insurance and employee medical bendfi are responsible for the claims and lossesried under
these programs, limited by per occurrence dedwsibhd paid claims or losses up to pre-determireedmum
exposure limits. Any losses above the pre-deterchexgosure limits are paid by our third-party irmwe carriers.
We estimate our liability for incurred but not refsal losses using our historical loss experienaejudgment, and
industry information.

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordamitk Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133,“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Certéladging Activities” (SFAS 133), as amended by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 188counting for Certain Derivative Instrumentsda@ertain
Hedging Activity, an Amendment of SFAS 133" (SFAS8) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 149,"Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instrutaemd Hedging Activities” (SFAS 149),
(collectively SFAS 133). Under these standardsjedivative instruments are recorded on the balaheet at their
respective fair values.

We utilize certain derivative instruments, from ¢irto time, including interest rate swaps and fodiw@mntracts
to manage variability in cash flows associated \witerest rates and forecasted purchases of bodtgahts from
certain of our foreign suppliers in Euro dollars.

The accounting for changes in the fair value (gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depamdwhether
it has been designated and qualifies as part eflgihg relationship based on its effectivenessuiging against the
exposure and further, on the type of hedging m@hatip. For those derivative instruments that asghated and
qualify as hedging instruments, we designate tluging instrument, based upon the exposure beingdtkas a fa
value hedge or a cash flow hedge.

F-12




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Our forward contracts and interest rate swap asggdated and accounted for as cash flow hedgeshéedging
the exposure to variability in expected future clelvs that is attributable to a particular ris8FAS No. 133
provides that the effective portion of the gairlass on a derivative instrument designated andfgira as a cash
flow hedging instrument be reported as a compoagather comprehensive income and be reclassifiedaarning
in the same line item in the income statement ah#uged item in the same period or periods duvimgh the
transaction affects earnings. The ineffective partif the gain or loss on these derivative instntsaf any, is
recognized in other income/expense in current agenduring the period of change.

For derivative instruments not designated as hegigistruments, we recognize the gain or loss iemth
income/expense in current earnings during the desfachange. When a cash flow hedge is terminaftéuk
forecasted hedged transaction is still probablecetirrence, amounts previously recorded in othemrehensive
income remain in other comprehensive income andem@gnized in earnings in the period in whichhiedged
transaction affects earnings.

Additional information with regard to accountingliptes associated with derivative instruments istamed in
Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and tragéées and parts and service operations at thethienleoat,
motor, trailer, or part is delivered to or accepbgdhe customer or service is completed. We reizegrommissions
earned from a brokerage sale at the time the telatekerage transaction closes. We recognize reviom slip
and storage services on a straight-line basis ttreeterm of the slip or storage agreement. We meizeg
commissions earned by us for placing notes withrfaial institutions in connection with customer tiir@ancing
when we recognize the related boat sales. We atsmmnize marketing fees earned on credit life,dertdi and
disability, and hull insurance products sold bydkparty insurance companies at the later of cust@nceptance of
the insurance product as evidenced by contractugioacor when we recognize the related boat salestrRint to
negotiated agreements with financial and insuramst#utions, we are charged back for a portiothese fees
should the customer terminate or default on thegedl finance or insurance contract before it istantding for a
stipulated minimal period of time. The chargebatdveance, which was not material to the consoliddieancial
statements taken as a whole as of September 36,@®D07, is based on our experience with repaysman
defaults on the related finance or insurance cotdra

We also recognize commissions earned on extendadmta service contracts sold on behalf of thirdipa
insurance companies at the later of customer aagegtof the service contract terms as evidencexbiyact
execution, or recognition of the related boat séle.are charged back for a portion of these comarisshould the
customer terminate or default on the service cehpsor to its scheduled maturity. The chargebaltdwance,
which was not material to the consolidated finalnstiatements taken as a whole as of Septembei086, @& 2007,
is based upon our experience with repayments @udisfon the service contracts.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to October 1, 2005, we accounted for ourestiesed compensation plans under the recognitidn an
measurement provisions of Accounting PrinciplesrBd@pinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations disdlosure requirements established by Statenfdfihancial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for St8&sed CompensationSFAS 123), as amended by Staten
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accangtfor Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure” (SFAS 148). Under APB 25, because thaatgprice was equal to or greater than fair valoe
compensation expense was recorded in earningaif@tock options and awards granted under our grapletock
purchase plan (ESPP). The pro forma effects oimnetne and earnings per share for stock option<&=8RP
awards were disclosed in a footnote to the findrstéements. Compensation expense was recordsatnings for
non-vested common stock awards (restricted stoeta@dsmand restricted stock units) and Board of Dinefees.
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Effective October 1, 2005, we adopted the provsiohStatement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R) for our sharedasmpensation plans. We adopted SFAS 123R
using the modified prospective transition methoddér this transition method, compensation costgeized in
fiscal 2006 and 2007 includes (a) the compensatish for all share-based awards granted priorubnbt yet
vested as of October 1, 2005, based on the graetfaia value estimated in accordance with theioalgprovisions
of SFAS 123 and (b) the compensation cost fortalles-based awards granted subsequent to SeptefRH0S,
based on the grant-date fair value estimated inrdenice with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Resualtgfior
periods have not been restated. As a result ohdoption of SFAS 123R, we recorded compensatiorresgfor
stock options of approximately $3.5 million and &gillion before tax, or $0.15 and $0.15 per ditlshare after-
tax for the fiscal years ended September 30, 26062807

The following table illustrates the effect on netome and earnings per share as if we had appléetatrvalue
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to all of ounsftbased compensation awards for periods pritret@doption
of SFAS 123R, and the actual effect on net inconteearnings per share for periods subsequent tadbyetion of
SFAS 123R (amounts in thousands, except per sladag: d

For the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30
2005

Net income as reporte $ 33,82¢
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensagdiedlin reported net income, net

of related tax effects of $283 for the fiscal yeaded

September 30, 20( 452
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioarespdetermined under the fair

value based method for all awards, net of rela®dffects of $663 for the fiscal year

ended September 30, 20 (2,959

Pro forma net incom $ 31,32¢
Basic earnings per sha

As reportec $ 2.01

Pro forma $ 1.8¢
Diluted earnings per shar

As reportec $ 1.8¢

Pro forma $ 1.7

Advertising and Promotional Costs

We expense advertising and promotional costs asried and include them in selling, general, and
administrative expenses in the accompanying catesteld statements of operations. Pursuant to EITESQ2ve net
amounts received by us under our co-op assistalgegms from our manufacturers against the relatke@rtising
expenses. Total advertising and promotional exmeapproximated $14.5 million, $16.5 million and $Lanillion,
net of related cap assistance of approximately $1.6 million, $1iiom and $1.2 million, for the fiscal years ent
September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance witheBtant of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS 109). Under S§-209, we recognize deferred tax assets and tiabifor
the future tax consequences attributable to tenmpalifferences between the financial statementygagramounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their resipedax basis. We measure deferred tax assethanilities using
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enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablamieda the years in which those temporary differerare expected
to be recovered or settled.

We operate in multiple states with varying tax laamsl are subject to both federal and state aufldaraax
filings. We make estimates to determine that oxiréserves are adequate to cover audit adjustniéats. Actual
audit results could vary from the estimates readtoleus. As the number of years that are operafoatdits vary
depending on tax jurisdiction, a number of yeary mlapse before a particular matter is auditedfanadly resolved
While it is often difficult to predict the final dcome or timing of resolution of a particular taxter, we believe
that our consolidated financial statements retleetappropriate outcome of known tax contingencies.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of RiremAccounting Standard No. 154A¢counting Change
and Error Corrections” (SFAS 154) which replacesdmting Principles Board Opinion No. 20, “Accoungfi
Changes,” (APB 20) and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Aagting Changes in Interim Financial Statements-An
Amendment of APB Opinion No. 285FAS 3). SFAS 154 provides guidance on the acaogifitir and reporting ¢
accounting changes and error corrections. SFASsl&#ective for accounting changes and correatibarrors
made in fiscal years beginning after December 0852 The adoption of SFAS 154 during the first ¢graof our
2007 fiscal year did not have an effect on our obidated financial statements.

During June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Forld&-jfof the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) reached a consensus on Issue No. 06-3, “Haxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to
Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented intheme Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net Pratsam)”
(EITF 06-3). The consensus determined that theesobI TF 06-3 includes any tax assessed by a govemtal
authority that is imposed concurrently on a spec#ivenue-producing transaction between a selaasustomer,
and may include, but is not limited to, sales, wsdye added, and some excise taxes. EITF @8determined th
the presentation of taxes on either a gross basiset basis within the scope of EITF 06-3 is ecpanting policy
decision that should be disclosed pursuant to ARBIOn No. 22, “Disclosure of Accounting PoliciegRPB 22).
EITF 06-3 does not require a company to reevalitsiexisting policies related to taxes assessed gpgvernmental
authority that are directly imposed on a revenumpcing transaction between a seller and a custdeieF 06-3 is
effective for interim and annual financial statesdmeginning after December 15, 2006, with earlyption
permitted. The adoption of EITF 06-3 during thetfiquarter of our 2007 fiscal year did not havetiect on our
consolidated financial statements as taxes cotléfcten customers and remitted to governmental aiiibs are
presented net in our consolidated statements ohtpas.

During June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation48p “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” (FIN 48), an interpretation of FASB Stateidn. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes3EAS 109). FIN 4
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in an enterprise’s financial statds in
accordance with SFAS 109. FIN 48 prescribes a mtog threshold and measurement attribute forfitnencial
statement recognition and measurement of a tatiposaken or expected to be taken in a tax retsiiN.48 also
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatinterest and penalties, accounting in interimqmisj disclosure,
and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal yedmeginning after December 15, 2006. We will ad€pt 48 in the
first quarter of fiscal year 2008 and are curreptraluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on ounsmidated
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1540y Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157
defines fair value, applies to other accountinghprmcements that require or permit fair value mesamants and
expands disclosures about fair value measurem®hsS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginningaf
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within thiiseal years. We are currently assessing the iraptins of this
standard and evaluating the impact of adopting SE3Son our consolidated financial statements.
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In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AccourBintetin No. 108 “Considering the Effects of Pridear
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements inr€nirYear Financial Statements” (SAB 108), to addre
diversity in practice in quantifying financial statent misstatements and the potential for the lugldf improper
amounts on the balance sheet. SAB 108 identifiesfiproach that registrants should take when etuadutne
effects of unadjusted misstatements on each fiahatatement, the circumstances under which caorecbf
misstatements should result in a revision to fimelretatements, and disclosures related to thesction of
misstatements. SAB 108 is effective for financtatements for any interim period of the first fisgaar ending afte
November 16, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 durimgfirst quarter of our 2007 fiscal year did notdan effec
on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159ir*¥alue Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” (SFAS 159), which permits an entity teeasure certain financial assets and financihliliies at fair
value. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years begig after November 15, 2007. We are currently ssing the
implications of this standard and evaluating thpant of adopting SFAS 159 on our consolidated ffen
statements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjectaigoncentrations of credit risk, consist prindipaf cash
and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. @tvatiens of credit risk with respect to our casd aash
equivalents are limited primarily to amounts helthvfinancial institutions. Concentrations of cried$k arising
from our receivables are limited primarily to amtaudue from manufacturers and financial institusion

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our financial instrumentpragimates fair value due either to length to miatwor
existence of interest rates that approximate pliegainarket rates unless otherwise disclosed isdtwmnsolidated
financial statements.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyall
accepted in the United States requires us to mstkaates and assumptions that affect the reportexliats of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the conatdid financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenuexgahses during the reporting periods. Signifiestimates
made by us in the accompanying consolidated fimdustatements relate to valuation allowances, vaoaf
goodwill and intangible assets, valuation of longedl assets, and valuation of accruals. Actualltesould differ
from those estimates.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Trade receivables consist primarily of receivalitem financial institutions, which provide fundirfigr
customer boat financing, and amounts due from &iigdmnstitutions earned from arranging financinghaour
customers. We normally collect these receivablélsimBO0 days of the sale. Trade receivables alslodi® amounts
due from customers on the sale of boats, partgiceeiand storage. Amounts due from manufactuepeesent
receivables for various manufacturer programs amts@nd service work performed pursuant to theufis@turers’
warranties.

The allowance for uncollectible receivables, whigds not material to the consolidated financialestants as
of September 30, 2006 or 2007, was based on owid=Eration of customer payment practices, passaetion
history with customers, and economic conditions.ékgew the allowance for uncollectible receivabldsen an
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event or other change in circumstances resulthmage in the estimate of the ultimate colledtipidf a specific
account.

The accounts receivable balances consisted obtluaing at September 30,

2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)
Trade receivable $22,12¢ $28,25:
Amounts due from manufacture 26,08’ 27,81
Other receivable 9,371 1,26¢

$57,58¢ $57,33:

5. INVENTORIES:

Inventories, net consisted of the following at epver 30,

2006 2007

(Amounts in thousands)
New boats, motors and traile $382,07° $382,12:
Used boats, motors and trailt 69,72¢ 83,29:
Parts, accessories and ot 11,04 12,627

$462,84° $478,03!

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Property and equipment consisted of the followin§eptember 30,

2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)
Land $ 43,147 $ 43,14
Buildings and improvemen 71,991 78,61¢
Machinery and equipme 32,311 31,50¢
Furniture and fixture 7,09¢ 5,41¢€
Vehicles 6,20 5,62¢
160,74¢ 164,31!
Less— Accumulated depreciatic (38,539 (45,35%)

$122,21Y  $118,96(

Depreciation expense totaled approximately $5.8anil$8.3 million, and $9.5 million for the fiscgkars
ended September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, resplgctiv
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7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

The changes in the carrying amounts of net goodwill identifiable intangible assets for the fisezdrs ended
September 30, were as follows:

Identifiable
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total
(Amounts in thousands)

Balance, September 30, 2C $50,52: $ 5,66 $ 56,18«
Changes during the peri 43,54° 16,46/ 60,01:
Balance, September 30, 2C $94,06¢ $ 22,127 $116,19
Changes during the perit 3,37¢ 1,601 4,97¢
Balance, September 30, 2C $97,44¢ $ 23,72¢ $121,17-

The changes in the carrying amounts of net goodwill identifiable intangible assets for the fisezdrs ended
September 30, 2006 and 2007, relate to acquisitinsonsummated.

8. OTHER LONG -TERM ASSETS:

During February 2006, we became party to a joimtwes with Brunswick that acquired certain reahtsand
assets of Great American Marina for an aggregatehaise price of approximately $11.0 million, of wliniwe
contributed approximately $4.0 million and Brunskveontributed approximately $7.0 million. The terofshe
agreement specify that we operate and maintaisghgce business, and Brunswick operates and niasritze
marina business. Simultaneously with the closihg,acquired entity became Gulfport Marina, LLC (@att). We
account for our investment in Gulfport in accordamgth Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18he Equity
Method of Accounting for Investments in Common &toéccordingly, we adjust the carrying amount afro
investment in Gulfport to recognize our share ahas or losses.

9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITY:

During fiscal 2006, we entered into foreign currenash flow hedges to reduce the variability othciews
associated with forecasted purchases of boatsacits/from certain of our foreign suppliers in Edodlars. These
cash flow hedges are designed to offset changespected cash flows due to fluctuations in the Elalar from
the time the contracts are entered into until dataklivery of the inventory and corresponding pawpiseare made.
September 30, 2006, there were outstanding coatratich had a combined notional amount of appraxéty
$10.4 million and matured during fiscal 2007. Thegetracts are designated as cash flow hedgestsiegeare
expected to be highly effective in offsetting chas@n the cash flows attributable to forecastedimases of yachts
and boats from certain of our foreign supplier&uro dollars. Because the critical terms of theveod contracts
and the forecasted transactions coincide (i.e.¢tineency, notional amount, and timing), changesaish flows
attributable to the risks being hedged are expdctba@ completely offset by the forward contrace ®écount for
the cost of entering into the hedging instrumentglifference between the spot rate and the forwetel at
inception, as ineffective and amortize and recagthie related cost as an expense in earnings lowdifd of the
related instrument. Outstanding contracts at SelpeerB0, 2006 had unrealized gains of approxima&big1,000,
which were recorded in other current assets ocdhsolidated balance sheet and qualify as higtigctve for
reporting purposes. Effectiveness of yacht and foratard contracts is determined by comparing thenge in the
fair value of the forward contract to the changéhie expected cash to be paid for the hedged Deming the year
ended September 30, 2006, the ineffective portidhehedging instruments was not significant. €losed
contracts related to inventory on hand at Septerd®e2006, we recorded approximately $92,000 oéalzed
gains as a contra inventory on the consolidateantal sheet. These unrealized gains were recogaszadeduction
to the cost of sale when the related boat was #al8eptember 30, 2006, the net unrealized gailasaeto open
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and closed contracts recorded in accumulated otimaprehensive income were approximately $453,0800htax.

At September 30, 2007, there were no outstandireidgo currency cash flow hedge contracts. Duriregytbar
ended September 30, 2007, the ineffective portfdhehedging instruments was not significant.

During fiscal 2006, we entered into an interest avap agreement with a notional amount of $4.0anjlthat
matures in June 2015, and is designated as aloashddge and effectively converts a portion offlbating rate
debt to a fixed rate of 5.67%. Since all of theéicai terms of the swap exactly match those ofrbdged debt, no
ineffectiveness has been identified in the hedgatationship. Consequently, all changes in faiueadre recorded
a component of other comprehensive income. Our @Gomperiodically determines the effectiveness efgtvap b
determining that the critical terms still matchtetenining that the future interest payments atemtobable of
occurrence, and evaluating the likelihood of thenterparty’s compliance with the terms of the swatp.
September 30, 2006 and 2007, the swap agreemeat fa&dvalue of approximately $88,000 and $45,0@ich
were recorded in other long-term assets on theatioiased balance sheets.

10. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:

During June 2007, we entered into an amendmentioéxisting credit facility, which modified the dieition of
“Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio” and extended the térour second amended and restated credit andityec
agreement entered into in June 2006 with the sanuels. The amended credit facility matures in @2@32, with
two one-year renewal options. At September 30, 2@8@Avere in compliance with all of the credit fagi
covenants.

Prior to June 2007, we entered into a second andeguute restated credit and security agreement gtit e
financial institutions during June 2006. The créaldility provides us a line of credit with assetsied borrowing
availability of up to $500 million for working cai and inventory financing, with the amount of pésible
borrowings determined pursuant to a borrowing asaula. The credit facility also permits approveshdor
floorplan borrowings of up to $20 million. The crefhcility accrues interest at the London Interb&@ffered Rate
(LIBOR) plus 150 to 260 basis points, with the et rate based upon the ratio of our net outstanolbrrowings ti
our tangible net worth. The credit facility is sest by our inventory, accounts receivable, equignfemiture, and
fixtures. The credit facility requires us to satisertain covenants, including maintaining a legeraatio tied to our
tangible net worth. The other terms and conditiminthe new credit facility are generally similartte previous
credit facility. The credit facility extended theatarity of the credit facility to May 2011, with twone-year renewal
options. For the periods ending September 30, 20062005 the credit facility provided us with adsased
borrowing availability up to $500 million and $34tillion, and accrued interest at a rate of LIBOBR150 to
260 basis points.

Short-term borrowings as of September 30, 2006280d were $321.5 million and $326.0 million,
respectively. The additional available borrowingsler the credit facility at September 30, 2006 2007 were
$130.0 million and $148.9 million, respectively. 3&ptember 30, 2006 and 2007, the interest ratkenautstandin
short-term borrowings was 6.8% and 7.2%, respdgtive

As is common in our industry, we receive interestistance directly from boat manufacturers, incigdi
Brunswick. The interest assistance programs vampagufacturer and generally include periods of fiegncing or
reduced interest rate programs. The interest assistmay be paid directly to us or our lender déjpenon the
arrangements the manufacturer has establishedlas&fy interest assistance received from manufactias a
reduction of inventory cost and related cost oésas opposed to netting the assistance againsttergst expense
incurred with our lenders.
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11. LONG-TERM DEBT:
Long-term debt consisted of the following at SefdiensO0,

2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Various mortgage notes payable to financial in8tis, due in monthly installments rang

from $26,357 to $30,860 bearing fixed interesi#s ranging from 6.57% to 7.75%,

maturing September 2010 through July 2015, cobiditerd by machinery and equipme¢  $ 7,112 $ 6,06(
Various mortgage notes payable to financial instins, due in monthly installments rang

from $22,605 to $102,000, bearing variable inteatsates ranging from 6.58% to 7.35%,

maturing September 2012 through June 2016, cddliied by machinery and equipme¢ 30,07« 24,77:

37,18¢ 30,83t

Less— Current maturitie! (4,532 (4,396)

$32,65¢ $26,431

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt wer®lkmvs at September 30, 2007:

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 $ 4,39¢
2009 4,47
2010 4,56%
2011 3,90z
2012 3,70¢
Thereaftel 9,79:

Total $ 30,83:

12. INCOME TAXES:

The components of our provision for income taxessizied of the following for the fiscal years ended
September 30,

2005 2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Current provision (benefit

Federa $18,87. $22,09. $10,37:

State 2,17¢ 2,84¢ (1,529
Total current provisiol 21,04¢ 24,93¢ 8,85:
Deferred provision (benefit

Federa 33C 927 (1,247

State 33 93 (129
Total deferred provision (benef 363 1,02( (1,367
Total income tax provisio $21,41: $25,95¢ $ 7,48¢
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Below is a reconciliation of the statutory fedéralome tax rate to our effective tax rate for tisedl years ended

September 30,
2005 2006 2007

Federal tax provisio 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State tax provision, net of federal ben 3€% 3% 2.3%
State income tax settleme — —  (13.)%
Stock based compensati — 1.0% 2.1%
Valuation allowanct — — 1.%%
Other 0.2% 0.1% (0.9%

Effective tax rate 38.8% 39.1% 27.2%

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 200%etted certain tax positions under an initiatkered by one of the
states in which we conduct operations. As a resfutis settlement, we reduced our reserve foringeht income tax
liabilities by approximately $5.2 million. Due tbe amount paid under the settlement, the reduaiiolcome tax expense
was approximately $3.8 million for the fiscal yesrded September 30, 2007. Without this reductlmneffective tax rate
would have been approximately 40.9% for the yededrSeptember 30, 2007.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of tempoditferences between the amount of assets ahiifiies recognized
for financial reporting purposes and such amouwtsgnized for income tax purposes. The tax effefctsese temporary
differences representing the components of deféaredssets (liabilities) at September 30 wereobgvis:

2006 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Current deferred tax assets (liabilitie

Inventories $ 2,31 $ 2,62(
Accrued expense 2,45¢ 3,86t
Foreign currency hedg: (284 —
Net current deferred tax ass $ 4,48¢ $ 6,48t

Long-term deferred tax (liabilities) asse
Depreciation and amortizatic $(13,355)  $(15,82¢)
Stock based compensati 1,65( 3,781
State tax loss carryforwar — 50t
Other 66 76
Long-term deferred tax liabilities $(11,639) (11,466
Valuation allowanct — (505)
Net lonc-term deferred tax liabilitie $(11,639  $(11,97)

At September 30, 2007, we maintained a valuatitmwaince for deferred tax assets of approximateG5$500.
SFAS 109 requires a valuation allowance to redoealeferred tax assets reported if, based upoweight of evidence, it
more likely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized. Thenale realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation akftanable income during the periods in which terapodifferences and t:
loss carryforwards become deductible or are utllix&e concluded that it was appropriate to estalalifull valuation
allowance against our separate jurisdiction setddss carryforwards, using the “more likely thot” criteria.
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13. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofase up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock. Under the pla may buy back common stock from time to timéhie open market
or in privately negotiated blocks, dependant uparious factors, including price and availabilitytbé shares, and general
market conditions. At September 30, 2007, we hadhased an aggregate of 719,600 shares of commock whder the plan
for an aggregate purchase price of approximatedy8tnillion.

14. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

Upon adoption of SFAS 123R, we continued to useéBlaek-Scholes valuation model for valuing all #@ptions and
shares granted under the ESPP. Compensation facted stock awards and restricted stock unitsa@asured at fair value
on the grant date based on the number of sharexxpto vest and the quoted market price of oomaon stock.
Compensation cost for all awards are recognizeghinings, net of estimated forfeitures, on a dhitdlige basis over the
requisite service period for each separately vggiortion of the award.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased payment arrangements for the fiscal yealsce8eptember 30,
2005, 2006, and 2007 was approximately $5.3 millgh9 million, and $3.2 million, respectively. Thgnefits realized for
tax deductions from option exercises for the fisesrs ended September 30, 2005, 2006, and 200@&ppasximately
$2.7 million, $1.5 million, and $800,000, respeetiv We currently expect to satisfy share-baseddsvaith registered
shares available to be issued.

15. THE INCENTIVE STOCK PLANS:

During February 2007, our stockholders approvetbagsal to approve our 2007 Incentive Stock PI&072Plan), whicl
replaced our 1998 Incentive Stock Plan (1998 Plam).2007 Plan provides for the grant of stockapti stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, stock units, bonus stddkidend equivalents, other stock related awaads, performance awards
(collectively awards), that may be settled in casbek, or other property. Our 2007 Plan is degigoeattract, motivate,
retain, and reward our executives, employees,@fiairectors, and independent contractors byigiry such persons with
annual and long-term performance incentives to ratpleeir maximum efforts in the creation of stockien value. The total
number of shares of our common stock that may bsuto awards under the 2007 Plan is equal t0010@0 shares, plus
(i) any shares available for issuance and not subjean award under the 1998 Plan, (ii) the nunobshares with respect to
which awards granted under the 2007 Plan and tB8 Bfan terminate without the issuance of the sharavhere the shares
are forfeited or repurchased; (iii) with respectwards granted under the 2007 Plan and the 1%88 fPle number of shares
that are not issued as a result of the award tsattied for cash or otherwise not issued in conomaetith the exercise or
payment of the award; and (iv) the number of shtrasare surrendered or withheld in payment ofetkercise price of any
award or any tax withholding requirements in cotioacwith any award granted under the 2007 Planthad 998 Plan. The
2007 Plan terminates in February 2017, and awasgyslra granted at any time during the life of th@2@lan. The date on
which awards vest are determined by the Board téddars or the Plan Administrator. The exercisegwiof options are
determined by the Board of Directors or the Plamidstrator and are at least equal to the fair rebvilue of shares of
common stock on the date of grant. The term ofoostunder the 2007 Plan may not exceed ten yehesoftions granted
have varying vesting periods. To date, we havesatited or been under any obligation to settleamgrds in cash.

F-22




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table summarizes option activity fr@eptember 30, 2006 through September 30, 2007:

Weighted
Average
Shares Aggregate Remaining
Available Options Intrinsic Weighted Average Contractual
for Grant Outstanding Value Exercise Price Life
(In thousands)
Balance at September 30, 2( 394,72¢ 2,364,533 $ 2258: $ 16.8( 5.€
Options authorize 1,000,001 —
Options grante: (121,000) 121,00( $ 25.5i
Options cancelled/fortfeited/expirt 179,21 (179,21 $ 21.6(
Restricted stock units issu (222,100)
Options exercise — (149,780 $ 10.5¢
Balance at September 30, 2( 1,230,84. 2,156,54! $ 499 $ 17.3¢ 5.2
Exercisable at September 30, 2( — 1,053,85: $ 3,71C % 13.01 .3

The weightedaverage grant date fair value of options grantethduhe fiscal years ended September 30, 2005, 241
2007 was $12.35, $12.53, and $12.13, respectiVélg.total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe fiscal years ended
September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 was approxiyrifeb million, $5.2 million, and $2.0 million, nesctively.

As of September 30, 2006 and 2007, there was appately $6.6 million and $4.8 million, respectivebf unrecognized
compensation costs related to n@sted options that is expected to be recognized @weighted average period of 3.9 yi
and 3.3 years, respectively. The total fair valieptions vested during the fiscal years endedesaper 30, 2005, 2006, and
2007 was approximately $1.5 million, $1.4 milli@nd $1.9 million, respectively.

We continued using the Blackeholes model to estimate the fair value of optigmasmted during fiscal 2007. The expel
term of options granted is derived from the outpfiithe option pricing model and represents theqakeoiff time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. Volat#ityased on the historical volatility of our comnsionck. The risk-free rate
for periods within the contractual term of the op8 is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefaceht the time of grant.

The following are the weighted-average assumptiesl for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2005 2006 2007
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 5.0% 4.6% 4.6%
Volatility 42.1% 44.5% 42.7%
Expected life 5.4years 4.6years 6.5 year:

16. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN (THE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN):

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for ufs@000 shares of common stock to be availablpdochase by ot
regular employees who have completed at least eaeof continuous service. The Stock Purchase fittarides for
implementation of up to 10 annual offerings begiigndn the first day of October starting in 1998&hweach offering
terminating on September 30 of the following y&sach annual offering may be divided into two sixathoofferings. For
each offering, the purchase price per share withledower of (i) 85% of the closing price of thenemon stock on the first
day of the offering or (ii) 85% of the closing priof the common stock on the last day of the afferirhe purchase price is
paid through periodic payroll deductions not toesed 10% of the
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participant’s earnings during each offering periddwever, no participant may purchase more than0k@bworth of
common stock annually.

During 2007, we continued using the Black-Scholeslehto estimate the fair value of options graritedurchase shares
issued pursuant to the Stock Purchase Plan. Theceagterm of options granted is derived from thgpet of the option
pricing model and represents the period of time diptions granted are expected to be outstandintatNity is based on the
historical volatility of our common stock. The rifilee rate for periods within the contractual terhthe options is based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the tiohgrant.

The following are the weighted-average assumptiesl for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2005 2006 2007
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 3.0% 4.8% 4.9%
Volatility 41.5% 37.1% 43.4%
Expected life six months six months six months

As of September 30, 2007, we had issued 524,5880750,000 shares of common stock reserved foamse under our
1998 employee stock purchase plan.

17. RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS:

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, 2006, &007, we granted non-vested (restricted) stock @svar restricted stock
units (collectively restricted stock awards) totagr key employees pursuant to the 1998 IncentieekSPlan. The restricted
stock awards have varying vesting periods, but igdigedbecome fully vested at either the end of yiear or the end of year
five, depending on the specific award. The stoakeulying the vested restricted stock units willdetivered upon vesting.

We accounted for the restricted stock awards gdaintéiscal 2005 using the measurement and recognitrovisions of
APB 25. Accordingly, we measured compensation ab#ie grant date using the intrinsic value methlogse costs will be
recognized in earnings over the requisite servaséod. We accounted for the restricted stock awgrdated subsequent to
September 30, 2005 using the measurement and lidoagrrovisions of SFAS 123R. Accordingly, therfaalue of the
restricted stock awards is measured on the grdetattal recognized in earnings over the requisit@ceperiod for each
separately vesting portion of the award.

The following table summarizes restricted stochvitgtfrom September 30, 2006 through Septembei280;7:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2 278,00( $ 28.1¢
Changes during the peri

Shares grante 222,10 $ 28.4¢

Shares veste — % —

Shares forfeite: — % —

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2 500,10( $ 28.3(

As of September 30, 2006 and 2007, there was appately $5.3 million and $8.0 million, respectivebf unrecognized
compensation cost related to restricted stock asvidwal is expected to be recognized over a weightedage period of
3.5 years, respectively.
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18. NET INCOME PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the sharesdigethe denominator for calculating basic andtdilearnings per share
for the fiscal years ended September 30,

2005 2006 2007
Weighted average common shares outstanding uszdadualating basic net
income per shar 16,815,44 18,028,56 18,618,61
Effect of dilutive options 1,217,08: 900,17: 670,62(
Weighted average common and common equivalentshiges in calculatir
diluted net income per sha 18,032,53 18,928,73 19,289,23

Options to purchase 53,000, 699,500 and 742,10@slad common stock were outstanding at Septenthe2@®5, 2006,
and 2007, respectively, but were not included exdabmputation of diluted earnings per share bectingseptions’ exercise
prices were greater than the average market pfioarccommon stock, and therefore, their effect dae anti-dilutive.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Lease Commitments

We lease certain land, buildings, machinery, egeiptmand vehicles related to our dealerships unde+cancelable third-
party operating leases. Certain of our leases diectptions for renewal periods and provisions fmadation. Rental expense,
including month-to-month rentals, were approxima&9.4 million, $10.9 million, and $13.2 millionfthe fiscal years
ended September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, resplgctRental expense to related parties under ketleedable and non-
cancelable operating leases approximated $385d@0ath of the fiscal years ended September 3G, 2006, and 2007.

The rental payments to related parties, under baricelable and nocancelable operating leases during fiscal 20056,
and 2007, represent rental payments for buildingmtentity partially owned by an officer of ounggany. We believe the
terms of the transaction are consistent with thbaewe would obtain from third parties.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgigeating leases at September 30, 2007, werelaw/ol

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 $ 10,55(
2009 8,56¢
2010 7,745
2011 6,95¢
2012 5,41¢
Thereafte! 16,62:

Total $ 55,85:

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal actions arising edhdinary course of business. The ultimate lighilf any, associated
with theses matters was not material at Septene2@7. While it is not feasible to determine #latual outcome of these
actions as of September 30, 2007, we do not belletehese matters will have a material adverzedn our consolidated
financial condition, results of operations, or célelwvs.
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Associated with the December 2006 snow and icenstam Missouri, we received approximately $2.0 il of
insurance proceeds to date, of which approximai#l¢ million offset the related losses associatil thie destruction of
marina docks and significant expenses we incuggdnding damage and related clean up after thesidre additional
insurance proceeds received of approximately $&0@0ygere recorded as a gain during fiscal 2007.ifisrance proceeds
received to date were recorded as a reductionltogsegeneral, and administrative expenses orctimesolidated statements
operations during fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007, we received $2.1 million of mess interruption insurance proceeds for clainsseated with
Hurricane Wilma, which occurred in October 2005e Husiness interruption insurance proceeds wanburse us for the
interruption in our operations that resulted irt levenue and related profits in addition to tlgmiicant expenses incurred to
move and repair inventory and to reimburse us fimgured losses recognized by certain locationss&lproceeds were
recorded as a reduction to selling, general, angirzdtrative expenses on the consolidated statesw#raperations during
fiscal 2007.

We are subject to federal and state environmeatallations, including rules relating to air and @vgiollution and the
storage and disposal of gasoline, oil, other chalwiand waste. We believe that we are in complianttesuch regulations.

20. EMPLOYEE 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

Employees are eligible to participate in our 40Kk)fit Sharing Plan (the Plan) following their 88y introductory
period starting either April 1 or October 1, proxifithat they are 21 years of age. Under the Plammaich 50% of
participants’ contributions, up to a maximum of 8¥each participant’'s compensation. We contributedier the Plan, or
pursuant to previous similar plans, approximatelyd$nillion, $1.7 million, and $1.9 million for thféscal years ended
September 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

21. PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS:

During September 2001, we adopted a StockholdegsitR Plan (the Rights Plan) that may have thecefiédeterring,
delaying, or preventing a change in control thaghmbtherwise be in the best interests of our $tolders. Under the Rights
Plan, a dividend of one Preferred Share Purchagiet Rias issued for each share of common stockbhette stockholders
record as of the close of business on Septemi®2004,. Each right entitles stockholders to purchasan exercise price of
$50 per share, one-thousandth of a share of a maedted Series A Junior Participating PreferrediSt

In general, subject to certain limited exceptidhs, stock purchase rights become exercisable wipensan or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teaffer or exchange offer for 15% or more of oungnon stock is
announced or commenced. After any such event, stbekholders may purchase additional shares o€@mmon stock at
50% of the then-current market price. The right @giuse substantial dilution to a person or grthgt attempts to acquire us
on terms not approved by our Board of Directorse Tights should not interfere with any merger dreotbusiness
combination approved by the Board of Directors. Tigbts may be redeemed by us at $0.01 per stoahpsae right at any
time before any person or group acquires 15% oernbthe outstanding common stock. The rights expir August 28,
2011.

The Rights Plan adoption and Rights Distributioa ison-taxable event with no impact on our finaheaults.
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22. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following table sets forth certain unaudite@erly financial data for each of our last eigbaigers. The
information has been derived from unaudited finahsiatements that we believe reflect all adjusts)eonsisting
only of normal recurring adjustments, necessarytferfair presentation of such quarterly finanaidbrmation.

December 31 March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30, September 3C

2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007 2007 2007
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share &g

Revenue $ 181,18:$ 287,38°$ 421,34($ 323,62.$ 234,031 $ 32508:% 378,68 % 318,18
Cost of sale: 136,83t 218,81. 321,08¢ 230,04 177,67 252,55 291,24t 234,77.
Gross profi 44,34¢ 68,57 100,25¢ 93,57¢ 56,354 72,52¢ 87,43 83,417
Selling, general, and

administrative expenst 40,47: 50,08¢ 65,22¢ 67,015 56,16¢ 59,53 62,44+ 67,08
Income from operation 3,87¢ 18,48 35,03( 26,56! 18¢ 12,99¢ 24,99. 16,33
Interest expens 2,761 4,294 5,90( 5,661 6,54( 7,541 7,45¢ 5,41(
Income before income tax

provision 1,11¢ 14,19 29,13( 20,90( (6,357) 5,44¢ 17,53: 10,92t
Income tax provisiol 451 5,60¢ 11,60% 8,29: (2,56%) 2,11¢ 3,63¢€ 4,29¢
Net income $ 664 $ 8,58t $ 17,52! $ 12,607 $ (3,786 $ 3332% 1389 $ 6,62¢
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.4€ $ 0.9C $ 0.6€ $ (0.2) $ 0.17 $ 0.72 $ 0.3
Weighted average number of

shares

Diluted 18,525,84 18,751,41 19,426,29 19,009,23 18,287,78 19,042,01 19,034,14 19,064,06

In order to provide comparability between periodsspnted, certain amounts have been reclassified thie
previously reported interim financial statementsaaform to the consolidated financial statemesspntation of
the current period.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist, including all amendments to date
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock(:
Specimen of Common Stock Certificate
Rights Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweerisRagt and American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company, as Rights Agent
Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 30, &0@6g MarineMax of New York, Inc.;
Surfside-3 Marina, Inc.; Matthew Barbara, Paul Baah Diane Keeney, and Angela Chianese; and
certain affiliates of Surfsi-3 Marina, Inc(Form 1(-Q filed May 10, 2006)(3
Employment Agreement between Registrant and WilllhniMcGill Jr.(4)
Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHadcLamb(4)
Employment Agreement between Registrant and EdwaRlussell(4)
1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeertb, 2000(5
1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plai
Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, effectivausiuty, 2006 among the Registrant, MarineMax
Motor Yachts, LLC, and Hatteras Yachts DivisiorBstinswick Corporation(7
Second Amended and Restated Credit and Securityefggnt dated June 19, 2006 among the
Registrant and its subsidiaries as Borrowers, Kellizank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., and vari
other lenders, as Lenders
Agreement Relating to Acquisitions between Regmteand Brunswick Corporation, dated
December 72005(9) Form -K filed December 9, 2005(!
Form of Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreeme
First Amendment to Second Amended and Restatedt@med Security Agreement executed on
June 5, 2007 effective as of May 31, 2007 amondrigistrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers
Bank of America, N.A., Keybank, N.A., General ElgctCommercial Distribution Finance
Corporation, Wachovia Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo BaNKA., National City Bank, N.A., U.S. Bank,
N.A. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, as Les{d8)
MarineMax, Inc. 2007 Incentive Compensation Plah
Form Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Incentive Cengation Plan(11
Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 2003entive Compensation Plan(]
Director Fee Share Purchase Program
List of Subsidiarie:
Consent of Ernst & Young LL
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as astk
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aste
Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

T Certain information in this exhibit has been ontiténd filed separately with the Securities and Bxgfe
Commission. Confidential treatment has been reqdestth respect to the omitted portio

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateroarftorm 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2891
filed on December 20, 200

(2) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form Bdport dated September 30, 1998, as filed on Ocihe
998.
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(3) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f®Qhe quarter ended March 31, 2006, as filed on
May 10, 2006

(4) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form ¢-K, as filed on June 13, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2661,
filed on February 14, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Registration StaterorlForm $-1 (Registratior333-47873).

(7) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended March 31, 2007jled
on May 7, 2007

(8) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2006iled 6n
August 4, 2006

(9) Incorporated by reference to Regist’sForm ¢-K as filed on December 9, 20(
(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on June 11, 20C
(11) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on March 6, 200
(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form £-8 (File No. 33:-141657)as filed March 29, 200
(13) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on November 9, 200






LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

MARINEMAX, INC.

(as of November 30, 2007)

State Of Incorporation

Name Of Subsidiary Or Organization
Boating Gear Center, LLC (. Delaware
MarineMax East, Inc Delaware
MarineMax Northeast, LLC (1 Delaware
MarineMax Realty, LLC Delaware
MarineMax Services, Inc. (: Delaware
Newcoast Financial Services, LL Delaware

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax East, i
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by referencthé following Registration Statements:
1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-141657) pertaining to the 2007 Incentive Compensatlan of MarineMax, Inc
2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-140366) pertaining to the 1998 Employee Stock FasetPlan of MarineMax, Inc
3) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-83332) pertaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock RiNlarineMax, Inc..

4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333063 ertaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan #uied1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan of MarineMax, In

5) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-122091) of MarineMax, Inc

of our reports dated December 6, 2007, with resfoeitte consolidated financial statements of Mdviag, Inc. and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of MarMayx, Inc. included in the Annual Report (Form 10fK) the year ended September 30,
2007.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 6, 2007






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
[, William H. McGill Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repoescot contain any untrue statement of a matiagalr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistannual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations, and cash flows of the registrardfaand for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and jpiress, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this annual report is being jpreg;

b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadtepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regisalisclosure controls and procedures and predeantthis annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures as of the end of the period cousyéhis annual report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed on the annual report any chandbe registrant’s internal control over finanaigborting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that watenlly affected, or is reasonably likely to méadly affect, the registran’internal contrc
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sIWiLLiam H. McGILL, (R.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Date: December 11, 2007






Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
[, Michael H. McLamb, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repoescot contain any untrue statement of a matiagalr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistannual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations, and cash flows of the registrardfaand for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal am responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and jpiuress, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this annual report is being jpreg;

b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgagdiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regisalisclosure controls and procedures and predeantthis annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures as of the end of the period cousyéhis annual report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed on the annual report any chandbe registrant’s internal control over finanaigborting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that watenlly affected, or is reasonably likely to méadly affect, the registran’internal contrc
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MicHAEL H. McLAawmB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officel

Date: December 11, 2007






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTS OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKLof MarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2007, as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. McGill JiChief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&h906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirems of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)

or 780(d)); anc
The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the

)

Company

/sIWiLLiam H. McGILL JR.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Officer

December 11, 200°






Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTS OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKLof MarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2007, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael H. McLambhi€f Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and befiefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(3) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); anc

(4) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ MicHAEL H. McLAawmB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officer

December 11, 2007



